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COMPANY PROFILE
AEEN

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited (Stock code:
2211) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) aims at
huge market opportunities in the universal health industry, strives
to be international brand operator of universal health and become
a leading practitioner of the strategy of “Internet + Universal
Health” as well as a pioneer of the development of ecology in
the industry chain by way of finance and capital.

The Company is one of the leading pharmaceutical retailer and
distributor in the Northeast of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC" or “China”). The Group has distinguished pharmaceutical
retail chain network in the Northeast China and it is also the largest
privately operated pharmaceutical distributor in the Northeast
China. As of the date of this annual report, the Group operated
395 retail pharmacies, mainly located in the Northeast China, and
had approximately 1,750 active distributors and 3,396 full-time
staff. In addition, the Group has set up five large-scale logistics
storage centers in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun, Harbin
and Jiamusi, and has established a high-quality distribution system
across the country and covering the northeastern region of the
PRC.

As a basic business segment, the Group’s main product categories
for pharmaceutical retail and distribution (including import and
export trade) include prescribed drugs, non-prescribed drugs
(Chinese patent medicines, chemical preparations, antibiotics
and biochemical drugs), traditional Chinese medicine decoction
pieces, biological products, protein assimilation preparations,
peptide hormones, blood products, disinfection products, medical
equipment, family planning supplies (contraceptives and utensils),
prepackaged foods, dairy products (including infant formula milk
powder), nutritional foods, health care products, stereotyped
packaging cosmetics, daily necessities, etc.
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The Group will continue leveraging on the core advantages
of branded products, expanding the scope of cooperation on
branded products, leveraging on business institute training, and
providing more value-added service to employees, customers
and consumers. The Group also enriches the product mix by
introducing more health care products based on the expertise in
pharmaceutical retail and distribution, so as to promote the concept
of the universal health industry. Meanwhile, the Group actively
explores upstream ecological chain, covering the construction for
Chinese herbal medicines base and the production of botanical
capsule.

The Group actively explores online pharmacies, cross-border
e-commerce, Influencer marketing and other “Internet+" areas,
and advocates the concept of “Specialization+” and introduces
the development concept of “Platform+". Furthermore, the Group
maintains upstream and downstream ecosystem leveraging on
industry advantage to cope with the situation of “New Norm” in
real economy, and takes the lead in upgrading and digitalized
transformation of the industry.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman)
(Resigned as chief executive officer on 1 August 2021)
Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman)
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chief operation officer)
(Appointed as executive director and
chief executive officer on 1 August 2021)
Mr. Zhao Zehua
Mr. Sun Libo (Resigned as executive director on
1 August 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Zou Haiyan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zou Haiyan (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing

Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing (Chairman)
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Jin Dongkun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing

Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Ge Junming

Mr. Zhao Zehua

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ge Junming

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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HEADQUARTERS

No. 14-1

Bei Yi Zhong Road

Tiexi District

Shenyang City

Liaoning Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2404, 24th Floor
World-Wide House

19 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFIGE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR
Mazars CPA Limited

STOCK CODE

The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited: 2211

INVESTOR RELATIONS

ir@uhi-group.com

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.uhighl.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR RE

For the year ended 30 June
BENB=THLEE

Unit 2022 2021 Change

#fr = —2-—F 25

Revenue Wk RMB million 1,273.6 1,185.2 +7.5%
AREEET

Gross profit EFIH RMB million 204.2 156.9 +30.1%
AREEHET

Operating loss feER RMB million (188.7) (663.4) +474.7 RMB million

AREEET ARBEBET

Loss for the year FEBHE RMB million (188.0) (676.0) +488.0 RMB million

AREEET AR¥RET

EBITDA® ERITE REHATFIEO RMB million (140.7) (335.9) +195.2 RMB million

AREEET ARBBET

Basic loss per share? BRERER RMB cents (42.66) (174.83) +132.17 RMB cents

ARES ARES

Gross margin EF= % 16.0 132 +2.8 pp

(BT

Operating loss margin mEEER % (14.8) (56.0) +41.2 pp

(EEERa

Net loss margin FEER % (14.8) (57.0) +42.2 pp

(EIER

As at 30 June
RARZtH
Unit 2022 2021 Change
By —E-CF —T=-F s

Current ratio® mENLL &0 times 1.1 1.3 -0.2
&

Trade receivables turnover® YR RE RS days 263 303 4.0
A

Inventory turnover® FEREXRHY clays 79.3 1038 -24.5
x

Trade payables turnover® AR EERE days 99.6 68.3 +313
x

Return on equity” BRAE R % (46.0) (117.5) +71.5 pp

(EERE

Return on total assets® EERBELRERO % (22.4) (70.6) +48.2 pp

EERE:
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Notes:

EBITDA is calculated by adjusted loss before interests, tax, depreciation and amortisation,
excluding the effect of share of post-tax results of joint ventures, share of post-tax results
of an associate, impairment loss or, if applicable, its reversal on intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment in an associate.

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022 was 439,825,795,
versus 386,313,445 for the year ended 30 June 2021).

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

Trade receivables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and
ending balances on trade receivables for the year, divided by revenue for the year,
multiplied by the number of days for the year.

Inventory turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on inventory for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied by
the number of days for the year.

Trade payables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on trade payables for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied
by the number of days for the year.

Return on equity is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company by
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing loss for the year by total assets.
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* CONCENTRATE ON UNIVERSAL HEALTH
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Dear Shareholders,
SPECIALIZATHING |, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
CF Company, am glad to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) and all who give strong support,
understanding and encouragement to the Company. | would like to take
this opportunity to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2022 (the “Year").
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

MACRO ENVIRONMENT

During the Year, the economy faced greater pressure of slow
down as certain emergent factors were out of the expectation as
a result of the complicated and evolving environment of the world
and the frequent COVID-19 epidemic (the "Epidemic") in China.
The pharmaceutical industry is an important part of the national
economy for China, closely related to the people’s health, and is
an essential industry related to the construction of a harmonious
society. Although facing the difficulties of reform, it still has a
promising future.

Despite the increase of uncertainties due to the impact of the
Epidemic and geopolitics, China’'s pharmaceutical industry has
been growing relatively fast in recent years. With the market
size of China’s pharmaceutical industry amounting to RMB1,922.0
billion in 2021,
pharmaceutical industry will further reach to RMB2,231.1 billion
by the end of 2022.

it is expected that the market size of China’s

There is a huge amount of unsettled medical health requirements
with the large aging population. The new era of pharmaceutical
innovation has arrived with the unprecedented medicine evaluation
reform, the normalization of bulk purchases and the acceleration
of innovation as the key solution.

In recent years, a series of industrial policies have been launched
by China and its government to encourage the development of the
pharmaceutical industry. The policies has continuously promoted
the development of the pharmaceutical industry, which includes
the “14th Five-Year” Development Plan for the Pharmaceutical
(("+mR"EEETX3EFE) ), the Notice on the
Implementation Plan for Promoting the High-Quality Development
of the Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient Industry ( € B B R £} 4%
EXREEERERSENBA) ), the Action Plan for Developing
the Pharmaceutical Industry (2021-2023) ( & JJ UK 50 B8 BE
HETEETE(2021-20234F)) ), the Notice on Certain Measures
for Support of the Development of the Pharmaceutical Industry

((ERTRHBEEXRZRE THENBEA) ).

Industry

In particular, the development of the pharmaceutical industry
would be deeply impacted by five types of policies including the
negotiation on medical insurance, payment method, commercial
insurance, approval and review of drugs and bulk purchases during
the “14th Five-Year".

10 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Under the Epidemic, the Company’s business developed steadily.
Among the business segments of the Group, pharmaceutical chain
retail business had restrained the sharp decline. The Company
launched online publicity and marketing on the mobile Internet,
comprehensive promotion by Internet celebrities, online pharmacies
and cooperation with third-party online service organizations in
some areas, providing basic support for the Company's strategic
transformation. For the Year, the Company’s total revenue was
RMB1,273.6 million.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

We have observed three major trends in China’s new healthcare
retail, namely diversified healthcare service channel, integration
and division of work of online and offline, and more diversified
healthcare consumption. Given the situation, the Group would
continue its established development strategy and become
more innovative by focusing on the pharmaceutical industry and
concentrating on the universal health industry. Firstly, we will
continuously improve the operation quality of its retail chain stores,
increase the categories of pharmaceutical products, and enhance
our service awareness and capabilities. Secondly, we will constantly
develop value-added services in our stores to meet the diversified
needs of consumers. Finally, we will continually strengthen our
investment in the Internet and promote the integration of online
and offline stores and services to capture the market opportunities
under Internet-based medical services.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment, society and governance are also the basis for
the Group to develop in a sustainable way and perform social
responsibility, and are taken seriously by senior management.
We will make efforts in aspects such as environment, employees,
customers, supply chain, anti-corruption and even community
participation, while creating economic value for each stakeholder,
to both improve governance and take into account the maintenance
of the natural environment and the social competitive environment,
so as to adapt to the global trend of coordinated economic and
social development.

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude
to the Board, management members and all staff for their
dedication and support to our Group's strategies and business
development.

Jin Dongtao
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 September 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREWNE D

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In the past year, under the circumstances of complex and
challenging international landscape, the world’s economy growth
rate saw a significant slowdown. The Epidemic in China spread
several times, which has impacted the stable operation of the
economy. As an important part of the national economy for China,
the pharmaceutical industry is closely related to the people’s
health. Although it has been impacted by the overall economy
environment, it still has a promising future.

According to the Chinese government'’s official website, the key
economic indicators shown a significant decline due to the effect
of unexpected factors in April 2022. With the overall improvement
in the prevention and control of the Epidemic, the resumption of
work and production by enterprises in an orderly manner and the
effect of a series of policy and measures for maintaining economic
growth, the economy in May stopped the decline in April and the
key economic indicators stabilized and rebounded in June.

Based on production data, the value of large-scale industries
demonstrated a year-on-year increase of 3.9% in June 2022,
representing an increase of 3.2% as compared to the previous
month. The index of service production also increased 1.3% from
a decrease of 5.1% in the previous month. Based on the demands,
the total retail sales of consumer goods in June increased 3.1%
from a decrease of 6.7% in the previous month.

In terms of the pharmaceutical industry policies, 2021 is the opening
year of the “14th Five-Year” Plan, during which the pharmaceutical
industry policies were intensively issued, with a significant increase
of the policies as compared to last year. In the coming years, the
development of the pharmaceutical industry will be significantly
impacted by multiple policies. According to the classification of
key policies, the policies for pharmaceuticals were most frequently
announced, mainly involving policies related to drug registration
and approval, APIs, drug patents, pharmacovigilance, traditional
Chinese medicine and granule development, followed by medical
policies, including long-term prescriptions, public hospital reform,
hierarchical diagnosis, medical and health service reform and
promotion of experience from the medical reform in Sanming
City. The medical insurance policy mainly includes the adjustment
and negotiation of national reimbursement drug list, payment
method, urban and rural residents’ medical insurance and others.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRR DT

Looking back to the first half of 2022, each department of China
has issued a number of outline policy documents and organized
several important meetings to propose various requirements for
the subsequent development of the pharmaceutical industry,
mainly concentrating on bulk purchases, adjustment of medical
insurance, reform of payment method for medical insurance,
hierarchical diagnosis and others.

In particular, the bulk purchases is still a hot topic in the industry,
and China has made numerous policy arrangements for bulk
purchases, with a focus on increasing the variety and expanding
the scope of centralized procurement. Today, “bulk purchases”
has become a major policy in the industry and is accelerating
in speed and expanding in scope. According to the McKinsey
report, the average price reduction of drugs included in bulk
purchases has reached more than 50%. Among them, oral solid
preparations, which are the most widely sold in pharmacies, are
the most affected. It is expected that 70% of the pharmaceutical
market will be covered by “bulk purchases” within three years.

With the development of bulk purchase in China, low-end generic
drugs will enter an era of low profitability, while generic drugs
with high technical barriers and innovative drugs with broad
prospects will become the research and development direction
for pharmaceutical companies. The overall price war resulted in
significant price reductions below the market equilibrium price,
thus leaving significantly higher consumer surplus.

As China continuously introduces policies and reforms in the
healthcare industry, there have been quite a few new trends,
one of which is the new pharmaceutical retail. The new medical
policies and emerging forces in the industry are forces driving
new pharmaceutical retail to grow rapidly.

14 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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In recent years, a major trend in the new pharmaceutical retail
is the prescriptions outflow. In addition, under the effects of
the Epidemic and the wave of consumer interconnection, the
Internet medical platform has been developing rapidly, but it still
undertakes a relatively small proportion of medical needs and is in
the early stage of development. However, Internet-based medical
services and new pharmaceutical retail is becoming emerging
forces in the pharmaceutical industry and will play a long-term role
in taking over the overflow flow from hospitals and developing
the potential of huge medical demand.

Looking forward to the second half of 2022, the risk of global
economic stagflation is rising and there are still many uncertainties
in the domestic economic recovery, but the fundamentals of
China’s economy, which has strong resilience, greal potential
and sound long-term development, remain unchanged. With the
effect of implementation of a package of policies for maintaining
the economic growth, the economic operation is expected to be
gradually improved.

In addition, the scale of China’s pharmaceutical industry has been
expanding in recent years with increasing health awareness and
large aging population. Looking ahead, the outlook for China’s
pharmaceutical industry is promising against the backdrop of an
increasingly aging population.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Under the leadership of Mr. Jin Dongtao, the chairman (the
“Chairman”) of the Board, and with the efforts of all employees,
the Group anchors in and focuses on the pharmaceutical healthcare
field, and has been actively promoting the development of
traditional physical retail chain stores and distribution network
while facing more intensive competition. Therefore, the Group has
to look for new opportunities and explore new way of business
and will make efforts in costs reduction and control in coming
years. The employees of the Group's retail chain stores stand fast
on their posts to provide medicine sales services to local people.
In some areas, telephone ordering for home delivery of medicine
and/or mobile internet reservation for products were carried out
to maintain business continuity and form a complementary online

and offline operation model.
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The Golden Rules (E & &)

The Golden Rules, an operation philosophy with strategic vision,
is put forward by Mr. Jin Dongtao, the Chairman, of which “£"
is embodied as “1+1=1, 1+1=11, 1+1=101, 1+1=%, 1+1=H".
The Golden Rules advocates “Team-work” cooperation spirit,
“Platform” for multilateral cooperation, “Empathy” at multi-level
and multi-dimension, “Sharing” win-win cooperation strategy and
“Partnership” of seeking common development.

Chain Retail Business

During the Year, in order to minimise the impact on performance
caused by the Epidemic, the Group had started to change its
pricing strategies with a view to maintaining earnings of the Group.
In the meantime, the Group has strengthened the construction
of its O20 platform and formed an online and offline interactive
operation system. At the end of the Year, the Group had a total of
395 stores (2021: 845 stores). However, the Group's retail business
is still suffering from the continuous downturn of regional real
economy within the northeastern region of the PRC and the impact

of the Epidemic. The Group recorded sales revenue for retail
business of RMB433.7 million for the Year (2021: RMB519.8 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 16.6%.
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Nationwide Distribution Business

During the Year, the Group had approximately 1,750 distribution
customers and five large-scale distribution logistics centers. The
Group made appropriate promotion in its distribution system,
continued to optimise screening and maintaining of high-quality
customers. However, in this circumstance, the Group's distribution
business recorded sales revenue of RMB839.9 million (2021:
RMB665.4 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 26.2%.

Direct-supply and Sales Model

The Group's direct-supply model effectively addressed the issue of
traditional heavily overlapped sales process, as well as simplified
the supply chain to improve sales efficiency and profitability and
provided a higher profit margin from the high-margin products
of the Group. Meanwhile, the marketing model advanced to
accord with the “Two Invoices System” carried out by the Chinese
government so as to reduce the effect of the policy change of
the Group. During the Year, the Group’s management took all
necessary actions to safeguard the direct supply of branded
products, and its direct-supply model of these branded products
covered the provinces in China.

Branded Products Operation

The Group continued to maintain the operational pattern of
the original branded products and adjusted the brand structure
according to actual operational requirements to eliminate certain
non-applicable products and add new products, so as to maintain
the competitiveness of the original branded products, on the other
hand, increase the influence of new branded products. During
the Year, a net increase of 24 branded products was recorded.
Hence, there were 703 branded products in total in operation for
the benefit of the Group at the end of the Year.

Intelligent Warehouse Construction

The Group has set up five large-scale logistics distribution centers
in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun, Harbin and Jiamusi, and
has established a high-quality distribution system radiating across
the whole country and covering the northeastern region. During
the Year, continuously leveraging on Warehouse Management
Software System, an intelligent sorting software system, the Group
has improved the labor productivity. At the same time, the Group
has improved the working environment, the work feelings of
employees and customers have been improved, which helps the
Group's image upgrade, and lays a solid foundation for planning
of the industrial upgrading and intelligent transformation of the
logistics park.
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Brand Image Promotion.

With traditional advantages in continuous brand promotion
and marketing, the Group strengthened the influence and
competitiveness of the Company, and mitigated the further decline
in operating performance. During the Year, the Group further
cut down its traditional media platforms, including televisions,
broadcasts, newspapers, vehicle advertisement, billboards and
leaflets, along with new media platforms including the internet
and WeChat. In addition, the Group has participated in the public
charity. Especially during the outbreak of the Epidemic, it carried
out activities of free distribution of anti-epidemic supplies as a way
to enhance the reputation of the Company and fulfill its corporate
social responsibilities.

Institute School Training

According to the characteristics of new era, new economy, new
technology and new retail, the Group continued to optimize
the training activities of the institute and made best use of the
business institute on the Group's business development, talent
nurturing and public welfare promotion. Moreover, the Group
took the advantage of its lead in establishing business institute in
the industry, strengthened its cohesion as well as enhanced and
transformed the mode of thinking of employees in response to the
transformation and upgrade of the Company’s business. During
the Year, 13 online video internal trainings in total had been held
by the Company due to the Epidemic.

Membership Service

During the Year, the Group had provided follow-up services and
promotion benefits for approximately 1.5 million offline members,
and provide online health knowledge, product knowledge and
other dissemination services, enhancing the sense of affiliation
and positivity of members while boosting their loyalty, and thus
promoting a healthy image of the Company. Meanwhile, the Group
had provided social value- added services in various aspects such
as the supply of public toilets, cold shelters, lost children service
centres and epidemic prevention station for courier; and continued
to launch the public welfare activities, such as “Love China”, with
a view to building up its positive corporate image.

18 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2021/22

m T R R

AEEAERHEETMESTEMITHERN
BRED  BUBREARRNEENMEF
N BEREREE—FTRANEE - K
FE  AKEE-THRMNBERENF
B WMER - ERE - WK =R BRERE
B DR - G EAE - s B R
% EEEmmEREEME - I - A

SERGEE  BHRREHE  FR2
BRRHEAMITE  BRAANARNEE
g BUTREMERMT -

4 48

]

bl

i

EE k2 E

AEERFEHER - HEE - HRE - HT
SERE - BEBLRHERFIANET BB
CRABEAANKERGRR - ATHEE
RBEEEFTEMNERER - 1o AEH
MBETEARAERLEEHSR2ES
RACERES  REETRBRSIEE
BENARSHERNBEREBMER - N
FE - AREIE - NATER TR LRETY
ARG K135 -

2ER%

REE  NEBYMBLOIS08MRTEE
REBERS ke iHER - WiRHK LR
BAE  EmABEEERY  AERSE
SHRRBMEERNL - BN 86 EHE -
RAARDRREERENTLR - B - NEE
ERBOETE  BRREEESMH  EXR
BEREP L - RENFHRBIEE S T HEE
THERERY  #ERRIZEOHEIER
@ad BYREFNEELR -



Industry Alliance

During the Year, the Company had proactively participated in
the alliance activities. The Chairman, vice chairman and chief
executive office had attended on behalf of the Group the tours
and forums organised by the alliance to seize the theme of era
development, keep abreast of the industry information, promote
development of branded products, strengthen the Company’s
interaction, exchange with industry alliance and constantly
enhance the Group's influence. Among them, Mr. Jin Dongtao,
the chairman, won the “Special Contribution Award” of the China
Pharmaceutical Resources Association; this year, Mr. Chu Chuanfu,
the CEO, won the “China Pharmaceutical Retail Outstanding
Person Award” by the West Lake Forum. Meanwhile, leveraging
on the China’s national strategic guidance of “Healthy China (f#5
)", “Beautiful China GEEEFHF )", “Belt and Road (—&—#&)",
“Guangdong-Hong Kong- Macao Greater Bay Area (B4R K&
[&)"” and “Hainan Free Trade Port (8F B B Z 5/%8)", the Company
gathered industry experience and focused on technological
innovation to seek further transformation and upgrade of the
Group's business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of RMB1,273.6 million for the Year
(2021: RMB1,185.2 million). Loss attributable to owners of the
Company was RMB187.6 million for the Year (2021: RMB675.4
million). Loss per share for the Year was RMB42.66 cents (2021:
RMB174.83 cents). The decrease in loss attributable to owners of
the Company was mainly due to the continuous improvement of
operating efficiency through implementing measures to tighten
cost control over various operating expenses in order to enhance
its profitability and to improve cash flow from its operations in
future. During the Year, the Group closed a number of loss-making
retail stores to minimise operating loss.

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of RMB1,273.6 million
(2021: RMB1,185.2 million). With the adaption of the epidemic and
changes in the epidemic prevention policy during April to June
2022, the customer flow of the stores gradually increased, and the
release of the epidemic-restricted products like the treatment of
fever, cold, pharyngitis, antibiotics, etc., so the revenue rebounded
quickly. In addition, sales increased rapidly due to many large-scale
promotional activities were carried out in existing stores this Year.
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Analysis of revenue by business segment

Revenue (RMB million)
Year ended 30 June

BRI BB &7 # i 2t W

Percentage (%) of total revenue
Year ended 30 June

k#E(ARBEET) EH K ER B 2 H(%)
BEAA=HRLEE BEAA=HALEE
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
“E-CF  ZEZ--F 2% —B--f —T-—F =
Retails TE 433.7 519.8 16.6% 34.1 139 9.80p
EER
Distributions ok 839.9 665.4 +26.2% 65.9 56.1 +9.8pp
(EER
1,273.6 1,185.2 100.0 100.0
Retail Business Segment FEXRKSE
As at 30 June 2022, the Group had 395 (2021: 845) retail pharmacies R_ZTE__F A= ‘f’ H AEENTEE
in total, of which 310 (2021: 650) located in Heilongjiang, 84 (2021: & #:E395K (=T = — 4 : 845K )

127) in Liaoning, 0 (2021: 67) in Jilin and 1 (2021: 1) self-operated
retail pharmacy in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group had no
supermarket selling healthcare products and consumer goods in

Shenyang as at 30 June 2022, while there was one in Shenyang
as at 30 June 2021.

Distribution Business Segment

The Group adopted a prudent approach in running the distribution
business and took appropriate actions to mitigate credit risks by
strengthening the credit management of sales and minimising
trade receivables in order to lower the risk of bad debts.

During the Year, the Group had a nationwide distribution network
covering approximately 1,750 active customers (2021: 2,270), among
which, approximately 1,050 pharmaceutical retailers, hospitals and
clinics (2021: 1,410) and approximately 700 distributors (2021: 860).
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Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group for the Year was RMB204.2 million (2021:
RMB156.9 million). Overall gross margin increase from 13.2% to
16.0%. With the less impact of the Epidemic, the pricing level has
been gradually increased, so the gross profit margin increased

during the Year as compared with last year.

Analysis of gross profit by business segment

Gross profit (RMB million)

Year ended 30 June
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Gross margin (%)
Year ended 30 June

ENBARYEET) EFZE(%)
BEARA=tTHLEE BEAA=+THLEE
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
—BooF —T-—F 2y —_F-__F —T-—F 23
Retails =€ 100.0 107.0 -6.5% 23.1 20.6 +2.5pp
(EERaE
Distributions 7 & 104.2 49.9 +108.8% 12.4 7.5 +4.9pp
(EEERE
204.2 156.9
Selling and marketing expenses HHEREHEBEX

Selling and marketing expenses for the Year was RMB322.4 million
(2021: RMB533.8 million) and accounted for 25.3% (2021: 45.0%)
of the Group's revenue. The decrease in selling and marketing

AEE  HEREHAXABARK3224
BET(ZE=-—F: ARK53388 8
TT) B AREERER253% (ZFE=——F ¢
45.0%) - HEREHERAIB PO ETEBRY

expenses was mainly due to the decrease in depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, employee benefit expenses,
advertising and other marketing expenses and rental expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year was RMB58.0 million (2021:
RMB66.6 million) and accounted for 4.6% (2021: 5.6%) of the
Group's revenue. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the decrease in employee benefit expenses and
depreciation of property, plant and equipment during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Finance income — net

Net finance income for the Year was RMB2.3 million (2021: Net
finance cost of RMB10.6 million). The net finance income as against
the net finance costs was mainly due to the decrease in exchange
losses.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the Year was nil (2021: RMB5.2 million).
The decrease in income tax expenses was mainly due to no
deferred tax expenses was recognised in the Year. The effective
income tax rate for the Year was nil (2021: 0.8%).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's treasury function formulated financial risk
management procedures, which are also subject to periodic review
by the senior management of the Company.

This treasury function operates as a centralized service for
managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, reallocating surplus financial resources within
the Group, procuring cost-efficient funding and targeting yield
enhancement opportunities. The treasury function regularly and
closely monitors its overall cash and debt positions, proactively
reviews its funding costs and maturity profiles to facilitate timely
refinancing, if appropriate.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group's unpledged cash and cash
equivalents were RMB57.8 million in aggregate (2021: RMB33.1
million), and the Group's net current assets were RMB23.6 million
(2021: RMB103.7 million).

During the Year, net cash flows used in operating activities
amounted to RMB42.4 million (2021: RMB107.7 million). The
decrease in cash flows used in operating activities was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the Group's working capital.

During the Year, the Group had capital expenditure of RMBO.1
million (2021: RMB1.9 million).
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Having considered the cash flow from operating activities and
existing financial gearing, the management believes that the
Group would replenish liquidity in a timely basis to fund its day-
to-day operations, capital expenditures and prospective business
development projects. The Board will continuously and closely
monitor the Group's liquidity position and financial performance
and implement measures to improve the Group's cash flows.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, with most of its transactions
denominated and settled in Renminbi. The Group’s currency risk
is insignificant and mainly arises from certain bank deposits that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
As at 30 June 2022, the Group had cash and bank balances of
RMB57.8 million, of which the equivalent of RMB1.3 million was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purpose during the Year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 19 November 2021, the Company allotted and issued a total
of 77,262,689 new shares of the Company (the “Share(s)") to
four subscribers (the "First Subscription”), who are independent
third parties, under general mandate at the subscription price
of HKDO0.135 per Share. The new Shares issued under the
First Subscription represent approximately 16.7% of the total
issued Shares as enlarged by such new Shares. Net proceeds
of approximately HKD10.2 million were raised under the First
Subscription.

On7June 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of 92,715,226
new Shares to four subscribers (the “Second Subscription”), who
are independent third parties, under general mandate at the
subscription price of HKDO.15 per Share. The new Shares issued
under the Second Subscription represent approximately 20.0%
of the total issued Shares as enlarged by such new Shares. Net
proceeds of approximately HKD13.6 million were raised under the
Second Subscription.
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For details of the First Subscription and the Second Subscription,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29
October 2021, 23 May 2022 and 1 June 2022 respectively. As at
30 June 2022, 556,291,360 ordinary Shares of US$0.01 were issued
by the Company. Details of the movements in the share capital
of the Company during the year are set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a borrowing from an associate
carried an interest rates of 3% per annual (2021: Nil).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2022, calculated as
net debt divided by sum of total equity and net debt, was N/A
(2021: N/A).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2021: Nil).

As at 30 June 2022, the entire balance of notes payable of the
Group was secured by restricted cash of RMB30.5 million (2021:
RMB34.7 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had 3,396 (2021: 5,586) full-time
employees with total employee benefit expenses amounted to
RMB245.5 million for the Year (2021: RMB316.5 million). Employees
are paid according to their positions, performance, experience and
prevailing market practices, and are provided with management
and professional training. The Group has implemented a number
of initiatives to enhance the productivity of its employees. In
particular, the Group conducts periodic performance reviews on
most of the employees, and their compensation is tied to their
performance. Further, the Group's compensation structure is
designed to incentivize its employees to perform well by linking
a portion of their compensation to their performance and the
overall performance of the Group. The performance-based
compensation partly depends on the employee’s job function and
seniority. Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement
benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as
life insurance and medical insurance. Employees in the PRC are
provided with basic social insurance and housing fund in compliance
with the requirements of the laws of China. Meanwhile, the Group
endeavours to provide its employees with a safe workplace and
structured training programs.
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FUTURE PLAN

Following the leadership of the Chairman in strategic plan and
taking the Golden Rules as its guidelines, the management of the
Group will adapt to the new situation, concentrate on universal
health, focus on the pharmaceutical industry, and deeply cultivate
the industry chain. On the basis of stabilizing and optimising the
existing retail chain network and distribution system, it will further
explore the structural transformation and digital upgrading of
the “supply-side” reform with focus on the development of the
following areas:

Firstly, “Specialization+" strategy is adopted to strengthen the
service professionalism and improve the Company’s operation
quality. Taking licensed pharmacists as the core and leveraging
on the advantages of the business institute, the Group aims to
train employees of the new era, and improve the level of pharmacy
services for the public from the aspects of corporate culture,
pharmaceutical knowledge, service skills, new marketing methods,
or introducing famous doctors, as a way to win customers and
develop markets with professionalism, and to shape professional
brands in retail chain pharmacies and distribution field.

Secondly, “Platform+" strategy is adopted to expand the value-
added service items of stores to meet the growing demand of
consumers. With the change in living environment, people pay
more attention to health, resulting in increasing demand for
prevention and treatment. In particular, the Epidemic outbreak
has further reminded the public of the importance of health care
and immunity. The Group will adopt new technological methods
according to the new situation, such as introducing Al intelligent
diagnostic medical equipment, or introducing resources in the
field of universal health in the form of partners, to enhance the
service capabilities of terminal stores and with alert marketing
model, implement franchise store promotion model as to adapt
to the market needs in the new situation.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

Thirdly, “Internet+" strategy is adopted to strengthen the linking
capability of internet to physical stores, and promote online and
offline connectivity and integration. According to the development
trend of technology and the internet, the Group will make full
use of the new situation of the popularization of mobile internet
terminals, including development of applets, use of short videos
and live commerce, moments promotion, group development
and bonding members, to develop a network for physical stores,
explore a new marketing ecosystem integrating “new business,
new retail, and new technology”, and build a dynamic and leading
competitiveness.

Therefore, by leveraging the network layout advantages of
traditional industries and grafting the new economic model,
introducing to partnership model, the Group will make efforts to
facilitate the optimization and digital transformation of the Group's
operation structure, and make plans for a new development cycle
with the wing of new engine for the Company, so as to maintain the
Group as one of the industrial leaders in terms of the construction
of industrial chain ecosystem and operation channel innovation.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

No important event has occurred after 30 June 2022, being the end
of the financial year under review, which would affect the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOGIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARE

With reference to its own experience, the Company primarily
adopts the principles and basis of Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as its standards, with an aim to establish a sound environmental,
social and governance structure.

The Group is principally engaged in the distributions and retails
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. The Group employs the Direct-supply Model
in the sales and promotion of its high-margin products including
licensed products and the products with exclusive distribution
rights. The Group employs Original Equipment Manufacturers
(OEM) and does not directly participate in the production process,
therefore, there is no emission of waste gas and greenhouse gas,
water and land pollution and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, etc. in respect to production process. This report
elaborates the Group's performance in fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility arisen from operations in the mainland China and
Hong Kong of the PRC during the Year.

The Group understands that corporate actions are not only
critical to the future of the business, but also need to respond
to global collective concerns and be consistent with sustainable
development goals. We implement more ambitious measures
to address the impact on the climate and enhance overall
sustainability practices, including setting environmental goals.
Responsibility and transparency will drive us to achieve our goals
and environmental, social and governance (ESG) vision.

The Group is committed to creating values for stakeholders and
the community by a responsible mode of operation, and its major
objectives are to maintain the sustainable development of the
following factors: (I) environmental aspect; (/) working environment;
(I) operational management; and (IV) community participation/
public welfare.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI HERERES

Stakeholders
BiE

Issues of concern

Communication channels

BERE

Government and market regulators

KR RS E R

BEEE

e Compliance operation
BREE

® Tax payment
BN

e Promote regional economic
development and employment

HEED b [ AR B B R S L 36

On-site inspections and checks

BMRE RigE

Work reports preparation and
submission for approval

B ER TIEREEEL

Annual, interim reports and other
published information

Fi - PHHREREME TEER

Shareholders and investors

BRRIEEE

e Return on investment
®E B
¢ Information disclosure and
transparency
ER BB RBERAE
e Protect of shareholders’ interests

PRIE AR 2S

Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

REBEFREREMBRRAE

Annual, interim reports and other
published information

Fi - PHREREMETBER

The Company's website

PIN/NGI R

The Company's contact information

EA/NETL: AN

Employees e Career development opportunities e Training and incentive scheme
(== EEURKS &l Bt 2
e Health and safety e Health guidelines
fEEET e Z2 3|
Peer/industry associations e Experience sharing and co- e Industry alliance
EEYESE S 1 operations TTEEH R
KBROZEREE e Industry conference and seminars

(FEZN - YL

Suppliers/partners

e Long-term partnership

Tendering process

HEn, SR REBHRFR BIR B2
® Honest co-operation e Regular meeting
HERAE EHEgER
e Fair and open e Strategic cooperation
NS SUN EMEIE
e Risk reduction e Synergetic development
P (K el e T A 35 F
Customers e Safe and high-quality products e Customer service hotline
zP ZEhEmEZER B IRIGE AR
e Business ethics e After-sales service
[HESEE E R RS
e Member activities
g28EY
Public and communities e Social responsibilities e Various charity projects
NI Ean HEEME BEHEAREEER
e  Community involvement e Concern on environmental impact
ad=t BTRERE

The public welfare brand “Love
China" of the Group
REE [Z209E] W mma
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

() ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

The Group only sells and markets our licensed products
under our Direct-supply Model. The Group believes that our
Direct-supply Model enables us to streamline our distribution
and supply chain by eliminating or reducing intermediaries
and enhance distribution efficiency and profitability, as
well as reducing environmental emissions in sale process.
The Group does not directly participate in manufacturing
drugs, and there is no productive resource consumption for
the Group. The Group actively responds to environmental
issues and is committed to reducing the impact of business
on the environment in its day-to-day operations through a
series of policies and measures. The following are the main
policies and measures of the Group for the implementation
of environmental protection.

Reduce Emission

In respect of drug storage, the Group abides by Good
Supplying Practice (“GSP") as required by competent authority
of China, the primary productive consumption is limited to the
use of electricity. In terms of transportation, the Group mainly
relies on third party transportation agencies in the process
of purchase. Under the conditions permitting, the Group will
give priority to cooperation with local suppliers to reduce
the energy consumption of the transportation process. Only
ordinary office work and storage and delivery of goods will
involve usage and consumption of resources of the Group

with a small portion of use of its own vehicles.
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BRI - HERERHRE

The pollutant emission generated by use

of vehicles of the

AN 5E (B FH BB T E AL 55 SR

Group J
Emission indicators
(emission/revenue RMB million)
HEHEREE
(B WHEAREBET)
For the year
Emission During ended 30 June
Reporting items Emission types during the Year the Year 2021
HE-ZT——F
HREER ERER KEEHHRE XEE ANA=HAHLTFE
Vehicle travelling 8175 Nitrogen oxides A& (L#I(NOx) 7437 kg T3 0.584 1.117
Vehicle travelling B#i7T5 Particulate matter %) 63,346.4 pcs I 50 98
Automotive fuel BBEFAKL  Sulphur oxides BiE/L#1(SOx) 1.3kg T 0.001 0.002
Automotive fuel KL Carbon dioxide —&Ek(CO,) 213,069.5 kg T2 167.3 325.2
Reduction of Greenhouse Gas Emission BB EREHERK
e  Reduction of business trips o AN EFER
The Group understands that long travelling for business NEB (MEEEREERBDIE
trips will increase energy consumption and lead to an NREESEE @ MmN =R 2 HE
increase in greenhouse gas emissions. Consequently, W B AR E B R AR D =
the Group actively reduces the number of business MRS RAEMEARSNERS
trips and alternatively uses other effective means of F o EATEEe R AEe IR

communication by teleconference or video conference

to replace meetings and trainings which need long

travelling.

o Promotion of Environmental Protection Education to °

Stakeholders

At present, the Group engages various manufacturers

of pharmaceutical products and health care products

to manufacture our licensed products according to the

design and packing requirements specified by the Group.

The Group is committed to promoting the importance of

energy-saving and emission reduction to its manufacturers

and, therefore, the requirements on the manufacturers

should comply with national environmental protection

regulations and to use environmental friendly material

on packaging to the greatest extent. Among which, the

manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all

necessary licenses, permits and certification.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group raises employees’ awareness of environmental
protection through induction training and slogan.
Moreover, training procedures are formulated to
incorporate the concept of environmental protection into
the employee’s annual training program, which ensures
effective implementation of the relevant energy-saving
and emission reduction measures.

Resource Usage

Save electricity and water

The Group actively advocates the concept of “green
office” and implements a series of measures to save
energy in the office, including cultivating the energy-
saving awareness of employees and encouraging them to
save electricity and water voluntarily such as turning off
the power immediately after use and setting a reasonable
temperature of air conditioner, and reduce wastage.

Save paper

In daily operation, the Group actively promotes the
electronic use of documents, uses computer archives
instead of paper documents, and implements paperless
office as much as possible to reduce the use of paper
office supplies. The Company encourages shareholders
to support environmental protection by receiving the
corporate communication in electronic form of the
Company in the future. Meanwhile, the Group requires
employees to use double-sided printing and recycle used
paper that has been used on one side.

B HERERESE

AEEBB AR RMEER
AERITEINRERER - LAS
ERIIREF  BRBEREBHA
B THFEHFIIF ST - BERAR
BRA BE LR o

BERERA

A E ~ K

AEEBEBRES EeRA ] B
B—RIERBNERRAEER
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PETBEEEE - fiKk M
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The management has regularly reviewed resource use policies
and usage, and does not find violations of waste.

ABREEBREEZERERLAT FERE2021/22 31



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI HERERES

32

The resources usage on operation of the Group

Resources usage

Usage amount during the Year

AL B £ BRI AR E BN

Resources usage amount indicators
(Usage amount/revenue RMB million)
BEREAEER
(FHE W AR¥EET)

For the year ended

30 June 2021
HE-_T——F

During the Year

EREH rEEFERE rEE ANA=tHILEFE
Electricity & 852,180 degree [& 669.1 774.5
Petrol JAJH 90,284 litre AF+ 70.9 137.8
Water 7K 6,556 m® ;773K 5.1 7.7
The Environment and Natural Resources BERRXRER

The Company acknowledges that climate change and RRARAER - BRI RERERE A

resource shortages pose a major threat to human survival
and development. As an enterprise relying on the raw
material supply chain, the Company is fully aware of the
need to understand and manage the impact of these risks
on operations.

The Company supports the transition to a low-carbon
economy. The Company is working hard to understand and
reduce our environmental impact and carbon footprint,
which means cutting down the demand for energy and water
resources, reducing waste and improving operations.

The Company formulated series of policies for energy and
water conservation, which offer more specific advice and
measures on management to employees.
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Measure

EaE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRSE

Measure details

BRAR

Green office
BERAE

Encouraging paperless office for electronic documentation
SEEA IR FBEFE

Setting air conditioners to keep the temperature at 25T
REZRRERER25E

Turning off unused equipment or lighting system

BIEAAERORBEREARS

Green operation
REEE

For the non-hazardous solid waste, such as domestic waste and waste
packaging, etc., the Group will deliver them to Health Authority for handling
to prevent environmental pollution upon collection

AEEHEASEZERNEZRNME  AINEENRREZDENSE SR AEEDM
BRIB - B USRS A ERIR

Some unqualified products found in product test and the obsolete drugs
produced during the storage are destroyed under the supervision of the
quality department

HEMRATER - LI aRaREERELNBADRERN S - £ESHMINEET
BRI HE

Promoting environmental protection to
manufacturers and green purchase

MELET HERRR LA R

Complying with environmental protection laws and regulations as well as
the environmental protection standards of the Group

BNRRERER RAEER R RER T AOIRE

Choosing local suppliers at priority and manufacturing licensed brand
products based on design and packaging requirements prescribed by the
Group when meeting the Company's requirements

ENEARRZRERAT - BEZ BN MAEERIZRASETANRT RBRERE

SETR HE m R EE

Providing environmental protection
training to employees
[ 8 THREGRRIET

Providing environmental protection training for new joiners

Hg R AR 8 TIREHRRET

Actively reducing the number of business trips and encouraging employees
to use teleconferences or video conferences instead of meetings which
need long travelling

BRI EEERAY  SBETEAEASAARAERNRRENRLESR

Encouraging employees to reduce the use of vehicles

BB TR ERER

Warehouse Construction BfER

The Group builds a logistics warehouse to analyze information REBZBMRER  BBRRICER
through modern system management, and realize the ERESMEN BRYRORIEAL - A
generalizable, controllable, intelligent and informative = B8k BfME — T ERESE
logistics, on the one hand, to improve the turnover rate and BHEEXFERE - S— T EEEY
accuracy of warehouse; on the other hand, to reduce logistics MR AR FHE R R - BB FRREY
cost and improve operation efficiency, so as to reduce RIBEKNE - IRR0EFNE  BR
environmental pressure as a whole, improve corporate profits FEENHEEE  SLEEWRE T
and realize more abundant social values. These infrastructure, B EERMTEeRAERHEEA
management experience and expertise will be fully opened F - BEEES ERH - FRIEYIRACA -

to partners, enabling partners to reduce logistics costs.
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BRI HERERES

(1) WORKING ENVIRONMENT

34

Employee and Labor Standards

As of 30 June 2022, the Group had 3,396 employees, of which
99.7% located in mainland China.

The Group is in strict compliance with local employment
laws and regulations, including but not limited to Chapter
57 Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Labor Law of
the PRC, Labor Contract Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on
Protection of Minors, Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child
Labor (State Council Order No. 364) and Special Provisions on
Labor Protection of Females (State Council Order No. 619):

1 labor wages, overtime pay and related benefits in
compliance with the requirement of local minimum wage;

2 holiday andlegal holiday in compliance with the provisions
of the state;

3 equal treatment to every employee, without influence of
employee’s nationality, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political parties, marital status
and other social identity on employment, payment,
promotion, etc; and

4 implementation of integrated computation man-hour in
compliance with the requirements of labor law.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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The working hours applied to the staff of the Group are in
compliance with the relevant requirements of the employment
laws and regulations. The Group's all businesses are prohibited
from employing child labor or forced labor. The Group has
complied with relevant laws and regulations of prevention of
child and compulsory labor. We perform strict examination
in the process of recruitment to avoid hiring child labor in
any workplace. Furthermore, we will hold regular meeting
with management of all departments to review whether there
exists forced labor and also understand the situation from
the employees. Any detected employment of child labor or
forced labor will be dealt with seriously, such as stopping the
work of child labor, criticism and reduction of wages or bonus
of the person in charge of the recruitment, as the case may
be, with respect to related department and even dismissal

in severe cases.

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide ideal working environment to its staff.
Further, the Group’s compensation structure is designed to
incentivize its employees to perform well by linking a portion
of their compensation to their performance and the overall
performance of the Group. The Group has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of enhancing cohesion and maintaining competitiveness.

Te Miam
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BRI HERERES

Total number of employees by gender, category and age

IR - 1B BIRE R F e fI|&) 77 60 1B

group BHaZ
Age group Number at Number at
Gender Category (years old) 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
R-B-—fF RZZT=—F
ANA=+H NA=1H
gzl kil FHeAR (5%) A AE
Female Management 50 or above
gogid EEAB 503k A £ 44 43
40-49 85 94
30-39 33 56
18-29 9 11
General staff 50 or above
—MRET 503k A 228 286
40-49 1,072 1,542
30-39 1,038 1,935
18-29 336 775
Male Management 50 or above
St EIEAR 508k A £ 43 41
40-49 46 60
30-39 23 54
18-29 10 10
General staff 50 or above
—RET 503k A = 40 43
40-49 197 234
30-39 175 345
18-29 17 57
Total
e 3,396 5,586
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Employee turnover rate by gender, category and age group

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRSE

BRALLF

Employee
Age group  turnover rate

IR - 1B B IR R F il F&) 77 1y 18

Employee turnover

rate for the
year ended

Gender Category (years old) for the Year (%) 30 June 2021 (%)
BE-_T-—F
TEE SA=THLEFE
4 5l EFid) FHE R (%) K= (%) MR L R (%)
Female Management 50 or above
i BEEAR 503k A £ 0.0 0.0
40-49 10.1 2.1
30-39 51.7 1.8
18-29 20.0 16.7
General staff 50 or above
—mRET 508k A £ 22.6 0.0
40-49 36.0 0.0
30-39 60.3 0.8
18-29 79.0 6.5
Male Management 50 or above
SM EIEAB 503k A £ 0.0 0.0
40-49 24.8 3.3
30-39 80.5 0.0
18-29 0.0 0.0
General staff 50 or above
—%RET 503k A £ 7.2 0.0
40-49 17.2 0.0
30-39 65.4 34
18-29 108.1 21.9
48.8 0.5
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Health and Safety

The Group establishes management policies and procedures
for human resources, formulates system of occupational health
and safety and takes various steps, aiming to provide the
employees with an ideal and safe working environment. For
this purpose, the Group also persists in putting resources on
improving occupational safety and environmental protection
awareness as well as employee development. Our Code
of Business Conduct, available in the staff handbook,
communicates to our employees the Group's emphasis on
ethical business conduct. The Code of Business Conduct
applies to all employees and covers areas including, among
other things, health, safety and financial integrity, etc.

Working Environment

The Group assesses safety of working environment. The Group
implements relevant national regulations on occupational
safety and social insurance and formulates corresponding
operating rules to manage and control the health and safety
hazards posed to the employees, and also formulates relevant
contingency and precautionary measures. For example, in
business premises and offices, the Group provides relevant
staff with necessary labor protection resources, white gowns
for salesperson and the necessary education on computer
operation and water and electricity safety. Moreover, the
Group regularly monitors the compliance status including fire-
fighting equipment and regular cleaning of the air conditioning
system and replacement of relevant components to ensure
good in-door air quality for protection of employees’ health.
The Group should report and supervise rectification in event
of non-compliant situation. In terms of labor insurance, the
Group provides social insurance for employees, including
employment injury insurance. In terms of commercial
insurance, Directors and senior management are insured of
liability insurance.

Work-Life Balance

The Group is not just concerned with the occupational health
and safety of the employees; it is also concerned with the
psychological well-being and need of private life of the
employees. Hence, the Group devises various categories
of leaves relating to an employee’s family life, and makes
provision for early leave, flexible vacation, etc. to align
with the roles of an employee in his/her family. In addition,
the Group will arrange a variety of activities to ease the
employees’ pressure and enrich employees’ life outside of
work, such as arrangement of festival celebration activities,
sport competitions, etc.
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During the Year, no work-related death or injury occurred with
respect to any employees within the Group.

Development and Training

The Group has implemented a number of initiatives to
enhance the productivity of our employees. Among which,
Jintian Institute is an internal training institution first set up in
the industry, and subsequently introduced to China Business
School Education Group Limited, which established in Hong
Kong and is also our training institution.

Jintian Institute (also named as “Jintian School”)

Jintian Institute is an in-house training and development
centre, providing systematic and comprehensive training to
our employees as well as our important distribution customers
periodically. These training courses focus on the promotion
of employee’s sales skills and deepening the understanding
of enterprise culture of the Group. Jintian Institute provides
certain training programmes and courses covering various
aspects of business operations of the Group, including but not
limited to, medical and nutrition knowledge, store operations
and procedures, sales and marketing techniques, customer
interaction and service skills. Jintian Institute also provides
training to our management team in areas such as business
process and planning, leadership development, effective
communication and management skills. Another key function
of the Jintian Institute is to organise events and seminars to
promote corporate values of the Group: goal- orientation,
teamwork and collectivism. In the meanwhile, the Group
also provides continuous training for Directors and senior
management on relevant laws and regulatory update as well
as business matters related to the Group, to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

These trainings include seminars and workshop on leadership
development, corporate governance practices as well as
regulatory development and requirements. Through these
training programmes, our employees are able to master
standard operating procedures of the Group, communicate
effectively with customers and acquire a better understanding
of customers’ preferences. Jintian Institute also helps us to
build an experienced, loyal and focused workforce.
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During the Year, the Group provided 13 sessions of training to
employees through Jintian Institute with up to 253 participants,
with an aim to make active efforts for improving staff quality
and management performance, and adapt to the new norm
of the economic development.

Details for employees receiving training from Jintian Institute

REE  AEERBEAPBRAIES
RH1IGET - 2HARZE253A - T8
BENRFAETEEZMERERN - L@
ERBERRERE -

EEZ X KB SBbigiliE Rk

Participants during

Participants the year ended

Category during the Year 30 June 2021
BE-T——F

~NA=+H

IEFE

kWl AEEZIANR ZANAR
Senior Management Personnel &R EIEA B 7 24
Middle Management Personnel F#REIE A B 27 130
Salespersons ¥ A8 219 3,075
Total &&f 253 3,229

Encouragement for External Learning

While conducting internal training actively, the Group
also encourages its employees to participate in exams for
external higher education and professional qualification. By
sharing the resource of the Jintian Institute, we organize
employees to participate in the exams of licensed pharmacists,
undergraduate and postgraduate etc., encourage employees
to promote themselves from different aspects, and improve
business skills and comprehensive quality, etc.

Peer/Industry Associations

China Medical Pharmaceutical Material Association (4 B & %%
Y& #&) was established in 1989, which was a national, non-
profit making social entities Class | corporate organization
approved to be registered by the Ministry of Civil Affairs of
the PRC (# B R BX &B). Business supervisory unit is State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of The
State Council. The Chairman, Mr. Jin Dongtao is vice chairman
of the China Medical Pharmaceutical Material Association.
The Group's senior management and employees participate
in the training and offline activities of the association on an
irregular basis.
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(111) OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT

Supply Chain Management

In order to enhance operation and management, the Group
works on simplifying the supply chain management; as well
as diversifying supplier channels to reduce purchase cost and
building a structure that combines upstream and downstream
through mergers and acquisitions. Out of all the Group's
suppliers, 402 are manufacturers and 666 are distributors. For
the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, 27.8% and 27.5%
products were purchased directly from the manufacturers
respectively.

Product Quality and Safety

For the responsibility in product sales, the Group pays
attention to the quality management, complaint handling
and customer privacy protection.

At present, the Group engages several manufacturers
of pharmaceutical products and health care products
to manufacture our licensed products according to the
design and packing requirements specified by us. All the
manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all
necessary licenses, permits and certification, including Good
Manufacturing Practice Certification. The Group also requires
suppliers to meet the national Good Manufacturing Practice.
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The Group strictly implemented the national GSP in the storage
and transportation of products, assigned special personnel to
supervise temperature and humidity and established effective
period warning mechanism for the purpose of strengthening
quality control. The Group strengthened the maintenance and
protection of intellectual property rights. In the procurement
procedures, we strictly follow the requirements of GSP and
require suppliers to avoid infringement of intellectual property
rights of third parties; otherwise, the liability for tort shall be
borne by the relevant supplier. The Group also strengthened
quality controls, promptly notify the supplier of any breakage
or other fault of products found during acceptance check and
require relevant supplier or transportation operator to make
compensation after distinguishing their respective liabilities.
The Group strengthened the management of product
circulation, in case quality issues with products were found, the
Group will take down from shelves and recall those products
in time according to the notice of competent authority and
notify the supplier to make compensation as agreed. In
addition, we strictly protect the privacy of consumer, all of
the members and consumers data will be under computer
encryption process. The Group also requires allied unit of
different industry (if any) to protect consumer privacy. In case
of adverse drug reaction, the Group will report to competent
authority of the industry upon receipt of any feedback from
customers.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to promoting ethical business
practices and full compliance with the law wherever we do
business. There are strict internal guidelines within the Group
which prohibit the employees’ involvement in illegal activities,
such as bribery, extortion, money laundering and fraud. The
Group often participates in the training plans provided through
Jintian Institute, which allows our employees to possess rich
experiences in many aspects of Direct-supply Model, such
as medical product manufacturing, purchasing and quality
control, pharmacy operation and marketing.
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The Group has in place a "whistle-blowing” policy and system
for our employees to report suspected criminal acts including
corruption, money laundering and fraud. During the Year,
there is no corruption case reported, or legal case regarding
corrupt practices or money laundering brought against the
Group.

(Iv) COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION/PUBLIC WELFARE

In order to increase the participation in social activities, the
Group endeavors to launch more activities for community
members and promote the development of public welfare
brand “Love China”. At the same time, the Group strives to
strengthen corporate governance and integrate its corporate
development with public welfare philosophy.

The Group is committed to creating sustainable development
value in economic, social and environmental aspects to fulfil
its corporate social responsibility and achieve long-term
sustainable growth of shareholder value. The management
of the Group reviews the policy implementation, monitors
and measures the progress from time to time to ensure its
stated goals achieved in an effective manner.

In order to expand membership base, we propagandize
membership programme through a variety of marketing
campaigns and also plans to strengthen the analysis of
members’ consumption patterns and preferences so as to
optimize the retail marketing strategy. At the same time,
we continue to increase the number of online members
through smart platforms such as applets. We will continue
to provide members with diversified incremental services, for
example, free drug delivery, and free consultation provided
to community through the Business Institute, free testing
provided to community residents by medical team, etc., and
constantly improve the service level.
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Member Activities

During the Year, the branches of the Group intensified
member activities, including ongoing member discounts and
festival activities, provision of cold shelters in winter, provision
of shelter and other support for the lost child as well as
other social value-added services, which further improved the
cohesion of the members and their willingness to consume.
As of 30 June 2022, we had approximately 1.5 million offline
members, the average consumption of members reached
RMB122 and the Group held 162 sessions of membership
activities in total.

Love China Public Welfare Activities (/04 Bl 2 # 5 B)

Aixin Chuanbo (Beijing) Wenhua Fazhan Zhongxin* (B /[\M%
FEEER) X LB R L) was established in 2011 for welfare
activities "Love + Health”, which was the nationwide fitness
and Love program under the name of “Love” and composed
of a series of commonweal undertakings, such as “Nationwide
Fitness Programme” of body building exercise, “Support and
Assist Students and Teachers Programme” caring for the
next generation, and “Programme of Army Wife Employment
Base” aim at supporting national defense, all of which were
designed to pass on China's five thousand years of culture,
carry forward the spirit of love Party and patriotism, advocate
healthy philosophy of charity and spread healthy culture of
caring others. Love China activities are committed to building
the platform for the interaction and communication among
government, media, enterprises and charities, through which
we develop public welfare undertaking, converge love,
promote physical and mental health in the society and forge
Love China and Love World. The public welfare brand “Love
China” constitutes the best platform for the Group to fulfill
its social responsibility.

During the Year, the Group made some medication donations.

In conclusion, the Group has been always adhered to the
environmental protection concept of environment caring
and sustainable development; while the management
strengthening corporate governance to achieve the best
operating practices with the combination of governance and
efficiency, actively assuming community responsibilities and
building the public welfare brand “Love China” as the best
platform for fulfillment of social responsibilities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Board has pleasure in presenting the Report of the Directors
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in the distribution and retail
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group
during the Year is set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 115 to 116 of this
annual report.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key financial performance indicators of the Group for the Year
are set out in the sections of “Financial Summary” and “Financial
Highlights” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

During the Year, the Group has maintained a good relationship
with its stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES THE GROUP FACING

The principal risk and uncertainties the Group facing are set out in
the sections of “Chairman’s Statement”, "Management Discussion
and Analysis” and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2021: Nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations and subject to the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”). Provided there are
distributable profits and without affecting the operations of the
Group, the Company may consider declaring and paying dividends
to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, included but not limited to: (i) the general financial
condition of the Group; (ii) working capital and debt level of the
Group; (iii) future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders; (v) the general market conditions; and (vi) any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review and outlook of the Group for the Year is set
out in the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Under the First Subscription, the Company allotted and issued
an aggregate of 77,262,689 Shares with aggregate nominal value
of US$212,472 at the subscription price of HKD0.135 per Share
(net subscription price per Share: approximately HKDO0.132) to a
total of four subscribers, namely Li Peng, Cui Tianhao, Hu Jian
and Gao Rui, all are independent third-parties, for the purpose
of raising general working capital of the Group. As at the date of
entering into the relevant subscription agreements (i.e. 29 October
2021), the price per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange was
HKDO.142. A net proceeds of approximately HKD10.2 million was
raised under the First Subscription which has been fully utilised
as general working capital of the Group.
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Further, under the Second Subscription, the Company allotted and
issued an aggregate of 92,715,226 Shares with aggregate nominal
value of US$250,000 at the subscription price of HKD0.150 per
Share (net subscription price per Share: approximately HKDO.147),
to a total of four subscribers, namely Sun Pinghao, Dong Lixin,
Yu Haixu and Li Shen, all are independent third-parties, for the
purpose of raising general working capital of the Group. As at the
date of entering into the relevant subscription agreements (i.e. 23
May 2022), the price per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
was HKDO.160. A net proceeds of approximately HKD13.6 million
was raised under the Second Subscription.

Since many countries were adversely affected and China is facing
challenges to combat the outbreak of Omicron variant. Under
the zero-tolerance strategy, the local governments in the PRC
implemented stringent measures to control the Epidemic. In light
of the above, the intended use of the proceeds raised under the
First Subscription and the Second Subscription would mainly focus
on the following aspects:

The Company intends to apply such net proceeds for general
working capital for the Group to secure its operating cash flow,
including paying off costs incurred from store operation and
replenishing the Group’s inventory of anti-epidemic items. The
Company wishes to prepare for the future outbreak of Covid-19
and stock up anti-epidemic items in advance which will be essential
for combating the Epidemic by the general public, take for instance
disinfection products and products for improving immune system.
The Board is of the view that replenishing such products can
increase the competitiveness and fulfil social responsibility of the
Group.
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As at 30 June 2022, the net proceeds raised under the First RZZ FRNA=1+H FXREBEBEE
Subscription and the Second Subscription was utilised for the Z—ARBHNEEESFEARUTAR !

following purpose:

Net proceeds

Net proceeds
used during the

Net proceeds

Expected
timeframe for
application of
the unutilized

Use of proceeds available Year unused proceeds
AR SEHEERARS RERFE ERRERFRE

FrisRERSE BREF I RIEEHE REMEE AR

The First Subscription

FE—RBE

General working capital:

—REEES

Paying off the costs incurred from replenishing

the Group's inventory of anti-epidemic items

ARAE B RR YT & ME SRR 10.2 HKD million  10.2 HKD million - N/A
BEET BEET TER

Total 4% : 10.2 HKD million  10.2 HKD million -
BEBT BEABT

The Second Subscription

EZRRE

General working capital:

Paying off costs incurred from store operation

SPGB i A ROAK AR 2.5 HKD million 2.5 HKD million - N/A
BEET ABET TER

Paying off the costs incurred from replenishing

the Group's inventory of anti-epidemic items

BAREBORRY) miF & MEE KA 11.1 HKD million  11.1 HKD million - N/A
BEBT BEAT i

Total &% : 13.6 HKD million  13.6 HKD million -
BEETL ABET

RAEE @ SRS BBIRR A KER
FHEIREER -

During the Year, the proceeds were fully utilised and used in line
with the previously disclosed plan.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

One of the fundamental tasks of the senior management of the
Group is leading the Group to protect the environment. The Group,
as a corporate citizen, fulfills social responsibility, strengthens
corporate governance, promotes healthy and orderly development
of the Group, and further creates economic value and social
benefits for clients, upstream suppliers, downstream distributors,
Shareholders, potential investors, management, employees,
communities and even the environment and other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Monday, 12 December 2022 (the “2022 AGM").

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 7 December 2022, to Monday, 12 December 2022,
both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the 2022 AGM. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6
December 2022.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages 255 to
256 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the purchase from the Group’s five largest
suppliers contributed 8.3% of the total cost of sales and the sale
to the Group's five largest customers contributed 7.7% of the
total revenue.

Save as disclosed hereinafter, none of the Directors or any of
their respective close associates or, so far as the Directors were
aware, any Shareholder who owned 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2022, had any interest in
any of our five largest suppliers or customers for the years ended
30 June 2022 and 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out on page 117 and in Note
37(b) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law of the Cayman Island, amounted to approximately
RMB358.9 million (2021: RMB549.2 million).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year up to the date of this annual report

were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman)
(Resigned as chief executive officer on 1 August 2021)
Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman)
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chief operation officer)
(Appointed as executive Director and
chief executive officer on 1 August 2021)
Mr. Zhao Zehua
Mr. Sun Libo (Resigned as executive Director on
1 August 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Zou Haiyan

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Article of Association, any
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible for re-election at that meeting; and in accordance with
Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, at every annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM"), one- third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Jiu Dongkun, Mr. Zhao Zehua and Mr. Zou Haiyan
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 89 to 98 of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers
such Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’
APPOINTMENT

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF

As at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors has service contract or
letter of appointment which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has entered into any contract of significance for the provision of
services by any controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was
a party or were parties and in which a Director or any entities
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 36 and Note 28(a) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the Year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, save as disclosed in the interim report of the
Company for the six mouths ended 31 December 2021, there was
no change in information of the Directors which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained
by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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Name of Director

Nature of Interest

Number and
class of Shares/
underlying Shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding?”

B4, HH A 17 BAFR
Es=pg ERMtE HEREH Bak”
Jin Dongtao Interest of a controlled corporation 90,701,495 16.30%
(Long Position)
CHRE R EE (&FE)
Beneficial owner 7,166,801@ 1.29%
(Long Position)
EnEAA (4FE)
Interest of spouse 723,4009 0.13%
(Long Position)
iR iy (4F%&)
Zhao Zehua Beneficial owner 723,400 0.13%
(Long Position)
= BExEAA (4F&)
Jin Dongkun Beneficial owner 580,000® 0.10%
(Long Position)
SHRE EmBEEA (4F&)
Chu Chuanfu Beneficial owner 100,000 0.02%
(Long Position)
Nl= EmBEEA (#FE)
Cheng Sheung Hing Beneficial owner 50,000¢ 0.01%
(Long Position)
HEE EnEAA (&5 E)
Chiang Su Hui Susie Beneficial owner 50,000¢ 0.01%
(Long Position)
TR EnEABA (FE)
Zou Haiyan Beneficial owner 50,0009 0.01%
(Long Position)
ST EmfEEA (FE)
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Notes:

Such interest is beneficially held by Asia Health Century International Inc. (“Asia Health”)
which is ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Jin Dongtao and as such, he is deemed to be
interested in all the interest held by Asia Health under the SFO.

Such interest includes 6,886,801 Shares and share options convertible into 280,000 Shares.

Such interest is beneficially held by Ms. Chen Xiaoyan, the spouse of Mr. Jin Dongtao,
which includes 443,400 Shares and share options convertible into 280,000 Shares. Mr. Jin
Dongtao is deemed to be interested in all the interest held by Ms. Chen Xiaoyan under
the SFO.

Such interest includes 443,400 Shares and share options convertible into 280,000 Shares.
Such interest includes 300,000 Shares and share options convertible into 280,000 Shares.
Such interest represents share options convertible into 50,000 Shares.

The approximate percentage was calculated based on 556,291,360 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors

and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to

have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept

under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder passed on 18 November 2013 and amended on
20 December 2018 for the purpose of attracting skilled and
experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with
the Group and to motivate them to contribute for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with
the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company, as well
as for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years until 17 November 2023.

The refreshed maximum number of shares that can be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of share options which may be
granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
is 38,631,344 being 10% of the total number of issued Shares
as at the date of passing of the resolution approving the said
refreshment at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 10 December 2020. Together with the total of 22,470,000
outstanding share options granted in September 2017 and in
March 2019, representing approximately 5.82% of the total number
of issued Shares, the Company will be allowed to allot and issue
a maximum of 61,101,344 Shares (representing approximately
10.98% of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report),
upon the exercise of share option which may be/have been granted
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

The Company granted a total of 30,000,000 share option (the
“Share Options 2019") to 50 eligible participants which include
7 Directors and an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of an
executive Director on 4 March 2019 exercisable from 4 April 2019
to 3 April 2029. 275,300,000 options under the Share Options 2019
have been exercised, remaining 24,700,000 options outstanding.
Rule 17.03(5) of the Listing Rules requires that the exercise period
of option must not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant instead of the commencement date of the exercise period.
The resolution approving the shortening of exercise period (from 3
April 2029 to 3 March 2029) has been passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2020, such that the
term of the Share Options 2019 complies with the Listing Rules.
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Besides, in order to encourage long-term commitment to the
Company and to align the interests of Directors and certain
employees with the Company's development, the resolution
approving the extension of exercise period (from 11 October
2020 to 11 September 2027) has been passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2020, such that
the term of the Share Options 2017 aligns with that of the Share
Options 2019.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, all principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme remain unchanged and are set out in
Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 2 December
2013.

Particulars of Share Options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the Year and Share
Options granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year are as follows:
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Number of Share Options*
ERRUE
Lapsed/
Closing price Granted  Exercised  cancelled QOutstanding
per share  Exercise price Outstanding as  during the ~ during the  during the as at
Grantees Date of grant (Note 1) per option  Exercise period at 1/7/2021 Year Year Year 30/6/2022
WEFE  WoRICE
SRROKTE  SHBREL R=B=-% REEE  BAH/ RAZTA
BRA RiAH (1) € TEHE tA-BHAGE REEERH Bfife pis HALTE
HKD HKD
AT AT
Director & substantial shareholder
EERIERR
Jin Dongtao 12/9/2017 157 1648 121072017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
£RE B EAATCR TELETATORE
Z2oHEAAT-R
Directors
g2
Jin Dongkun 121912017 1.57 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 260,000
LRR B EAATZR TEETATORE
“2oEEAAT-R
Zhao Zehua 12/9/2017 1.57 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
BEE “E-tFAATCR E-tFAT-AE
_y_tiﬂﬂ+ B
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Number of Share Options*
BHRRUE
Lapsed/
Closing price Granted  Exercised cancelled Outstanding
per share  Exercise price Outstanding as  during the ~ during the  during the as at
Grantees Date of grant (Note 1) per option  Exercise period at 1/7/2021 Year Year Year 30/6/2022
WEFE  RoRIE
SREGUTE  SHEREZ it REEE  BAH/ ~A=TH
ARA RHAH (it1) R HE4E tA-RHAGE REEERH Bfife it WAL
HKD HKD
AT AT
Sun Libo (resigned on 1 12/9/2017 157 1.648 121072017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
August 2021)
Bif (W-3——F —3-tFAATZR “ELETAToRE
NA—BEHE) R HEART-R
Cheng Sheung Hing ~~ 4/3/2019 083 0.74  4/4/2019 - 3/3/2029 50,000 - - - 50,000
ger “E-NEzARA “2-hENARAZE
“Z-NE=R=R
Chiang Su Hui Susie ~ 4/3/2019 083 0.74 41412019 - 3/3/2029 50,000 - - - 50,000
L “Z-NE=ANEA “E-)EMARAE
ZBoNE=R=H
Associate of Director
N
Chen Xiaoyan (the spouse 12/9/2017 157 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
of Jin Dongtao)
RES (ERELHE) —F-tFAATCA T2 tETATCRE
Z2oHEART-R
Continuous contract ~12/9/2017 157 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 18,600,000 - - - 18,600,000
employees
RESHES “2tEAATIR “EETATORE
ZECHEART-R
4132019 083 0.74  4/4/2019 - 3/3/2029 2,350,000 - - - 2,350,000
“Z-N\E=AMA “Z-N\EMAMAZ
“E-NE=R=R
Others 4132019 083 0.74 41412019 - 3/3/2029 20,000 - - - 20,000
i Z2-NE=ARA “E2-HEMARAE
“ECNE=A=A
Total 22,470,000 - - - 22,470,000
&t
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The numbers of options, the closing price per Share and the
exercise price per option have been retrospectively adjusted for
the share consolidation on 14 December 2020.

The expiring dates of exercise periods of share options have been
amended and approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 10 December 2020.

Notes:

1) The closing price per Share refers to the closing price of the Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date immediately before the date
on which the Share Options were granted.

The number of Shares has been adjusted as a result of the Share Consolidation.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted the share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 23 April 2014. The purposes of the Share Award Plan
are to recognize the contributions by eligible persons to the
Group and provide them with incentives in order to retain them
for continual operation and development of the Group and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Plan shall be valid and effective for a
term of 10 years commencing from 23 April 2014. With a view to
saving costs, it was resolved by the Board to terminate the Share
Award Plan with effect from 21 December 2020.

The Share Award Plan shall be subject to the administration of
the Board or the administration committee or the trustee of the
Share Award Plan in accordance with its terms. The Board or
the Remuneration Committee may select any eligible person for
participation in the Share Award Plan and determine the number
of awarded shares to be awarded to the selected person(s), subject
to any condition(s).

The Company has initially paid the trustee up to HKD50 million
to enable the Share Award Plan to operate. The Company may
at its discretion make further arrangements to fund the trustee
for acquisition of further shares. Subject to the instruction of the
Company, the trustee can use the money paid to it to buy shares
in advance in respect of which the Company can make awards
under the Share Award Plan.
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The Board shall not make any further award of shares under the
Share Award Plan which will result in the nominal value of the
shares awarded exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 23 April 2014. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Plan in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Based on
the 2,000,000,000 shares in issue as at 23 April 2014, the maximum
number of awarded shares under the Share Award Plan would
be 200,000,000 shares. As retrospectively adjusted for the share
consolidation on 14 December 2020, the maximum number of
awarded shares under the Share Award Plan would be 20,000,000.

An aggregate of 1,699,300 shares has been granted without
consideration to an aggregate of 13 grantees under the Share
Award Plan since its inception. As at 30 June 2022, the trustee of
the Share Award Plan did not hold any shares under the Share
Award Plan, and no share has been granted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

On 29 October 2021, the Company entered into four subscription
agreements with four subscribers for the subscription of an
aggregate of 77,262,689 new Shares at the subscription price of
HKDO.135 per share. Further, on 23 May 2022, the Company entered
into four subscription agreements with four other subscribers for
the subscription of an aggregate of 92,715,226 new Shares at the
subscription price of HKDO0.150 per share.

For details of the above subscription agreements, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2021, 23
May 2022 and 1 June 2022 respectively.

Save for the above subscription agreements, no equity-linked

agreement was entered by the Company or existed during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number and
class of Shares/

Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest underlying Shares shareholding®
B4, MR D BAER
wE/EB B EmtE HERE5 B
Chen Xiaoyan Interest of spouse 97,868,296 17.59%
(Long Position)
PR HF f Bt sn (47 R)
Beneficial owner 723,400@ 0.13%
(Long Position)
ESBEAA (#8&)
Asia Health Beneficial owner 90,701,495 16.30%
(Long Position)
BEmEA A (5B
Notes: His -

EERFENEY

7 £ WBB - MAsia
Healthfﬂmfﬁg% 2EWE - HUBHAR B Asia
Health R & RBEEERTH AN A RSP HEEER ©

% 5 2R 15443, 4008% A% 17 K AT #5442 45280, 000A% A £
RBARHE -

Asia Healthf © R /& %&£ £ & # A #9Global Health

Century International Group Limited([ Global Health |)

1%%% Hit - RIEFHRIAEHD) > Global Health

ﬁ% BEESBHRAESAsia HealthBE A #FT
e

BB DER =T =
556,291,3600% 7T % °

1) Such interest represents all the interest beneficially held by Asia Health and Mr. Jin
Dongtao. As Ms. Chen Xiaoyan is the spouse of Mr. Jin Dongtao and Asia Health is
ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Jin Dongtao, she is deemed to be interested in all the
interest beneficially held by Asia Health and Mr. Jin Dongtao.

2) Such interest includes 443,400 Shares and share options convertible into 280,000 Shares. 2)

3) Asia Health is wholly-owned by Global Health Century International Group Limited (“Global 3)
Health”) which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Jin Dongtao. As such, each of Global Health
and Mr. Jin Dongtao is deemed to be interested in all the interest beneficially held by
Asia Health under the SFO.

—FRNA=ZTHBEHTRG

4) The approximate percentage was calculated based on 556,291,360 Shares in issue as at 4)
30 June 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed

securities.

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 19 November 2021, the Company allotted and issued a total of
77,262,689 new Shares to four subscribers, who are independent
third parties, under general mandate at the subscription price
HKDO.135 per Share i.e. the First Subscription. The newly issued
Shares represent approximately 16.7% of the total issued shares
of the Company as enlarged by the newly issued Shares. Net
proceeds of approximately HKD10.2 million were raised under
the First Subscription.

On 7 June 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
92,715,226 new Shares to four subscribers, who are independent
third parties, under general mandate at the subscription price
HKDO.15 per Share i.e. the Second Subscription. The newly issued
Shares represent approximately 20.0% of the total issued shares
of the Company as enlarged by the newly issued Shares. Net
proceeds of approximately HKD13.6 million were raised under
the Second Subscription.

For details of the First Subscription and the Second Subscription,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29
October 2021, 23 May 2022 and 1 June 2022 respectively. As at 30
June 2022, the Company had a total of 556,291,360 shares in issue.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/her/its compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”).

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition, the independent non-
executive Directors are responsible for reviewing and considering
whether exercising any option and/or pre-emptive right (where
applicable), as well as entitled to conduct annual review of
implementation of the Deed of Non-Competition on behalf of
the Company. The controlling Shareholders have confirmed in
writing to the Company of their compliance with the Deed of
Non- Competition for disclosure in this annual report for the
Year. During the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
have also reviewed the implementation of the Deed of Non-
Competition, and confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have fully abided by the Deed of Non- Competition without any
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or their
respective associates has engaged in or has any interest in any
business which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related parties transactions disclosed in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements, there were no contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding companies and
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group had not entered into any
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions for
the Year which are required to be disclosed in this annual report
pursuant to the Listing Rules. A summary of significant related
party transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the Year is disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made some medication donations.

During the Year, the Group continued to perform its social
responsibility by constantly organizing innovative caring projects,
such as Love China Charity Award Ceremony, Charity In Action,
Love China Medical Support, Love China Education Aid Program
and Love China Square Dance, so as to enhance its recognition
and reputation through charity activities.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zou Haiyan (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to examine, review and monitor the financial data
and financial reporting procedure of the Group, and overseeing
the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee had reviewed the
audited annual results of the Group for the Year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with such
code of conduct throughout the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the Year, except for deviation
from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (reclassified as code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code with effect from 1 January 2022).
The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by

the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 68 to 88 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage
of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as of
the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2022 AGM to re-appoint
Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”), Certified Public Accountants, as
the auditor of the Company.

SHARE ISSUED

Details of the Company’s shares issued during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had issued any of the Company's listed securities.

On behalf of the Board

Jin Dongtao
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 September 2022
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company
has adopted the CG Code as its own code and complied with
all applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout
the Year, except for deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code (reclassified as code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
with effect from 1 January 2022). The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs, the Board
has established three Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman), Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman), Mr.
Zhao Zehua and Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chief executive officer), and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng
Sheung Hing, Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie and Mr. Zou Haiyan. The
biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

For the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise and the number of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report, none of the Directors has
any personal relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director and
the chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as the
identities of the public companies or organisations and the time
involved, Directors have agreed to disclose such commitments (if
any) to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
training and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company's performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
During the Year, all Directors participated in various continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company'’s external lawyers had facilitated directors’
training by the provision of presentations, briefings and materials
for the Directors primarily relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company. All the Directors have
received such training.

The Company maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year
is as follows:

ABRBSEERRE
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ARRIBBEZT2EFEEXRER - UEE
I B EFHA MBS IR - NFEE - 28E
F2HERXBREREXER  UBELEHE
FOMB KRB - RABHINERMRES
RUETBEM LM R RESHB - Bt
BERRL  BHREME - BARESE
Jl - 2REFHEXBULIAET -

ARRRFEZZ BN - AFEE
=2 FIEIFRT

Internal training

A EB I
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Jin Dongtao SHRELRLE v
Mr. Jin Dongkun SRELE v
Mr. Zhao Zehua RIS A v
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Appointed on 1 August 2021) #IlE%E (ER=ZF=—FNA—HZF) v
Mr. Sun Libo (Resigned on 1 August 2021) BOREE (BER=ZFE=Z—FNA—HEFE) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYEHITES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BIEEE LA v
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBX L v
Mr. Zou Haiyan BEMEE v
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code throughout the Year except for a deviation from
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (reclassified as code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code with effect from 1 January 2022).

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (reclassified as
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code with effect from 1 January
2022), the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
The positions of chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company were held by Mr. Jin Dongtao before 1 August 2021. The
Board believes that despite the responsibilities of the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company were vested in
the same person before 1 August 2021, all major decisions were
made in consultation with the Board.

For the sake of corporate governance of the Group, Mr. Jin Dongtao
has resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company and Mr.
Chu Chuanfu has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company with effective from 1 August 2021.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code since 1 August 2021 and, where appropriate, the
applicable recommended best practices of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall
submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and
new Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

The Company has renewed the service contracts or letters of
appointments (as the case may be) with each of the Directors.
All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are appointed without a specific term; however all Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
are subject to re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or the Board committee members
at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for
the meetings. When Directors or the Board committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings
are kept by the company secretary with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which
the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open
for inspection by Directors.

For the Year, Board meetings and general meeting were held and
the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set
out in the table below:
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EEeea N ESREeRRNERLT
AECHRESERESREEMERNER
RFTEZHPRE - BREFR DO ERE
B REZECRNEFTLRERTHENER
CHREHRAKNERRITE ARNAERR
AFTERRES  UWHESFRHERL -EFE
BN GHRLEAIHEESER -

B BRONEFEEMRETAR
FHERSEROERHNTE -

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors = EHERE T ERE
Board Meetings General Meeting
EBEER BRERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman) SHRBLE (FF) 6/6 1/1
Mr. Jin Dongkun SRERE 6/6 11
Mr. Zhao Zehua HEESRL 6/6 1/1
Mr. Chu Chuanfu TNEEE (BER=ZF=—%F
(Appointed on 1 August 2021) NA—HZE) 5/5 1/1
Mr. Sun Libo FR ek (BR=ZF=—F
(Resigned on 1 August 2021) A —HEE) 1/1 N/A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BB S 5/5 11
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie LRFZ+ 5/5 11
Mr. Zou Haiyan e L 5/5 11

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiries has been made with all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

During the Year, the Company had also adopted its own code of
conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model Code for
the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company in
respect of their dealings in the Company's securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, risk management and internal
control systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and
are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company'’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and they are responsible
for the corporate governance duties. The Audit Committee will
develop and review the policies and procedures on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board. The
aforesaid duties include:

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the

Board and report to the Board on matters;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

(f)  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.
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During the Year, the Company has updated the compliance
manuals on notifiable transactions and inside information in
accordance with the Listing Rules as guideline for its employees
to report unpublished inside information to the Company to ensure
consistent and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the Company’s
continuous disclosure obligations.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Jin Dongtao (executive Director), Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing (independent non-executive Director) and Ms. Chiang Su
Hui Susie (independent non-executive Director), the majority of
them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Jin Dongtao
serves as the chairman.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

e To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) required of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

e To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors;

¢ To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors; and

e To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the Year, 1 meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Nomination Committee
members is set out in the table below:

AEE  REZESCHETIREGH B

ZESRRENHFELCHEHENTX

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors BE EHERE TR
Mr. Jin Dongtao SRBLE 1/1
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing B S 1/1
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRFLZ+ 1/1

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, considered
the re-election of the retiring Directors and reviewed the time
commitment required from the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board
diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and is of the view that
the board diversity policy is appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy and summary
of the board diversity policy is set out below:

The Nomination Committee is authorised to formulate nomination
policy for the Board's consideration and implement the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to select and
recommend candidates for directorship. The objectives of the
Board diversity policy are to ensure the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. It
also sets out that all Board members will be appointed based on
merit basis with due consideration to the Board diversity. While
selecting candidates for directorship, the committee has taken
into account of a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience and qualification, skills and knowledge. Currently,
the Board consists of 7 members having expertise in various
aspects of professional knowledge and experience which include
the familiarity with its business model, finance, accounting, taxation
management and compliance, etc. For details, please refer to the
section headed "Directors and Senior Management” in this report
for brief biographies of the Directors.
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In reviewing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
shall give adequate consideration to the Board diversity policy.
The committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members
from different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional
expertise of various industries, which indicates that the diversity
policy has been well implemented. The main responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least once a year and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy, and identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Directors and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
the appointment or re-appointment and succession planning for
the Directors. The committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing (independent non-executive
Director), Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Jin Dongkun (executive Director), the majority
of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Cheng
Sheung Hing serves as the chairman.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for formulating such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her close associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions. It also makes recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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During the Year, 1 meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:

AERE  HHMESRDBTIRNE S - HH
%5 BRSBTS -

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors BE EHERE TR
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BEE AR S A 1/1
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRFBX T 1/1
Mr. Jin Dongkun BREEE 1/1

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed
and reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, and made recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including adjustment on the
remuneration of some senior management for the Year. The
Board has adopted the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee and resolved to approve the aforesaid adjustment.

The remuneration of one senior management of the Company,
whose biography is set out on pages 97 to 98 of this annual
report, falls within the band from RMBO million to RMB1.0 million
for the Year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Zou Haiyan, Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui
Susie, all of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Zou Haiyan serves as the chairman.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company's
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors before submission to
the Board;

e To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor;
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e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company'’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function; and

e To review the Group's financial controls, risk management

and internal control systems.

During the Year, 2 meetings of the Audit Committee were held
and the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is
set out in the table below:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors = EHERE T ERE
Mr. Zou Haiyan 2L A 2/2
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EPEERR e 2/2
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBZ+ 2/2

During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
reporting system, compliance procedures, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function) and
processes and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Board had accepted the recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection and re-appointment of external
auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year as well as
the audit report prepared by the auditor relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit. There are proper
arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
and risk management and other matters. The written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the Year which give a true and fair view
of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group's
results and cash flows.

The senior management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 99 to 112 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
to maintain an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the
Company's assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control
systems are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities
(with relevant authorities) of risk management and internal controls
to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, oversees management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and management has provided a confirmation to the
Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems for the Year.
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Main features of the risk management and internal control systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main responsibilities

of each level of the structure are summarised below:

Board

Determine the business strategies and objectives of the
Group, and evaluate and determine the nature and extent
of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives;

Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems;
and

Oversee management in design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Audit Committee

Assist the Board to perform its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control systems;

Oversee the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis;

Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems at least annually, and such
review should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control;

Ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions,
as well as those relating to ESG performance and reporting;
and

Consider major findings on risk management and internal
control matters, and report and make recommendations to
the Board.
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Management

Review the risk management and internal control policy
and measures and submit them for the Audit Committee’s
approval;

Design, implement and maintain appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems;

Identify, evaluate and manage the risk that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

Monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-
day operations;

Give prompt responses to and follow up the findings on
risk management and internal control matters raised by the
internal audit department; and

Provide confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems.

Internal Audit Department

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems; and

Report to the Audit Committee the findings of the review
and make recommendations to the Board and management
to improve the material systems deficiencies or control
weaknesses identified.

Supervisor and Staff

82

Consider how to conduct their responsibilities in light of
effectiveness of internal control; and

Discuss with management for strengthening internal control.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2021/22

EHEE
o ERRMREIE K ANIPELITBUR RIS
THHEHRERFEXZESH M

o R HEieR#ERAENMARNER
BN ARSI R

o Bl FHEREBAREEECEIER
FEBREEFEZRR
o EREMIKEEHMEERREER

oo,
’-S/*/\ ’

o HANBEZMPIRLARAREERRA
MEREENHAEER @ kD
FE MR ¢ &

U]]D

\

e MEFELERZESRHEAURRE
ﬁ&ﬂqilgﬁlﬁixv IEIEZIZI—ﬁ yﬁ’jﬁﬁwu °

AEBEF % EBFT
s EMNAKERREENAMEZERSE
BRAREN : &

. ﬁ%ﬁéﬁaEﬁ%@ ERUMEFE
EREEHES  UBEREZEX
TEZE&%%EZWTQ%

TERET
o EEINAMREENIEHIE /G WL RETT
BE &

O ujuﬁﬂjJDgﬁW'LBw_Tﬂ °



Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks (include, amongst others, material risks relating to ESG) by
the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e Develop risk management plan; and

e |dentify risks that may potentially affect the Group's business
and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assess the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

e  Consider the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
e  Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e Determine the risk management strategies, contingency plans
and internal control processes to prevent, avoid and mitigate
the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e  Perform ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e Revise the risk management strategies, contingency plans and
internal control processes in case of any significant change
of environment; and

e  Report the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.
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The Board continuously oversees the risk management and internal
control systems, ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually for the reporting period and the period cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
all risk management functions and material internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance control. Based
on its management experience, the Group further strengthened
the establishment of internal audit system, outlined the internal
control functions and enhanced risk management. The Group also
formulated the “Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management
- Hong Kong Branch” ( {REBEL1E K Ak & B FMH(FEE D #)) )to
continuously enhance the level of risk management and internal
controls. The Board therefore considered that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate during the
Year. In addition, it has also reviewed and has satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

Internal Audit Function

The Group's internal audit function is performed by the Group's
internal audit department, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee. The Group's internal audit department plays a major
role in the assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reports directly to
the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

The internal audit department conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures
of the Group at both operational and corporate level. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are identified
and communicated with operations management to address any
issues, non-compliance or deficiencies identified. The internal audit
department monitors the implementation of its recommendations
by the operations management and reports the outcome to the
Audit Committee.
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Handling and dissemination of inside information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the SFO, the Group
has taken various procedures and measures, including arousing
the awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information
with the Group, sending blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions notification to the relevant directors and employees
regularly, disseminating information to specified persons on a
need-to-know basis and regarding closely to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Mazars is the independent auditor of the Company. During the
Year, the professional fees paid or payable to Mazars for services
rendered are set out below:
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e ENER

RMB’000

ARBEFT

Audit services ELTIRTS 1,693
Non-audit services for interim report FEEE RIS — P EIR S 445
Total CEl 2,138

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ge Junming, the sole company secretary of the Company,
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the Year, Mr. Ge Junming has undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

AGM(s) provide opportunity for Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman, the chairmen of the
Board Committees will attend AGM to answer Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor will also attend AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and Shareholders and maintains a website at www.uhighl.com,
where the up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at Shareholders’

meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.
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Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals

Under the Articles of Association, any two or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth (1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meeting, and any one Shareholder
which is a recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meeting, can require an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM") to be called and put forward proposals
at the meeting. The procedures for Shareholders to convene and
put forward proposals at an EGM are stated as follows:

(1) The requisitionist(s) should sign a written request stating
the objects of the meeting to be convened, and deposit the
same at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong situated at Room 2404, 24th Floor, World-Wide
House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the company secretary.

(2) Where, within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Directors do not proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board, provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
2404, 24th Floor, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong or to email address: ir@uhi-group.com.
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS ERBEXH

During the Year, there is no significant change in constitutional ZAFE @ AARNEBENHHEEMERE
documents of the Company. o e

For the purpose of, among other things, (i) conforming the AN (EHERE) (\SRAEBHERMAATE
existing Articles of Association to the Core Shareholder Protection £ = 77 #7 BIl Bff &% = f7 1% /0 B I R AR PR A2
Standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules; (i) reflecting £ ; (i) RBERI EMRBIA KR ERHSEA
certain updates in relation to the Listing Rules and the applicable AR E T8 3 K(ii)fE L E M AHE R A
laws of the Cayman Islands; and (iii) making other consequential 2 * AAREZN - —FHFKRE
and housekeeping improvements, the Company proposes to A& _ERMAFAIBEEZIZ4A] -

adopt a new Articles of Association in the 2022 AGM.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. JIN Dongtao (£ %), aged 53, was appointed as the Chairman
and an executive Director on 12 March 2012 and the chief executive
officer of the Company on 23 March 2017. Mr. Jin has resigned
from being the chief executive officer with effect from 1 August
2021. Mr. Jin is one of the co-founders of the Group and has been
the Chairman since its inception in June 1998. He has substantial
experience in the pharmaceutical retail and distribution sector
and is responsible for setting the strategic vision, direction and
goals of the Group.

Mr. Jin has over 28 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
distribution industry and marketing.

Other experience:

e 2010-September 2014: chairman of the Heilongjiang Alliance
of Pharmaceutical Retailers (2821 %L E5)

e 2012 - present: vice chairman of the China Medical
Pharmaceutical Material Association (71 B8 2 %) & &)

Education:

e July 1991: graduated from Jiamusi United Workers University
(EEAREREE S B T KER)

e December 2010: obtained a Master's degree in Business
Administration in a programme run by United Business
Institutes

Mr. Jin received the National Enterprise Management Specialist
Award by the China National Management Specialist Centre (F
FAREMBEASEHZBEAL RE L) in 2006. He is qualified as a
practising pharmacist in China. He has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.

Mr. Jin Dongtao is the elder brother of Mr. Jin Dongkun, an
executive Director and vice chairman of the Board.
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Mr. JIN Dongkun (£RE), aged 49, was appointed as the vice
chairman of the Board and an executive Director on 12 March
2012. He is one of the co-founders of the Group and has served
as business manager, general manager and vice president of
the Group since June 1998. He is responsible for overseeing the
Group's external affairs and relationships.

Mr. Jin Dongkun has over 23 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical distribution industry and in marketing.

Other experience:

e 2010 - September 2014: vice chairman of the Heilongjiang
Alliance of Pharmaceutical Retailers (B 88)T /55 E8)

e November 2014 - present: vice chairman of the China Medical
Pharmaceutical Material Association (F B %8 Z¥) & 175 =)

Education:

e December 1994: graduated from Harbin Engineering University
(M ERE T2 K2 with a major in Electric Technology

e July2013: obtained a Master's degree in Business Management
in a programme run by the Scandinavian Art and Business
Institute

Mr. Jin Dongkun is qualified as a practising pharmacist and a senior

economist in China. He has not held any directorships in any other

publicly listed companies over the past three years.

Mr. Jin Dongkun is Mr. Jin Dongtao'’s brother.
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Mr. CHU Chuanfu (#1JII &), aged 52, is the chief operation officer
of the Group and has been appointed as an executive Director

and the chief executive officer, with effect from 1 August 2021.
He joined the Group in 1999.

Other experience:

1993 — 2005: Qigihar Second Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (B 75 15
¥ 58 — B8 R A 7)) with the last position held as Department
Head of Administration

2006 - 2010: Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical
Distribution Co., Ltd. (BfEIA & RSO EELHEER AR

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with the last
position held as Deputy General Manager of the Administration

Department

Education:

1993: graduated from the Harbin University of Civil Engineering
(FRFERET2S6r),

in coal chemical engineering

and Architecture* China with a major

2013: graduated from Scandinavian Art and Business Institute,
Finland through distance learning with a Master of Business
Administration

Mr. Chu has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed

companies over the past three years.
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Mr. ZHAO Zehua (#H2%£), aged 54, was appointed as the general
manager of finance of the Group in October 2011 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 16 June 2015. He joined the
Group in January 2005 as financial controller and was promoted to
his current position in October 2011. He is responsible for financial
control and management. He has over 33 years of experience
in financial management, with particular expertise in financial
accounting, treasury and internal control.

Other experience:

e August 1989 — May 2001: head of finance at Hebei Chengde
Tianyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (At EAERREEE B[R
yNG])

e June 2001
general manager of Hebei Chengde Tianyuan Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. (LB ABERREZ B R A A])

— December 2004: manager of finance and deputy

e January 2003 - December 2004: manager of finance and
deputy general manager of Chengde Pharmaceutical Group

Liuhe Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (R{EzEE EF NS REFRE
(S/NET)!

Education:

e July 1992: graduated from Hebei Radio and Television
University (AI3LEBER KZE) with a major in Finance and
Accounting

Mr. Zhao is a qualified accountant in China. He has not held any

directorships in any other publicly listed companies over the past
three years.

92 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2021/22

ﬁ%ﬁ%i*mﬁ’ﬁ_%**¢+ﬂﬁ*
ERAEEMBRKBELRN_T—HF A
TREEZEAMTES - E%EF T
hE-AMBAEERHERBEE - ¥R
—E—F+AENEERRE - B EM
BEml N EIE - B ERBI3FH B EEL
% LHAGME BE2BBERABEE)
[EE PR

s —HN/NENAZ-ZTZT-FHA:HA
EEABRREXBERABNUBEE

° —_EFEFE— $/\Hi—7?mfﬁ+ H:

AL EARRREEAR QRS EELIE
SEER S

o ~—EE—HF—_BE-_TTNF+_F:
AEEEEB NSRESRET AR
TEHEIE I B 4B 4538

HEH

gl

s —HAZHLER: EXEAILERESR
REHEHEE

HEEEGETESHMER RNBE=F
A AT REEEAEM ETARMNE
EER 7



Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sheung Hing (BB ), aged 74, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a senior economist of People’s Bank of China with
many years of experience in foreign exchange management and
management of pharmaceutical companies and listed companies.

Other experience:

e 1982 — 1985: in charge of the foreign affairs of Beijing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Jt R E %422 7)) and stores for
new drugs and specific drugs

e 1986 — 1995: deputy administrative officer of Non-trade
Department and Inspection Department of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange (BIRIMEE D)

Directorships:

e 1995 - 2002: assistant to the general manager and assistant
to board chairman of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (3K
ZhREE(IER) B R A R]), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01189)

e 2003 - 2005: assistant to board chairman of Heng Fai
Enterprises Limited (1B# (b Z£3E & B R A 7)) (how known as ZH
International Holdings Ltd. IE1E BIFX1EAR B R A Fl), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00185)

e 2005 - 2013: independent non-executive director of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (Bl Rt & BIRIZRBR A
A]) (formerly known as China Outdoor Media Group Limited
FEIFIMEREE B AR AF]), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00254)

Education:

e 1982: graduated from the formerly known as School of
Economics of Peking University (1t 487 E2FT) (now known
as Capital University of Economics and Business & 348 EE
2 KX2) with a major in Trading Economics

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREERE

Ms. CHIANG Su Hui Susie (I %), aged 75, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013. Ms.
Chiang has over 30 years of experience in governmental affairs,
treasury and cross-straits relations.

Other experience:

e December 1991 — March 1994:
Government Information Office of the Executive Yuan of
Taiwan (B /27TBET#E R)

the representative of

e March 1994 — December 2004: in charge of the Taiwanese
Kwang-hwa Information and Culture Centre (& /2 ZEHE X

e

e April 2002: established the C S Forum (&F)/L#w18) and the C S
Corp. Consultancy Limited (B/LEAB AR 2 F]) in Hong Kong
with a goal of promoting cross-straits economic and trade
communications

Current positions:

e member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Cultural Co-operation
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

EESFRBNBAEXILAERES)

e chairwoman of the C S Culture Foundation (B M{bLAZ A
&)

e chairwoman of the C S Corp. Consultancy Limited (&)L ]
BRAT)

e chairwoman of the C S Finance & Investment Company

Limited (B I &RV BEBER AR

e honourary chairwoman of the Taiwan Business Association
(Hong Kong) Limited (B &8 E TEH=)

Education:

e July 1969: graduated from the Taiwan National Chung Hsing
University (B /2B EK ) with a major in laws

Ms. Chiang has not held any directorships in any other publicly
listed companies over the past three years.
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Mr. ZOU Haiyan (#8/8#), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 July 2017. Mr. Zou has
over 35 years of experience in the financial services industry. He has
been a training instructor and guest lecturer of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong, International Institute
of Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong, HongKong Chinese
Accountants Association, continuing education of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics Institute, Hainan Local
Taxation Bureau, Huangshan Local Taxation Bureau, Qingdao
Provincial SAT Office and Shenzhen Municipal SAT Office; and
an associate professor of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Other experience:

e July 2001 — November 2003: certified public accountant of
Guangdong Kangyuan Certified Public Accountants (B &
TR TR EISFA)

e December 2003 — August 2009: chief partner of Guangdong
Gaowick Certified Public Accountants (B3 = 13 & 51 A0 E 145 F)

e March 2001 — August 2018: managing director of China Tax
and Business Consultants Company Limited (B3 75 75
BERAR AR

overlapping of business)

) (the company ceased business due to the

Current positions:

* managing director of Kaowick Listing and Financial Services

Company Limited (i ETRCE R BIR AR

e partner of Shenzhen Guangshen Certified Public Accountants

(RYNE RS FHEIE A
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREREEE

e independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Asia
Electricity Co., Ltd., a company listed on National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in China (ZYIIZEME ARMDER A
al)

e independent non-executive director and members of the
audit committee of Anchorstone Holdings Limited (EA1ZEM
BPRAA]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

Education:

e July 1985: graduated from Guangdong Provincial Finance
School in Taxation (B3R & I EEK)

e January 2015: graduated from University of Electronic Science
and Technology in Human Resources Management (& F %

RE)

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zou has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Junming (B 8), aged 54, was appointed as a company
secretary of the Company on 18 November 2013 and is currently
the sole company secretary of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1998. Mr. Ge has worked in various other capacities in the Group,
including as an accountant, head of the planning department,
chief secretary to the Chairman, head of the legal department,
general secretary and director in various members in the Group.

Other experience:

e August 1988 — May 1994: a materials accountant, costs
accountant and head accountant of Jiamusi CNC Machine

Tools Factory (7R AT SL1ZEH R JiR)

e June 1994 — August 1995: head accountant of Jiamusi Import
and Export Wood Products Company (fE/REf#E H O AREL A
al)

e September 1995 — August 1996: chief of finance at Jiamusi
Forging Equipment Factory (fFE/RKHT#R/ER % 15 R)

e September 1996 — April 1998: financial inspector at Jiamusi
Marketing Limited Company of the Sanzu Group (=# & E
ERETEHFR AT

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREERE

Education:

e July 1988: obtained a Secondary Professional Degree in
Financial Accounting from Heilongjiang School of Machinery

Manufacturing (B B/ T M RIE LK)

e July 1993: graduated from the School of Economics at
Peking University (b R K24 £87) with a major in Financial

Accounting, by way of distance learning

e December 2016: graduated and obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Business Management (Business Administration) from
Peking University (JE R AE2) by way of self-study

e December 2019: graduated from South China Agricultural
University (Z2F &% K2 with Major in Regional Economic
Development and Management by way of self-study

Mr. Ge is also a qualified senior accountant, senior planner,
pharmacist and nutritionist in China. Mr. Ge is a Certified Internal
Auditor, and has obtained qualification of practice in securities
and funds.

Mr. Ge received the National Enterprise Management Specialist
Award by the China National Management Specialist Centre

(FEARKMBAZFZEAZREF L) in 2005.

Mr. Ge has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed
companies over the past three years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 AR

mazars

To the members of
Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Universal
Health International Group Holding Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 113
to 254, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30
June 2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

MAzARS CPA LIMITED
oh 25 R ER (7ol ) et B R DA WA

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
WV S O 1 8 9% b IR SR S 40k
Tel B&EH: (852) 2909 5555

FaxfH#: (852) 2810 0032

Email & %:info@mazars.hk
Website#H 1k :www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs"”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

BEETEER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets allocated to the cash-generating units
("CGUs") of the retail and distribution businesses

Referto notes 4(b), 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements

At 30 June 2022, the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (together the “Non-current
Assets”) was amounting to approximately RMB36,560,000 and
RMB4,952,000 respectively. These assets are allocated to the
CGUs of the Group's retail and distribution businesses.

The Group had reported a continued loss in the current year.
Management considered this as an impairment indicator on
the Non-current Assets and has performed an impairment
assessment on these assets as at 30 June 2022 to determine their
recoverable amount. Management has performed impairment
tests with reference to a valuation performed by an independent
and qualified professional valuer and the conclusion is based
on the estimation of the recoverable amounts of the respective
CGUs to which the respective Non-current Assets relate using
the value-in-use (“VIU") calculation.

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the amounts involved and use of judgements and
estimates in assessing the impairment of the assets. These key
estimates include forecasted gross margins, forecasted growth
rates and discount rates adopted in the VIU calculations based
on discounted cash flow model.

ESBEEERDHEECHEELEN
((REELEN)ZYF* BERREH
K& AL EREE

B2HA H B HmRMTEAD) - 7RS8

R-ZE-_—FXA=+8 9% BEK
BEARTERAEEE(RBRI ERBE
EDRNEAED B4 A AR 36,560,000
TR ARMA4,952,0007T « ZEEECDE
E BESETERDHKECHSELS
fif o

RAEE  BEXERESRSER -€12E
RAFERBDEELTBMETR TN _-F
—CERA=TREREEELETRERN
i NEEEAKREEE - EEECD2R
BYRAEMNBEXRMEMETHIGE
TTRERR - ZEmIERARERSE
ERENSREELEMNA KOS
wEEREE(MEREREDFEMEL -

B RS & ERER AT & 58 K& (8 # B
REFTERME - BEFIHZFEER B
RESFE ZSREGGFEEERE
B ERARAOIDAENE - FBAIE R
KRR R ERWERRSRERL -

ABREEBREEZERERLAT FERE2021/22 101



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BN ESUMEEBRRETEE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key

procedures:

(a)

102

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer;

We performed procedures to understand the key processes
and controls relating to the assessment of the recoverable
amounts of CGUs supported by VIU calculations based on
discounted cash flow model;

We comparedthe cash flow projections usedin VIU calculations
to the financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period;

We compared the future growth rates beyond the five-year
period used by management against the long-term average
growth rate for the businesses in which the respective CGUs
operate based on the available data from the market;

We evaluated the achievability of budgeted gross margins
based on the Group's past and current performance, the
management'’s business strategy and the expected market
development;

We evaluated the reasonableness of key parameters used
by the management and the valuer for calculating discount
rates based on our knowledge of the business and industry;

We tested mathematical accuracy of the VIU calculations
used by the management and the valuer to determine the

recoverable amounts of CGUs; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

BERNSEE

Impairment assessment of a logistics building included in property,
plant and equipment — Distribution segment

Refer to notes 4(c) and 7 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a logistics building included
in the property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
RMB185,832,000 located in Jiamusi, the People's Republic of
China (the “PRC" ).

During the year, the Group had utilised certain areas of the logistics
building as warehouse for its distribution business and continued to
seek out its opportunities to develop the logistics business. In view
of the loss sustained by the distribution business and the current low
usage rate as warehousing for the distribution segment, management
considered that there were indicators of impairment of the logistics
building existed at 30 June 2022 and performed an impairment
assessment thereon.

Management performed an impairment assessment of the logistic
building with reference to a valuation performed by an independent
and qualified professional valuer by using the fair value less cost of
disposal model and compared the carrying amount of the logistics
building to determine the amount of impairment which should be
recognised for the year. For the determination of the fair value less
costs of disposal, management used the depreciated replacement
cost method that reflects the cost to a market participant to construct
assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence.
Based on the results of the impairment assessment, management
concluded that the recoverable amount of the logistics building was
higher than its carrying amount and no impairment was required.

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the use of judgements and estimates in assessing
the impairment of this significant asset. These key estimates include
the estimated useful life and replacement costs adopted in the
depreciated replacement cost calculations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERNESNAEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key
procedures:

(a)

104

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
valuer;

We evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology used
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions applied in the
depreciated replacement cost calculations such as the estimated
useful life and replacement costs by referencing to available
market data;

We tested mathematical accuracy of the depreciated
replacement cost calculations used by the management and the
valuer to determine the recoverable amounts of the logistics
buildings; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect
of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

BERNSEE

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate

Refer to notes 4(d) and 12 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 30 June 2022, the Group held 43.78% equity interests in an
associate, Jilin Jintian Universal Health Capsule Limited, with a
carrying amount of RMB87,526,000.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review
of the recoverable amount of the investment in an associate. The
recoverable amount, being the higher of VIU and fair value less costs
of disposal, has been determined by the Group’s management with
reference to a valuation report prepared by an independent and
qualified professional valuer using price-to-earnings (P/E) multiple
model, which is lower than the carrying amount of the investment and
therefore an impairment loss of RMB21,988,000 was charged to profit
or loss for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Impairment assessment of the significant carrying amount of
investment in an associate is highly judgmental and involves a
high degree of estimation uncertainty. We therefore identified the
impairment assessment as a key audit matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERNESNAEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key

procedures:

(@) We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the

valuer;

(b) We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies

used by the valuer and management to estimate the recoverable

amount of the investment in an associate;

(c) We evaluated the reasonableness of the key inputs adopted by

the management and the valuer by comparing to entity-specific

information and market data; and

(d) We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect

of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

BERNSEE

Valuation of biological assets

Refer to notes 4(a) and 14 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had a forest land use right which is located in Tonghua
City, Jilin Province in the PRC and the wild ginsengs planted in this
forest land. The forest land use right and wild ginsengs are accounted
for as land use right and biological assets respectively. The wild
ginsengs are measured at fair value less costs to sell.

As at 30 June 2022, management estimated the fair value of wild
ginsengs which was revalued at RMB98,161,000 based on a valuation
prepared by an independent and qualified professional valuer which
took into consideration of factors related to the ginsengs as advised by
ginsengs experts who were employed by the valuer. A gain on change
in fair value of RMB409,000 was credited to profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2022.

We have identified the valuation of the biological assets as a key audit
matter considering the significance of the balance and the extent of
management’ s judgments and estimates used for the assessment of
fair value of biological assets. The most significant assumptions and
valuation parameters used in the valuation include the estimated
quantities, grade and the related market prices of biological assets
applied.

EYEEZGE

A2H A B IRKMT T4 K14

BERBERHALRN T EE G BETROMBER
BRI ZMMIEE R FF M T 2 o Mt 4
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ARR o BEMT 2B R A EEREEXA
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L2ERMENEAMT2OERETGE - &
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2 Wk AR #E409,0007TET AJBES ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EMHWETNAEERRETBE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key
procedures:

(@) We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
valuer and the ginsengs experts;

(b) We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
used by the valuer and management to estimate the fair value of
the biological assets;

() We engaged our own ginsengs expert to carry out physical
inspection of the wild ginsengs forest and assist us in reviewing
the reasonableness of the key assumptions and unobservable
inputs applied to the valuation model; and

(d) We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect
of the fair value measurement of the biological assets.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information in
the 2021/22 annual report of the Company but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 September 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Law Lai Ting

Practising Certificate number: P07322
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEEEER

At 30 June 2022
R ZFA=+H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR FT ARBTFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 7 222,392 241,611
Right-of-use assets BREEE 4,952 12,467
Intangible assets BZAE 9 - =
Investments in joint ventures BERNRIIRE 11 - -
Investment in an associate i /NCIE S 12 87,526 111,139
Equity instruments designated BERBRARBES AEMES K
as at fair value through other mAEm TR
comprehensive income 13 12,056 9,265
Biological assets EMEE 14 98,161 97,752
Total non-current assets I RBEELE 425,087 472,234
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H i R R IE 17 128,918 137,477
Income tax recoverable AU ] P15 AR 5,815 6,399
Inventories e 18 190,973 273,916
Restricted cash ZREIFR S 19 30,488 34,724
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 20 57,795 33,091
Total current assets REEERE 413,989 485,607
Total assets EEAT 839,076 957,841
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners of KATREBAELES
the Company
Share capital i 21 35,943 24,833
Reserves it 22 1,739,451 1,729,755
Accumulated losses S (1,367,263) (1,179,616)
408,131 574,972
Non-controlling interests FEiE R 579 945
Total equity ERBR 408,710 575,917
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEEERBR

At 30 June 2022

KRB _—_F,SA=+H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HaE AR FT ARMTFr
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings (N 25 40,000 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEREE 40,000 —
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables E 5 R HAERFIR 24 390,366 377,994
Lease liabilities HEaRE 8 - 3,930
Total current liabilities FEAEARE 390,366 381,924
Total liabilities B &85 430,366 381,924
Total equity and liabilities EnkBERARE 839,076 957,841

The notes on pages 121 to 254 are an integral part of these ZE121E254B M T AR S A B HRE
consolidated financial statements. NI DB —FB7 °

These consolidated financial statements on pages 113to 254 were N FE113E24E A HUBHRER-Z

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on —Z—FhA-++BRESFSHE RIFET
27 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by B WATINEERAEEE
Jin Dongtao Zhao Zehua
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S GERER

Year ended 30 June 2022
(ECEFANAZTHIEFE

2022 2021

—E-CHF —E-—F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Hiet AREFT AREFIT

Revenue &= 5 1,273,572 1,185,168
Cost of sales HEMRAR 27 (1,069,410) (1,028,264)
Gross profit 7 204,162 156,904
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHRAX 27 (322,346) (533,776)
Administrative expenses THAS 27 (58,005) (66,583)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EFEEREER 9,27 - (313)
Impairment loss on investment in an associate BERNARERBEER 12,27 (21,988) (210,373)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « BiE k&R EEE 7,27 - (3,972)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEERERR 8,27 - (3,893)

Other income HlA 26 7,270 2
Other gains (losses) — net Hiplizs (B18) — 558 26 1,788 (1,495)
Change in fair value of biological assets EMEEARBEES 14 409 90
Operating loss REEE (188,710) (663,409)

Finance income IRy L ON 29 3,642 1,253
Finance costs BTG 29 (1,320) (11,868)
Finance income (costs) — net MR (AR ) — 58 29 2,322 (10,615)

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures DERELNARTIARE 11 - 9

Share of post-tax results of an associate DEME D RRTA RS 12 (1,625) 3,211

(1,625) 3,220

Loss before income tax MRS BRI & B (188,013) (670,804)
Income tax expenses s Bl 30 - (5,203)
Loss for the year FEEE (188,013) (676,007)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BftRERER

Year ended 30 June 2022
B - —FA=1BHItFE

2022 2021
—E-CHF —T-—fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AREFT AREFIT
Other comprehensive income Eﬂﬁ*ﬁ' llﬂﬁ“ﬂ
[tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value changes in equity instruments designated & TE?%?’E’R?‘CFTE AR MERS
as at fair value through other comprehensive WamERTAZ AR BEE
income )] 13 2,499 (5,066)
[tems that are or may be reclassified to profit or BAES RIS 1 BRI B 2T 77 48
loss in subsequent periods: FEmAIER
Release of other reserves upon deregistration of T S Pt /B8 /A PR 48 ] Lt 6 4
subsidiaries 379 1,862
Currency translation differences INETE =5 (1,965) 9,774
(1,586) 11,636
Total other comprehensive income for the year FEHMEEREEE 913 6,570
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEERAERAE (187,100) (669,437)
Loss attributable to: TH& T EEEE
— Owners of the Company SVAUNCIE DN (187,647) (675,396)
- Non-controlling interests — IR (366) (©611)
(188,013) (676,007)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: THEHEEGEBEEE
- Owners of the Company —ARRAEEA (186,734) (668,826)
- Non-controlling interests —IEE IR (366) ©11)
(187,100) (669,437)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the FEXARARNHEBARLEBRER
Company for the year (RMB cents) (AE#7)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE i (42.66) (174.83)
The notes on pages 121 to 254 are an integral part of these F121E254B WM sE B2 E A IR E

consolidated financial statements.

RAl D EE—EBD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SHERE IR

Year ended 30 June 2022

(E—E - _FRNA=THLFE

Attrbutable to owners of the Company

BARRENES
Falr vaue ~ Share-based Non-
Share Shre  Capital  Stetutory reserve non-  compensation ~ Other  Accumulted controlfing ~~~ Total
captal  premium  reserves  resenves  recycling) TESeIVEs  reserves losses Total  interests  equity
MEERE
Br BtER  BxER MRER  (FUER) ROFHGE GMEE  ZHER 4% FERER  RuEE
RMBOD  RMBODO  RMBOCD  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOG0  RMBOOO  RMBUGO  RMBO0  RMBO0
ARG ARETR ARETT AREET ARRTT AREET ARETT AREET ARETT ARRTT AREFD
(note) (note22) (rote22b) (note22(c)  (note 22(d) (note 22(e)) (note 22(f)
W) (W326) (WE2p) W20 (BE20)  (KEze) (KRN
Balance at 1 July 2021 HZE-EtR-ANER U3 187387 (154447) 64,149 (14,931) D36 (4769 (1479816 574972 s S9N
Comprehensive loss |
Loss for te year FRER - - - - (enedn eredn (38 (188013
Qther comprehensive income (oss
ttem that wil not be reckssifed to proft o loss:
Fair value changes n equity instruments designated as at
farvalue through other comprehiensive income WEMIEZMF{EXQ L
(note 13) #) - 249 - - - 249
Items thatare or may be recassfied to profit o oss in
subsequent periocs:
Release of other resenve upon HEATRATAbRE
de-registation of subsidiares - - - n 3 n
Curency tansaton diferences kgt - - - (1% - (1989 (1.963)
Totd other comprehensive ncome s Aeani(ER)0E - 2499 - (15 - 913 93
Totel comprehensive income (s SebE(ERIEE - 249 - (13 (e (87 (8) (187,100
Transacton with owners n their capacity as owners — SEEA(UEEEASH) 07
lsue of subscription sheres in November 2021 netof ~ RZE=—E+-RE{ER
expenses (note 21(3) MRER 1) 493 3,468 - - - - S X 8399
lsue of subscription shares n June 2022, net of expenses W=F =255 ARAHERG 1
(note 2116) BER(om) 8179 5315 - - - - - 1 11,494
Total transaction with ovners i thelr capacty s SERAERRASD A
owners i 11,110 4,783 - - - - - 1989 19,893
Balance at 30 June 2022 H-BCZERAZTRNGR B[40 (154D e4il (12432 D36 (635 (136723 40813 59 470
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHEREER

Year ended 30 June 2022
(BT —FA=THILEFE

Attrloutable to ouners of the Company

RATEENEL
Fairvalue  Share-based Non-
Share Share Captl ~ Statutory  reserve (non- — compensation Other  Accumulated controlling ~~ Total
captdl premum  resenes  resenves  recycling) reserves  reserves losses — Total  interests  equity
D EERE
Re RBAE AR ieRh  (FUER) ROEMBRE  RRER  ZnER & ARER BRgE
RMBODD ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOW  RMBO0  RMBUO0  RMBODO  RMBOOO RMBODO  RMBOOO  RMBUOOO
M Mg AT BT AR AR AR ARETT ABERT AR AR
(ote21)  (ote 2208  [ote 22b)  (note 22lc)  (note 22(d)  (note 22le)  (note 22(f)
Wgz)  (Bazw) (Bezw) Bazg)  WEzg)  (Bize)  (Ri)
Balance at 1 July 2020 RIRRECA-BNER 488 18737 (1544]) 84,149 (9,865) 2,36 (16405 (04220 1243798 1556 1,245,354
Comprehensive loss GRER
Loss for the year FEEE = - - - - - - (6153 (6753%9) (611)  (676,007)
Other comprehensive (oss)income ~~~ & (58) it
ttem that will ot be reclssifed to proft - FEEHAEZERAIES -
orloss:
Fair value changes in equity instruments  EE A1 A% BlBiT AL {HE
designated as at fair value through SWEHERTE R
offier comprehensive income Ee2ahzs)
(note 13) - - - - (5,066) - - - b - B
Jtems that are or may be reclassified fo 9
profit orloss in subsequent periods: BZERHE)
Release of other reserve upon HANBLARBEARE
de-registration of subsidiaries - - - - - - 1,862 - 1862 - 1,862
Curency fransltion differences eREEE - - - - - - 9774 i i
Total other comprehensive (oss) income ~ & 54 (B8] N - - - - (5,066) - 1163 ] )]
Total comprehensive (loss) income Se(ER)MRAE - - - - (5,066) - 1163 (6753%)  (668,826) 611)  (669437)
Balance at 30 June 2021 H=B=-F7AZ1H
5] U833 1817387 (154 447) 64,149 (14931) 2,36 (@69 (1179616) 574972 U5 515917
The notes on pages 121 to 254 are an integral part of these SF121E254B MM AZS S U BHE

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHRSRER

Year ended 30 June 2022

BE-_ZT-_—F#A=1THItFE

2022 2021
—g-= —T-—%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MtaE ARETFT ARBEFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Cash used in operations KEFTRR® 33(a) (42,584) (113,312)
Interest paid EAFE (276) (1,065)
Bank charges paid BEfRITEA (146) (122)
Income tax refunded EIREFE 584 6,784
Net cash used in operating RETHFIARETE
activities (42,422) (107,715)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Change in restricted cash PR IR 2 4,236 10,505
Interest received B U F & 2,064 1,253
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE MKE&E
plant and equipment FriS 508 2,240 =
Proceeds from disposal of joint HEEERARMERIE
ventures - 8,975
Net cash inflow from disposal of a HE—EBARRGEES
subsidiary MAFER 1,842 =
Purchase of intangible assets BERTAE - (21)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BEERE
equipment (101) (1,903)
Dividend received B B 807 =
Settlement of consideration JEWRELEE
receivables - 913
Net cash from investing activities RETBELERSFE 11,088 19,722
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
EHEERER

Year ended 30 June 2022
BET-_—_FXXA=1THILFE

2022 2021
—E=-= T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARETFT ARBFIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Repayments of lease liabilities EBEHAEAE 33(b) (3,930) (10,211)
Inception of borrowings IR 25, 33(b) 40,000 -
Net proceeds from issuance of BATRIER (D TS RIEF 5
subscription shares 21 19,893 =
Net cash from (used in) financing BEEREL (TR RESFE
activities 55,963 (10,211)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and B MIReEEWE M
cash equivalents Cm ) 558 24,629 (98,204)
Cash and cash equivalents at HEBRYzReRREEEY
beginning of the reporting period 33,091 131,317
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNESRE R B ) 2 B
changes 75 (22)
Cash and cash equivalents at end BERRZRERBESEEY
of the reporting period 20 57,795 33,091

The notes on pages 121 to 254 are an integral part of these F121E254B M T AZE S M KEHRE
consolidated financial statements. NI DB —FB7 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G b S

Year ended 30 June 2022

B

E-F_—FXNA=THILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the distribution and retail of drugs,
healthcare products and other pharmaceutical products in
the northeastern region of the People's Republic of China
(the "PRC").

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
March 2012, as an exempted company with limited liabilities
under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company'’s registered office is PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1- 1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 12 December 2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to both periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Year ended 30 June 2022
BE-F- 4~ AS+ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

122

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs") and Interpretations issued by International
Accounting Standards Board and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for equity instruments designated as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and biological
assets which are measured at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a basis consistent with
the accounting policies adopted in the 2021
consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the following new/revised IFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective
from the current year:

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRSs 4, 7, 2 and 16:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might
affect financial reporting when a company
replaces the old interest rate benchmark with
an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the
interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”).
The amendments complement those issued in
September 2019 and relate to:

e changes to contractual cash flows - a
company will not have to derecognise or
adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by
the Reform, but will instead update the
effective interest rate to reflect the change
to the alternative benchmark rate;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

124

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

(continued)

e hedge accounting — a company will not
have to discontinue its hedge accounting
solely because it makes changes required
by the Reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; and

e disclosures —a company will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising
from the Reform and how it manages the
transition to alternative benchmark rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

New and amended standards issued but not
yet adopted by the Group

A number of new and amended standards
are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. The Group will apply
the new and amended standards when they
become effective. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the impact of the new
and amended standards and does not expect
that the adoption of these new and amended
standards will result in any material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEZ)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

BB (E)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 210 ERBRNEE RIKE (&)
(continued)

(b) E 281 18 7 5 B /2 K £
A B9 5T R AEAE AT £ R

(b) New and amended standards issued but not
yet adopted by the Group (continued)

(@)
Effective for annual
years beginning on
or after
RATHS
Byl il L)
FEAEN
Amendments to IAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
B &t ERI S 169 (BRTA) fERE RERIMPA{S SR “T-%-A-H
Amendments to IAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
B & RRIETR B A) BT AR “Z--%-f-H
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
B B s o R S 35% (1B RT AR B SIER “Z-—f¥—H—H

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
R B T S e 2 B S
Amendments to I1AS 1

e R 15 (BRTA)

Amendments to IAS 1

B & RIS 15 (BT AR)

Amendments to IAS 8
LR EAC PN

Amendments to IAS 12

k- ﬁ ERIF125 (BETA)
IFRS 1
W%EM%?&%ZEE‘J%W%
Amendments to [FRS 17

BRI B R EER B 175 (ERTA)

Amendments to IFRS 16
BB s A AR 1657 (1B 5T )

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

“ﬁ%# EERE 105 (BFTA) R
e ERF 28 (BATA)

2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
- \FE-FT-TEEH T —FaH—H

Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023

Non-current
BEAEAREIERE —T-=%-F—H
Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
S BREE —E-=f5-f—H
Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
it —¥-=%-3-A

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from 1 January 2023

a single Transaction
HE-RHELNEERABBRNETHE “Z-=%-Hf-H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
REBAH —ZF-F4E 7 HH

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - 1 January 2023
Comparative Information

BB SRR 175 R R M B RS £ R OH A —FEE-H—H
RER — LB S

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
EREEDRSPHEEEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

REZFREBENAHAEARLANEELEIHE BET

1 January 2024
—F-RmF-A-H

To be determined

ABREEBREEZERERLAT FERE2021/22 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2022
BE-F- 4~ AS+ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Going concern

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group
recorded a loss of approximately RMB188,013,000 (2021:
RMB676,007,000), which was primarily attributable to
the challenges experienced in the retail market within
the northeastern region of the PRC and the impact on
performance caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. In
addition, the Group recorded net cash outflow from
operations of RMB42,422,000 during the year and the net
current assets of the Group reduced by RMB80,060,000

to RMB23,623,000 as at 30 June 2022.

In view of these circumstances, the management of the
Company has implemented various measures to improve
the financial position of the Group. These measures

include, but not limited to the followings:

(@) The Group continues to negotiate for external
financing, including but not limited to, obtain
further loan facilities and various forms of capital
fund raising. Subsequent to 30 June 2022, the Group
successfully obtained a new loan facility from a bank

for an amount of RMB50,000,000;

(b) The Group continues to improve operating efficiency
by implementing measures to tighten cost control
over various operating expenses in order to enhance
its profitability and to improve cash flow from its
operations in future. During the year ended 30 June
2022, the Group has closed a number of loss-making
retail stores to minimise operating cash outflows;

and

(c) The Group is actively exploring the opportunity of
obtaining additional source of cash inflows from

sales of its owned assets/investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Going concern (continued)

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account
the abovementioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the coming twelve months from 30 June
2022. Accordingly, the directors consider it appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A GIRIT BRN

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE-F- 4~ AS+ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

128

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by IFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income
as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
is an asset or liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interests recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries would have been adjusted to
conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do notresult in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A GIRIT BRN

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE-F- 4~ AS+ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

130

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Associates 2.4 B \T]

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of 20% or more but less
than 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in an associate include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any excess of the cost
of the associate over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
represents goodwill which is included in the investment

in an associate.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equal or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2022
BE—_ZT-—F#,A=1+BIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the excess of
the carrying value of the associate over its recoverable
amount and recognises the amount to “impairment loss
on investment in an associate” in profit or loss. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates

are recognised in profit or loss.

132 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2021/22

2. TEETTBERBEE)

2.4 BERT(E)

rERESRREEDNECREA
ERERZAR L A RIRE LB
8 - IR ELBRE - AERESE
BRE - SEAME QR ZIREE
B E A A2 R - RIS
@mA B S QAR ERERE |1’
B R o 15 R IRL (BT 18 A (A 3
BIRNEZIBIE K AT U @ 2 7R HL 1R 18
AEYIES T HERR ©

B AR N R 2 TR B
TMERZELENFBEMER - £
SENEHMBHRERTHER - BF
[RNERMIRE B 2 AR
HEEE - FRIFR B IR B BB P
BREEDRE  BRIKRERER
TS - BEE AR RRE
BEEEHNE - URREREE
RAREE 2 -

Bt s R B I P A A A R Bk
BHENERPRER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Joint arrangements 25 EERH

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under IFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations
entitled to each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group'sinterestin the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RS ER R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__F . A=1THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

134

2.7

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the Board of Directors that makes

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial information of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
Group’s consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate. Currency translation differences

arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RS ER R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2022

B - —FNA=1+HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

136

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly motor
vehicles, furniture, office equipment and leasehold
improvement are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Construction in progress
is recognised at the percentage completion of contract
cost.

Construction in progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned
are available for use, the costs are transferred to the
respective categories of property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other
than CIP is calculated using the straight-line method to
write down their cost less accumulated impairment to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Motor vehicles 4-8 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements shorter of lease period

and estimated useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amounts.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights are up-front payments to acquire long-
term interest in land accounted for as right-of-use assets
since 1 July 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R

Year ended 30 June 2022
B - —FNA=1+HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

210 Intangible assets

138

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment tests are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value
of the CGUs containing the goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
VIU and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

210 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Trademarks, licenses and brand loyalty

Separately acquired trademarks, licenses and brand
loyalty are shown at historical cost. Trademarks,
licenses and brand loyalty acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks, licenses and brand
loyalty have finite useful lives and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to write down the cost of
trademarks, licenses and brand loyalty over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Contractual supplier relationships

Contractual supplier relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The contractual supplier
relationships have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
provided to write down the cost over the expected
life of supplier relationship of 10 years using the
straight-line method.

Computer software licenses

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the
specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 7 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ORI IR

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE-F- 4~ AS+ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

140

2.11

2.12

Biological Assets

Biological assets are the wild ginsengs that are measured
at fair value less cost to sell, see Note 14 below for further
information on determining the fair value.

Costs to sell include the incremental selling costs,
including the labour costs to collect and process the
wild ginsengs when harvested, the estimated costs of
transportation to the market, etc.

The wild ginsengs are accounted for as biological assets
until the point of harvest. Harvested wild ginsengs are
transferred to inventory at fair value less costs to sell
when harvested.

Changes in fair value of biological assets are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets that are not ready to use are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
VIU. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group's contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the
Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without
a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially
measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments
designated as at FVOCI ("Designated FVOCI"); or
(iv) measured at FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022

B - —FNA=1+HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued)

142

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and derecognition (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the Group's business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing them, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which
a host is an asset within the scope of IFRS 9 are not
separated from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid
contract is assessed for classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost
include trade and other receivables, restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued)

144

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of investment in equity instruments
that is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which IFRS 3 applies in
other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instruments-by-instruments basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s equity instruments designated as
at FVOCI are further detailed in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Annual Report 2021/22

2. TEETTBERBEE)

2132RIE(E)

(a)

TREEE)
ZHEE & (E)
BEREARBEFARM
el R T A
RAIE HE R RS - NEE A {E
HARREZEE - S
FIEEERE  JBERMB
HEEAEIRATER 2 XK
BH BB T ERNHABRE
LB TARERNARBEZ
Hig2HREMEA WaE T
25 BN EBEI AR
EETE °

SZEEDREERRAAE
BiE BX T HBRM
B RENEBERAMER B
FREHBES - BREKRAK
FY U [ 5B 7 o EL i U &5 3K &S
BREMGEWEER - B
HEFASER»BREER -
RILFERE > Rt RSB
BEREREREER

BERAEEEERERANE
B ARMARS Was
TRE-FHE HREH
M IEIMARMTES ©

TRAE

BB R AR IR
cREENAEREAEEX
RTEANGEXMET TR
FERR.

TREENRAENBERE
B BIBEBAKTANEE
R EHSERE TR
IERERR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and borrowings. All financial liabilities,
except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be

insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with IFRS 9. At each reporting date,
the Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset
at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk
on that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Year ended 30 June 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

215 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the

expected life of the financial instruments.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due to an entity under the contract and the cash

flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instruments while 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible

within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more

shared credit risk characteristics:

() past due information

(i) nature of instruments

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

(vi) external credit risk ratings
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEZ)

POLICIES (continued)

215 Impairment of financial assets and other items 215 eRMEERHMERREE)

(continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instruments’ credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instruments, except
in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that the
Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instruments that meets

any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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B - —FNA=1+HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

148

POLICIES (continued)

215 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whetherthe creditrisk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instruments as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instruments as at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account in the
assessment:

e the debtor's failure to make payments of principal
or interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instruments’ external or internal credit
rating (if available);

e  anactual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE_ZT-_F#A=1THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEZ)

POLICIES (continued)

215 Impairment of financial assets and other items 215 eRMEERHMERREE)

(continued)

Assessment of significantincrease in credit risk (continued)
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on financial instruments has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instruments are determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash are considered to be low credit risk when
they have a low risk of default and the counter party
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term (note 3.1(b)).

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting
date that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

=B R b BRI 0 FFE (4F)
BELALL - 1H—IEAE$IﬂﬁG$E%
BHREE AEEERR - BIAE
BRE&AER F‘EIEE’JT—LE\J—LﬁQ
I HERR IR I A ERE AR AN o

EEERR
HEATERL  ERTAEERE
FEEERR :

() BAORRERE:

(i) BRABRAENEEHA
BIIARHNBASRERT &

(i) 5= HIAR 7 A0 7 3R R A A9 S R
""""" ﬂzT EEN—EEHIRE
RABTEEHNBEESRER
EEEIUK °©

H b FEURIR iﬁi&fﬁ/ﬁ—rf’f%
AR ZRGIHR S EBRENRRR
HHTEERBNENEREANE
ﬁ.:.?’ﬁﬁi\ﬁ?-aﬁ&(%}ﬂ( )
i BERAREEEER

BEEEEBEEAE

RNEERE SRV FIBEHFABER
ERTERBEREEE c ARERE
EWmE BN REAFEREREE
EEEREIERE  EDREREE
SEEBELR - WEHHEBAR
KOBIRIBAATIE R RETHAE -

ABREEBREEZERERLAT FERE2021/22 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A GIRIT BRN

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE-T-—#AA=tALEE

S

2.

150

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

215 Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)
Credit-impaired financial
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar
assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented

as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at transaction price or fair value as appropriate and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2022

B - —FNA=1+HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash at bank and on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or

less.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

220 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance

sheet date.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings prior to their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group's entities operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

154

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liability is provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally, the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in respect of associates
and joint ventures. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

156

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Pension obligations

The PRC based full-time employees of the Group are
covered by various government-sponsored pension
plans under which the employees are entitled to a
monthly pension based on certain formulae. Certain
government agencies are responsible for the pension
liability to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension
plans. Under these plans, the Group has no legal
or constructive obligations for retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions
to these plans are expensed as incurred.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Housing benefits

Inaccordance withthe PRChousingreformregulations,
the Group is required to make contributions to the
government-sponsored housing fund of the specified
salary amount of its full-time Chinese employees. At
the same time, the employees are required to make
a contribution equal to the Group’s contributions
out of their salaries. The employees are entitled
to claim the entire sum of the fund under certain
specified withdrawal circumstances. The assets of
the housing benefits are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions to the housing benefits are expensed
as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group operates anumber of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options and shares) of the
Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of options or
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted:

e including any market performance conditions;
e excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions; and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022

B FXNAZTHLEEE

=

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

158

(c)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options or shares that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement period
and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options or
shares that are expected to vest based on the service
and non-market performance vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments (continued)

Share Option Scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) (note 23(a)).

When the options are granted to identified
participants, the fair value of the option is recognised
as an expense over the vesting period. When the
options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium. When
the options are cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. When the
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share Award Plan
The Company adopted a share award plan (“Share
Award Plan”) (note 23(b)).

When the shares of the Company are purchased
by the Share Award Plan from the market, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “shares held for
Share Award Plan” and deducted from total equity.

When shares are granted to identified participants,
the fair value of the shares awarded based on the
market value of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant is charged as employee expenses to profit
or loss of the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Provisions and contingent liabilities

160

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

2241 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
2242 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

2.25 Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services
The nature of the goods or services provided by the
Group is as follows:

(a) Sales of goods - distribution
The Group sells a range of drugs and other
pharmaceutical products to distributors through its
distribution network.

(b) Sales of goods - retail
The Group operates a chain of retail pharmacies for
selling drugs and other pharmaceutical products to
customers. Retail sales are usually settled in cash or
by credit card.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

162

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods

or services promised in a contract with a customer and

identifies as a performance obligation each promise to

transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)

that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same and that have the same

pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is

distinct if both of the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good or service

either on its own or together with other resources

that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the

good or service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good or service

to the customer is separately identifiable from other

promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer

the good or service is distinct within the context of

the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset
is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control
of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of prescribed drugs, non-prescribed drugs, healthcare
and other pharmaceutical products are recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control
of the promised asset, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and
the title is passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A GIRIT BRN

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE-F- 4~ AS+ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer), in determining
the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
consideration for the effects of the time value of money.
The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers

in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or
arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group's
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness

information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effect of the significant financing
component if the period of financing is one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE_ZT-_F#A=1THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued) 225 WERTERR ()

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected distributors. The
Group estimates the volume rebates using the expected-
value method and assesses whether the estimated
variable consideration is constrained with reference
to the customer’s historical rebates entitlement and
accumulated purchases to date. Any significant estimation
variances will be analysed and taken into consideration
in the current estimation and assessment. Typically, the
estimated consideration is not constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the assets while it is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired
financial assets.

Consultancy service income
Consultancy service income is recognised over time when

services are rendered.

Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group's rights to receive dividend is established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income
from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R

Year ended 30 June 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

166

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to
a separate component are considered to be part of the
total consideration that is allocated to the separately
identified components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset as follows:

Land use rights Over the lease term

Properties Over the lease term

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022

BE_ZT-__F . A=1THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

168

POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual
value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicitin the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual
value guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments
or the future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In
case of a change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures
the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit

or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease
if

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE—_ZT-—F#,A=1+BIFE

2.

170

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)
When a lease modification is not accounted for as
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@) the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

(c) the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

(d) forlease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain
or loss relating to the partial or full termination of
the lease in profit or loss.

(e) forall other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by
making a corresponding adjustment to the right-
of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group's consolidated

financial statements when the shareholders’ right to
dividends is established.

2.28 Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI R M
Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__F . A=1THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Related parties (continued)

172

b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

v)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group. If the Group
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

i) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

itis a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(a)

(b)

(c)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance. The Group regularly
monitors its exposure and currently considers not
necessary to hedge any of these financial risks.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with
transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency other than the entity’s
functional currency. These include mainly the equity
instruments designated as at FVOCI (note 13), cash
and bank balances (note 20) and the trade and other
receivables (note 17) denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars (“"HKD") and United States Dollars (“USD").
The Group currently does not hedge its foreign
exchange exposure.

As at 30 June 2022, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the USD/HKD with all
other variables held constant, loss before income
tax for the year ended 30 June 2022 would have
been RMB603,000 (2021: RMB476,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of HKD denominated equity instruments
designated as at FVOCI.

The Group will constantly review the economic
situation and its foreign exchange risk profile, and
will consider appropriate hedging measures in the
future, as may be necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RS ER R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2022
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3.

174

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalent and restricted cash, which
is net of loss allowance, represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account the value of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements in relation to financial assets.

Trade receivables

Retail sales at the Group’s pharmacies are usually
settled in cash or by debit or credit cards. For
distribution sales, there is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables, as the majority
of the Group's sales are settled upon delivery of
goods. The trade receivables are with credit periods
of not more than 90 days.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of receivables included in
the consolidated balance sheet are mainly generated
by the Group's distributions segment and represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to these financial assets.

Counterparty risk related to trade receivables is
limited due to the large number of customers in the
Group's customer portfolio and their diversification
throughout various business sectors as well as
geographic locations. As at 30 June 2022, the
exposure to the top 15 customers occupies 42%
(2021: 29%) of the gross trade receivables, with the
exposure to the largest customer representing 7%
(2021: 13%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group’s customer base consists of
a wide range of clients and the trade receivables
are categorised by common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL for trade receivables and recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment. The
expected loss rate used in the Group's estimation on
ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and
adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to
reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historical data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. The management
considered that these factors do not indicate any
significant credit risk and additional loss allowance
for provision for trade receivables as at 30 June 2022
and 2021 to be insignificant. There was no change in
the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the year ended 30 June 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXERER(EZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BHERBEEE)

(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERRRE)

Trade receivables (continued) ESEWIE(E)

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis RZBE-_—_FR-_FT - —F
ANA=TH ERBESEWR
FIBHER B H BRI £ 4T 1A

based on recognition date of the trade receivables
is as follows:

F @
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AE#BTT
Up to 3 months 3ME A LAR 97,496 84,806
4 to 6 months 4268 A 124 988
7 to 12 months 7Z212@ A 218 =
97,838 85,794
As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis RZE-_—_FR_FT = —
based on past due date is as follows: NA=+8 LafEsHE
ZERER D
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AE#TT
Not past due SREEp 97,496 84,806
Past due but not impaired 2 AH{ERBE
Up to 3 months 3fE A LAA 124 988
4 to 6 months 4% 68 A 218 -
342 988
97,838 85,794
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The trade receivables as at 30 June 2022 and 2021
that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers for whom there is
no significant financial difficulty and, based on past
experiences, the overdue amounts can be recovered.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as at 30 June 2022 and 2021 related to a wide range
of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low
credit risk based on the debtors’ strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and low risk of default. No loss allowance is
recognised based on the measurement on 12-month
ECL.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into
account the historical actual credit loss experience
and the financial position of the counterparties,
past collection history, current creditworthiness,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of
the industry in which the counterparties operate,
in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default.
The management of the Group considers the ECL
of other receivables to be insignificant after taking
into account the financial position, credit quality
and past settlement records of the counterparties.
There was no change in the estimation techniques
or significant assumptions made during the years
ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt RS ER R M EE

Year ended 30 June 2022

B - —FNA=1+HIFE

3.

178

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Credit risk (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash is limited because the counter-
parties are state-owned financial institutions, the
state-controlled financial institutions, joint-stock
commercial bank and local banks with high credit
quality and good reputation. No loss allowance is
recognised for the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered as adequate by management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to fulfil
its future funds requirements through cash flows
generated from operations.

Generally there is no specific credit period granted
by the suppliers but the related trade payables are
normally expected to be settled within three months
after receipt of goods or services.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB57,795,000 (2021: RMB33,091,000)
(note 20) and trade receivables of RMB97,838,000
(2021: RMB85,794,000) (note 17), that are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity
risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
E-ZE-—FAA=ZTRHLEFE

3. BXERER(EZ)
3.1 BIBEBEZE)

Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mENVERE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's financial TEIMAEENERE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on B REERABRAZEA
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to BRI BEESRE
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed BEI BRI - RIEATIRER
in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows. TROEHNAMRRERE -
Total
contractual Total
On demand or undiscounted carrying
less than 1year  1to2years  2to 5 years payment amount
BiA
REXS-Fr -FERFE WEELF NHAS REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT AREFT  AREFT  ARETL
As at 30 June 2022 RZE--EXA=1H
Trade and other payables 85 RAMERTA 354,101 - - 354,101 354,101
Borrowings &3 1,200 1,200 40,300 42,700 40,000
355,301 1,200 40,300 396,801 394,101
As at 30 June 2021 RZZZ-EXA=1H
Trade and other payables BHREAENTE 324,098 = - 324,098 324,098
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,206 = - 4,206 3,930
328,304 - - 328,304 328,028
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2022
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3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its restricted cash, bank
balances and borrowings

The interest rates and maturities of the Group's
restricted cash, bank balances and borrowings are
disclosed in notes 19, 20 and 25 respectively.

The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s borrowings is
arranged at fixed rate. In the management'’s opinion,
the Group does not have material interest rate
exposure and therefore no sensitivity analysis is
presented in this respect.

As at the end of the reporting period, if the interest
rates on restricted cash and bank balances had been
0.5% higher/lower than the prevailing rate announced
by People’s Bank of China, with all other variables
held constant, loss before income tax for the year
ended 30 June 2022 would have been RMB439,000
(2021: RMB336,000) lower/higher, respectively.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group's strategy remains consistent throughout the

period.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

Consistent with peer participants in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as total equity as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a level
of not more than 50%.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2022 and 2021 were as

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

iR RERE(E)
3.2 EXERERE(E)

REBEZRBENEFENEREE

LERECEA KR o 2L R AMERSIFRE
%M§$wﬁﬁ o EBFRALAE
FRFCRBSEEBYE - AX
BBEUNESHEERRRIITHER
BENERFEAE - AEBER
1S E RN B B R R T IB50%
BRI o

RZEBE__FR-_E-_—FRA=

follows: THREARGELRDOT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARMTF T
Borrowings (note 25) &R (B aE25) 40,000 -

Less: cash and cash e A N e

equivalents (note 20) ZEW(HT5£20) (57,795) (33,091)
Net cash R H5E (17,795) (33,091)
Total equity TR 408,710 575,917
Total capital BN 390,915 542,826
Gearing ratio (Note) EARBELR(HFE) N/ATE A N/ATNE

Note: As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group was in net cash position and the
calculation of gearing ratio is therefore not meaningful.

N —

¢%§ﬁw@ﬁf%%vw$

eI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__F . A=1THLEFE

3.

182

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(@) Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

The following table presents the financial assets

and liabilities measured at fair value or required to

disclose their fair value in these consolidated financial

statements on a recurring basis at 30 June 2022 and

2021 across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the
fair value measurement categorised in its entirety

based on the lowest level of input that is significant

to the entire measurement. The levels are defined

as follows:

—  Level1(highestlevel): quoted prices (unadjusted)

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

that the Group can access at the measurement

date;

—  Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREEMGE(E)
(a) Fairvalue estimation of financial assets and liabilities ) 2RMEERBGBEAAEEM
(continued) (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR 2R 3% #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

As at 30 June 2022 R-B--&xHA=1H
Assets BE
Equity instruments designated as  #8iE AR AR EEFAE
at FVOCI (note 13) foiralim R iR T
A(Hf213)
— Unlisted equity instruments —FrmERTA - - 12,056 12,056
As at 30 June 2021 RZE- 45X H=1H
Assets EE
Equity instruments designated as  #8E AR AR EEFAE
at FVOCI (note 13) m TaREEER T
A(Hfi213)
~ Unlisted equity instruments —FrmERTA - - 9,265 9,265
During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, there BE_ZE-_—_F#K_Z—
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair FRA=ZTHLEEFE 814
value measurements and no transfers into and out HER AR BEGEZHL
of Level 3 fair value measurements. BEE TESIRAAEE
FrEBAREH -
Financial instruments measured at fair value based BEMRFAEUL A EETE
on Level 3 measurement: ZEMTA:
The movements of the unlisted equity instruments BHE_T__FrkZ%T=
during the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021 are FRAA=THLFE " ¥FL
shown as follows: mEm TAMESIAT :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE—_ZT-—F#,A=1+BIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(@) Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

3\

P ERERE(E)

33 &

(a)

REEMGEF(E)
TREERBEAABES
i (%)

Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
EERRDABEFARMGESRENERTR

2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFIT
At beginning of the reporting N2 A= R )
period 9,265 15,474
Total gain (loss) recognised in REfERE W R
other comprehensive income K4 s (B 18) 2,499 (5,066)
Exchange difference [E R AZ%8 292 (1,143)
At the end of the reporting RS HR
period 12,056 9,265

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurement:

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments are
estimated by an independent and qualified
professional valuer using price-to-earnings (P/E)
multiple model. It includes assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The average price-to-earnings (P/E) multiples
of comparable companies of the corresponding
industries is 19.21 times (2021: 19.35 times) and the
discount rate applied for lack of marketability is
20% (2021: 20%), which is estimated based on Black
Scholes option pricing model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(@) Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

3. BXERER(EZ)
3.3 ARMBEME(E)
@) SMEERABEBEAABEM

(continued) (&)
Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable FETTEFRAZBHE
inputs EZ2E
The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable FEIMARBEFEZEEST
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as AR R A BUR UK E &
follows: s
Impact on fair
value and the
Sensitivity of fair value to Group's other
changes in unobservable inputs comprehensive
Fair value at Valuation (assuming other factors remain Reasonably  income for the
Description 30 June 2022 technique Unobservable inputs unchanged) possible range period
R=B-ZF BAHAAEE
AAZTHZ TUBERABBEMMEESRE RETH RAKEHES
i DABE HERE TUBRRARE 28(RRABGREZERTR) #BEE QUEYE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
ERARAMEEFAAMGEUENESRTE
Unlisted equity 12,056 P/E multiple ~ Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of +/- 20% +- 241
instruments comparable companies comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice
versa
FEETRAIA TEERY  TAHBRARZTHTREE AEERARZVHTEEES -
DABEER - RZMA
Discount for lack of The higher the discount +/- 5% +/-754

marketability

RZ M5 RBERR

ABREEBREEZERERLAT FERE2021/22

rate applied for lack of
marketability, the lower the
fair value and vice versa
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI KM

Year ended 30 June 2022

HE-B- G A=tALFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MEREREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREEMGE(E)
(a) Fairvalue estimation of financial assets and liabilities ) TRMEERBGBEAAEEM
(continued) sH(4&)
Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable FETTEFRAZBHE
inputs (continued) B8 (E)
Impact on fair
value and the
Sensitivity of fair value to Group's other
changes in unobservable inputs comprehensive
Fair value at Valuation (assuming other factors remain Reasonably  income for the
Description 30 June 2021 technique Unobservable input unchanged) possible range period
S AL EE
~NAZTEZ Tﬂgﬁgﬁ)\%ﬁa@ﬁ@@@ﬁfg AEFR  RASEHMEG
ft NAfBE HERT THBEEAEE 29 (RRAMRRERTE) 2985E AlEcYE
RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
REARMABEFARMGSRENEEIR
Unlisted equity 9,265 P/E multiple  Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of +/- 20% +/- 1,853
instruments comparable companies comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice
versa
FEmERTA MRERH TENRARAZ THTRR  TENRAR HOmALES -
RrBEEE R
Discount for lack of The higher the discount +/- 5% +/-519
marketability rate applied for lack of
marketability, the lower the
fair value and vice versa
R mERELER BemERBLREER AR
BEBE - R2HA
b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried b) SREEFRABZAAEBED
at amounts other than fair values BB AR BEIN SRR
In the opinion of the management of the Group, no AEBEBERR &
other financial assets and liabilities of the Group are RIBZZFR-_FTZ—
carried at amounts materially different from their fair NA=ZTRYEHMERE
values as at 30 June 2022 and 2021. ENBGEzZeREARRE
BEHREAZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period are addressed below.

(a) Estimation of biological assets
Estimates and judgements in determining the fair value
of the wild ginsengs relate to quantities, grading and
market prices.

The quantities of the wild ginsengs are estimated based
on a valuation report issued by an independent and
qualified professional valuer using the statistical sampling
method and also taking into considerations of factors
related to the wild ginsengs as advised by ginsengs
experts who employed by the valuer. Based on the
valuation report, the samples are selected randomly and
the total quantities of the wild ginsengs are extrapolated
using a normal distribution model with an acceptable
deviation estimated by the valuer.

The wild ginsengs grow at different grading and there
can be a considerable spread in the quality and grading
that affect the prices achieved. According to the valuation
report, an average grading is assumed for the wild
ginsengs based on the laboratory test results on the
samples selected by a certified institution in accordance
with the standards issued by China Ginsengs Products
Standardisation Technical Committee.

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE—_ZT-—F#,A=1+BIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

188

(a)

Estimation of biological assets (continued)

The quantities and the grading of the wild ginsengs
cannot be measured at exact precision. The estimates
are based on many factors that require evaluation by the
ginsengs experts interpreting the available data, as well
as the market prices and other factors. The reliability of
these estimates at any point of time depends on both the
quality and quantity of the data, the expected statistic
deviation as well as the expert judgement.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (together the “Non-current
Assets”) allocated to the operating segments of
Distribution and Retails (the “"CGUs")

Determining an appropriate amount of an impairment
requires an estimation of recoverable amounts of the
respective CGUs to which the Non-current Assets belong,
which is the VIU calculation. The VIU calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. The discount rate
represents rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or there is a downward revision of
future estimated cash flows due to unfavorable changes
in facts and circumstances, an additional impairment

loss may arise.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of a logistics building included
in property, plant and equipment

Included in property, plant and equipment was a logistics
building located in Jiamusi, the PRC with carrying amount
of RMB 185,832,000 at 30 June 2022. The Group performs
impairment assessment when there is an indication
whether property, plant and equipment have suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.12. During the year, the Group
had utilised certain areas of the logistics building as
warehouse for its distribution business and continued
to seek out its opportunities to develop the logistics
business. In view of the loss sustained by the distribution
business and the current low usage rate as warehousing
for the Distribution segment, management considered
that there were indicators of impairment of the logistics
building existed at 30 June 2022 and performed an
impairment assessment thereon. The recoverable
amounts of the logistics buildings included in property,
plant and equipment have been determined based on
depreciated replacement cost (the “DRC") approach
based on a valuation performed by an independent
and qualified professional valuer. The DRC approach
requires an estimation of the new replacement cost of
the assets from which deductions are then made to allow
for physical deterioration and all forms of obsolescence
and optimisation.

Impairment of investment in an associate

The management of the Group carries out review on
impairment on the interest in an associate whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrying amount may not be recoverable by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of the VIU and fair value
less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount.
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Year ended 30 June 2022
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Year ended 30 June 2022

BE-=

BT _FRA=THILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Impairment of investment in an associate (continued)

190

In determining whether the interest in an associate is
impaired, it requires an estimation of its recoverable
amount, which represents higher of the VIU and fair value
less cost of disposal. For the VIU calculation, it requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the operations of the investment and from the
ultimate disposal and a discount rate (that reflects the
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the associate) in order to calculate
the present value. For the fair value less cost of disposal,
the valuation techniques applied by an independent and
qualified professional valuer has been agreed with the
management of the Group. The management determined
whether valuation techniques and assumptions applied
are appropriate to the circumstances of the investment.
The estimation of recoverable amount of investment
included some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Change in assumption could
affect the recoverable amount of the investment. Where
the recoverable amount of the Group's interest in an
associate is less than the carrying amount, an impairment

loss may arise.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group's management estimates the loss allowance
for trade and other receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default and
expected loss rate. The estimation involves high degree
of estimation and uncertainty which is based on the
Group's historical information, existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are
determined by the management of the Group as further
detailed in note 2.8. This estimate is based on the
management'’s experiences in the industry. The Group
will increase or decrease the depreciation charge where
useful life is shorter or longer than previously estimated.
The estimate of useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and the depreciation charge could change
significantly as a result of changes in the pharmaceutical
market, market trend and competition. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful life is less
than the previously estimated, or the property, plant and
equipment will be written-off or written-down to the
recoverable amount when there is an indication that the
carrying amount is not recoverable.

Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be charged. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

4.

192

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h) Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities
The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates
to discount future lease payments since interest rates
implicit in the leases are not readily determinable. In
determining the discounts rates for its leases, the Group
refers to a rate that is readily observable as the starting
point and then applies judgement and adjusts such
observable rate to determine the incremental borrowing

4. BERETHERTRAE(E)

(h)

SAEHERBEZTRE

ARHERSHNRHANETE - A
S E AR AL EERFRR
RRMERA - BEHBEENITIR
i - AEBESERKEIERE
B M 2R 3 44 1 41 6 DA 2 5 78 R AT R
ENEELAE  EEEERF

rate.
REVENUE 5. W=
The Group has recognised the following amounts relating to REBE D NERATER T E AR
revenue in profit or loss: HEHE
2022 2021
—s-= T %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers (a) REZF& XA () 1,273,572 1,185,168
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W (E)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a) Wmz#in
For the year ended 30 June 2022

BE-_Z-_—FXA=tHLEE

Distributions Retails Total
2 Z2E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT ARETT

Major products TEEmM
Prescribed drugs BT B 165,538 90,908 256,446
Non-prescribed drugs FERE T EEY) 709,373 239,517 948,890
Healthcare products RIS 106,939 87,514 194,453
Other pharmaceutical products HAth B8 B o 54,962 15,705 70,667
1,036,812 433,644 1,470,456

Eliminations i (196,884) - (196,884)
Revenue from external customers 2R B/MNIBE F KU E 839,928 433,644 1,273,572
Timing of revenue recognition: UL REFRGR :
Products transferred at EmRE R 2ER

a point in time 839,928 433,644 1,273,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__FA=1+THLEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WS (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (a) Wmzdn (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE—_Z-—FA=+tHLFE

Distributions Retails Total
oAk =& 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARRTT AR¥ETT AR¥ETT

Major products FTEEM
Prescribed drugs BBy 146,666 90,532 237,198
Non-prescribed drugs FERE T EEY) 624,102 290,169 914,271
Healthcare products IREE R 91,182 118,394 209,576
Other pharmaceutical products H b B8 s o 42,637 20,653 63,290
904,587 519,748 1,424,335

Eliminations K H (239,167) - (239,167)
Revenue from external customers R B IMNEIEF B S 665,420 519,748 1,185,168
Timing of revenue recognition: IR FEARER -
Products transferred at EmiRE R ERER

a point in time 665,420 519,748 1,185,168
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Board of Directors is the Group's chief operating
decision-maker. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the information reviewed by the Board
of Directors for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance.

The Group is principally engaged in the distributions and
retails of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the
northeastern region of the PRC.

Distributions, Retails and Others are presented to the Board
of Directors to assess their performance and for making
respective business decisions which are considered to be three
segments in accordance with IFRS 8 "Operating Segment”. The
"Others” segment mainly comprises investment companies.

The Group's principal market is the northeastern region of
the PRC. The Group has a large number of customers, which
are widely dispersed within the northeastern region of the
PRC, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's total revenues for the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021. Accordingly, no geographical segment is presented.

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost. The revenue from
external customers and the costs, the total assets and the
total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that
of the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
loss before interests, tax, depreciation and amortisation
("Adjusted EBITDA"). The measurement basis of Adjusted
EBITDA excludes the effect of share of post-tax results of joint
ventures, share of post-tax results of an associate, impairment
loss or, if applicable its reversal on intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment in
an associate.

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE_ZT-_F#A=1THLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
(BT —FA=THILEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEWER(E)

The segment information for the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT-__FRXA=THLEFEER
and as at 30 June 2022 is as follows: R _FRNAZ=ZTHNSBERN
8

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE-Z-_FAA=THLEE

196

Distributions Retails Others Total
Wik 2E Hithi @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETL ARET AREFL
Segment revenue el Es 1,036,812 433,644 - 1,470,456
Inter-segment revenue A Eb R (196,884) - - (196,884)
Revenue from external customers RENDEF R 839,928 433,644 - 1,273,572
Adjusted EBITDA BRREHIE REHA
ME 27,949 (160,139) (8,477) (140,667)
Impairment loss on investment in an BEDARERESE
associate (21,988) - - (21,988)
Depreciation and amortization EREH (14,858) (11,197) - (26,055)
Finance income 53N 456 403 2,783 3,642
Finance costs BITS R (1,024) (294) 2) (1,320)
Share of post-tax results of an associate AMEHEARRTEEE (1,625) - - (1,625)
Loss for the year FEER (11,090) (171,227) (5,696) (188,013)
Additions of non-current assets (excluding ~ FERENEEREIN(TEE
financial assets) SHEE) 70 31 - 101
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
 E_E_FANAZTHLEFE

6. PWER(E)
As at 30 June 2022
RZBZZFXA=1H

Distributions Retails Others Total

ik | 2E Hi % @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT ANRE T AREFR

Total assets before eliminations KENEELR 1,411,178 610,820 1,400,900 3,422,898
Inter-segment assets AEHEEE (778,918) (422,939) (1,381,965) (2,583,822)
Total assets BERE 632,260 187,881 18,935 839,076
Total liabilities before eliminations A EEE 1,235,694 900,135 11,041 2,146,870
Inter-segment liabilities HBEEE (879,063) (827,650) (9,791) (1,716,504)
Total liabilities BELE 356,631 72,485 1,250 430,366
Investment in an associate BELRIRE 87,526 - - 87,526
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
(BT —FA=THILEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ’ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ@l(éé’)
The segment information for the year ended 30 June 2021 %Z?: —FRA=ZTHILEFERIR
and as at 30 June 2021 is as follows: —=ZT— E/\)EJ +HMSBE RN
8

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BEZZ-_ 4R A-THILEE

Distributions Retails Others Total
P T8 LIS Fh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ANEETT ABEBTT AEETT ARETFT

Segment revenue DEflas 904,587 519,748 = 1,424,335
Inter-segment revenue il (239,167) - - (239,167)
Revenue from external customers RENBEFHNE 665,420 519,748 - 1,185,168
Adjusted EBITDA RRBRERAERBHEANE (60,206) (268,701) (7,031) (335,938)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BYAERBEE (213) (100) = (313)
Impairment loss on investment in an associate BENARERESR (210,373) - - (210,373)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment %1% * B RaXERESE (1,609 (2,363) - (3972)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets RAEEERESR (229) (3,664) = (3.893)
Depreciation and amortisation REREH (19,753) (89,167) - (108,920)
Finance income B 487 764 2 1,253
Finance costs BISRA (108) (1,123) 10,637) (11,868)
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures PMEEERRRHEER - 9 - 9
Share of post-tax results of an associate PEBENRIRBIEEE 3211 = = 3,211
Income tax expenses FEHRS = (5,203) - (5,203)
Loss for the year FEER (288,793) (369,548) (17,666) (676,007)
Additions of non-current assets (excluding financial  JERBEEREM(TBELE

assets) BE) 28 1,696 - 1924
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

6. DEWER(E)

As at 30 June 2021
KB4/ A=TH
Distributions Retails Others Total
A == EfE% @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AEETT ARKTFTL ARETT

Total assets before eliminations BEAEEEE 1,746,181 683,691 1,310,274 3,740,146
Inter-segment assets HHEEE (923,525) (558,831) (1,299,949) (2,782,305)
Total assets RELE 822,656 124,860 10,325 957,841
Total liabilities before eliminations RENERLER 1,245,834 986,444 25,120 2,257,398
Inter-segment liabilities PEEAE (995,839) (855,729) (23,906) (1,875,474)
Total liabilities BT 249,995 130,715 1,214 381,924
Investment in an associate NS 111,139 - - 111,139
The amounts provided to the Board of Directors with respect FEEeilRtEEEERENSTE T}
to total assets are measured in a manner consistent with that REAHERE—BH RS - %
of these consolidated financial statements. These assets are _rﬁﬁjﬁﬁ‘é/\—éﬁa’]#é EMEERNBERA
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the EITOR o

physical location of the assets.

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FEHRE2021/22 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI KM

Year ended 30 June 2022

HE-B-—F/A=TAILFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7. Y% BERRE

Furniture and Leasehold
Buildings ~ Motor vehicles office equipment improvements Total
BF BE  RARBARE HEXE by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
For the year ended BE-Z-—5/:A=THL
30 June 2021 EF
Opening net book amount HREFE 247921 2,109 5479 85,312 340,821
Additions #m - 181 25 1,697 1,903
Depreciation (note 27) WEWz27) (13,760) (1,538) (2,813) (79,030) (97.141)
Impairment (note 27) A7) - (752) (1,465) (1,755) (3,972)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 234,161 - 1,226 6,224 241,611
As at 30 June 2021 R-Z-—Fx A=1H
Cost AR 289,498 13,654 4,724 167,826 512,702
Accumulated depreciation 2ETE (55,337) (12,902) (39,033) (159,847) (267,119)
Accumulated impairment ZitRfE - (752) (1,465) (1,755) (3972)
Net book amount EFE 234,161 - 1,226 6,224 241,611
For the year ended BE-E-__EXA=tHL
30 June 2022 g
Opening net book amount B E#(E 234,161 - 1,226 6,224 241,611
Additions 1 - - 101 - 101
Disposals BE - - (236) - (236)
Disposals - disposal of a RE—ME-RNEAR
subsidiary - - (542) 2) (544)
Depreciation (note 27) wEW#27) (13,759) - (549) (4,232) (18,540)
Write off fise - - - - -
Closing net book amount R A 220,402 - - 1,990 222,392
As at 30 June 2022 R-B-ZEXA=1H
Cost R 289,499 13,654 25,592 134,948 463,693
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (69,097) (12,902) (24,127) (131,203) (237,329)
Accumulated impairment 2iHRE - (752) (1,465) (1,755) (3.972)
Net book amount EHFE 220,402 - - 1,990 222,392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to profit or
loss as follows:

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

7. ME BERRE(E)

(a)

BRSHNRNITEERNT ¢

2022 2021

—E-F SeE e =

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHF T AEEFT

Administrative expenses THFAX 11,383 14,573
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAT 7,157 82,568
18,540 97,141

Key assumptions for the value-in-use (“VIU") calculations
in determining the recoverable amount of CGUs

In view of the Group reported a continued loss for the
current year, the management considered that there
is an impairment indicator on the Non-current Assets
and performed impairment assessment by assessing the
recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs to which
the Non-current Assets relate.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined by
the management, with assistance from an independent
and qualified professional valuer, based on VIU
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the business in which the CGUs operates.

ABREEBREEZERERLAT FERE2021/22

(b)

BERESELENMNIWRESHE
BEAEE(TEREEDTEN
FERE
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EERRIEREDEEFERED
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i o

ReEE BRI ARESEHE
12 E B R A K IR A
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% o BB E D RERE LN E
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FHEEE .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE—_ZT-—F#,A=1+BIFE

7.

202

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b) Key assumptions for the value-in-use (“VIU") calculations

in determining the recoverable amount of CGUs
(continued)
Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development and its business strategy. The weighted
average growth rates used are consistent with the
management forecasts. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
business. The key assumptions used for VIU calculations
are as follow:

Z

ME -~ BERER®E(E)
b) BEERESELBUNTRESHE
HEAEETENEERR(E)

EEEBREBERENETIHER
F TR R A B B 575 3R B SR FEDR B A
Ko FIRARINEF O RRET
BEMTARE - - FAIRAMITER
RBMBILL R - W IR RAERI R
FrERER - (EREEEMME
CICE L UNNE

2022 2021
Distributions o 88 —E-F —E-—F
Gross margin EFI=E 9.5% - 12% 5% — 10%
Growth rate in the projection TEORIHA A 38 & &
period 1.5% - 5% 1.5% — 5%
Long-term growth rate beyond FRBTRAIA 2 RHIE R =
the projection period 1.5% 1.5%
Pre tax discount rate BiRTHTIR = 17% 17%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b) Key assumptions for the value-in-use (“VIU") calculations

in determining the recoverable amount of CGUs
(continued)

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

7. ME BERRE(E)

BEERESELENGNIWESHE
BEREBEEFENEERR(E)

2022 2021
Retails ZE —EC-CF T
Gross margin FEF = 23% - 26% 23% — 26%
Growth rate in the projection TERIEAAIE R X
period 1.5% - 5% 1.5% — 5%
Long-term growth rate beyond FRATEAIA z REIE R =
the projection period 1.5% 1.5%
Pre tax discount rate T ATHTIR & 17% 17%

Based on the results of the assessments, the Group
recognised impairment loss for intangible assets (note
9), property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (note 8) of RMBNIl (2021: RMB213,000), RMBNIil
(2021: RMB1,609,000) and RMBNil (2021: RMB229,000) in
Distributions segment; and RMBNil (2021: RMB100,000),
RMBNil (2021: RMB2,363,000) and RMBNil (2021:
RMB3,664,000) in Retails segment respectively for the
year ended 30 June 2022.

ERFFENER  #E-T ==
NAZTBLEFE AEERS
HOERELEE(WNE) - B
¥ BEREEURFEREEE
(FI3E8) KR BRI S Bl B AR
Zo(ZZF=—%F : AR¥213,000
L) ARBZT(ZT=Z—%F:
AR #1,609,0007T) R ARKEZ T
(ZZ2=—%F: AR¥229,0007T):
REEDBERZEREBED
AMBARBEZL(ZZE=—F: A
R ¥100,0007T) * ARBEZT(=
T=—F : ARM2,363,0007T) &
ARBZT(ZZEZ—F: ARE¥
3,664,0007T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
(BT —FA=THILEFE

7.

204

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(c)

Summary of accumulated impairment allocation for each

operating segment

7. W% BERRE(E)

(c) BEEDHNWRFRED EME

Other Property,
intangible plant and Right-of-use
Goodwill assets  equipment assets Total
Hit 9% BE
[k 3 BmVEE kFE EREEE #ast
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIL ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETFT
Segment pan:i!
Distribution 7 58,115 - 1,609 - 59,724
Retail TE 379,127 - 2,363 - 381,490
At 30 June 2022 N-E—-—F
~NA=TH 437,242 - 3,972 - 441,214
Distribution 7 8 58,115 6,885 1,609 229 66,838
Retail TE 489,480 132,509 2,363 3,664 628,016
At 30 June 2021 R-ZE_—%F
~NA=+H 547,595 139,394 3,972 3,893 694,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022

BE_T-_FAA=THILFE

8. EAREENRHEERE

EAEEE

Land use rights Properties Total
T AE L/ @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE-Z-—FE A=THIFE
Opening net book amount HAR S E 5,220 22,644 27,864
Depreciation (note 27) W& (Hizt27) (134) (11,370) (11,504)
Impairment (note 27) RE(HF27) - (3,893) (3,893)
Closing net book amounts HARERmEE 5,086 7,381 12,467
As at 30 June 2021 RZEZ—4$,A=1H
Cost AR 5,354 35,447 40,801
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (268) (24,173) (24,441)
Accumulated impairment ZEtR{E - (3,893) (3,893
Net book amount REFE 5,086 7,381 12,467
For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE-_B__EXA=THLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 5,086 7,381 12,467
Write off B - - _
Depreciation (note 27) WeE(h227) (134) (7,381) (7,515)
Closing net book amounts HREREFE 4,952 - 4,952
As at 30 June 2022 W-E--&xHA=+H
Cost A 5,354 - 5,354
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (402) - (402)
Accumulated impairment ZETRE - - -
Net book amount IREFE 4,952 - 4,952
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
B - —FNA=1+HIFE

206

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 8. FHA#ESERHBEEESEE(E)

(continued)

Lease liabilities HEas
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARMTT
Current portion MENER D - 3,930

The Group's right-of-use assets in respect of land use
rights and properties represent the prepaid operating lease
payment of leasehold lands located in the PRC and leases of
various retail stores (2021: prepaid operating lease payment of
leasehold lands located in the PRC and lease of various retail
stores, offices and warehouses) respectively. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 3 (2021: 2 to 5) years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
similar terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants.

As at 30 June 2022, the management performed an impairment
assessment on right-of-use assets and as a result recognised
impairment loss of RMBNIl (2021: RMB229,000) and RMBNIil
(2021: RMB3,664,000) in Distributions and Retails segments
respectively, as further detailed in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

At 30 June 2022, the weighted average incremental borrowing
rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 8.61% (2021:
8.61%) per annum.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 8. FHA#ESERHBEEESEE(E)

(continued)

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year: REBDHERTNIAFESHE -
2022 2021
—E-F SeE e =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Lease payments: HERE :
Short-term leases MHEE 65,237 76,383
Low-value assets REBEE - 88
Expenses recognised in profit or loss ~ REz=NTERAF X 65,237 76,471
Lease payments: HENE :
Interests on lease liabilities HEB BN 276 1,065
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE 3,930 10,211
4,206 11,276
Total cash outflow for leases HERESMLERE 69,443 87,747
Commitments under leases HERE
At 30 June 2022, the Group was committed to RMB24,239,000 RZEBE-__FNA=+H  ~EEE

(2021: RMB35,747,000) for short-term leases.

HATE & A HE A R #24,239,000( — =
——% : AR¥35,747,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022

2B —E R A=1THIFE
9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

208

9. EREE

Trademarks, Contractual
licenses and supplier Computer
Goodwill brand loyalty relationship ~ software licenses Total
B HER .
HE RESHE AOMEEEER SHI4TTR b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Hia) (Hizttb)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 EZE=Z=—%/A=1H
ILFE
Opening net book amount HREHE - - - 567 567
Additions m - - = 2 21
Amortisation (note 27) B (Hi227) - - - (275) (275)
Impairment (note 27) EHE27) - - = (313) (313)
Closing net book amount HARREHE = > o & -
As at 30 June 2021 R=ZF=—4%~A=+H
Cost kA& 547,595 184,999 4,775 2,377 776,746
Accumulated amortisation RETEH - (52,318) (35,375) (2,064) (89,757)
Accumulated impairment Z3tRME (547,595) (132,681) (6,400) (313) (686,989)
Net book amount REFE - - - - -
For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZ-ZE-—FXA=t1H
LFE
Opening net book amount HNREEE - - - - -
Write off 6z - - - - -
Closing net book amount BRREEE - - - - _
As at 30 June 2022 RZBZZEXA=1H
Cost A 437,242 - - 39 437,281
Accumulated amortisation RFTE - - - (39) (39)
Accumulated impairment 25tRME (437,242) - - - (437,242)
Net book amount BEFE - - - - _
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10.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022

9.

(@) Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of distribution

and retail businesses in prior periods allocated to the

operating segments of Distributions and Retails were
fully impaired as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

Amortisation of the Group's intangible assets for the

year ended 30 June 2022 amounted to RMBNil (2021:
RMB275,000) have been charged to profit or loss as
administrative expenses.

SUBSIDIARIES

(E—TE _FRHE+

E\mEEE(E)
() RTE-_—HER T~ —

+H - BEEREWE S

BEENEESREEDH

a8 B REURE ©
b) AEEREZE-ZT—_—F

BIEFE

FRA=
REEH
hEEZ

NA=1

AFENEREES#HEARE
Too(—FE=——4%F : ARK275,000
T EEATRAS 8BS -

10. B A A

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries as at

30 June 2022:

Particulars of

R-B-__FRA=T

TEXEWMBRAR :

Proportion of

Proportion of
ordlnary shares

ordmary shares

B A A

Proportion of

ordlnary shares held

Place/date of incorporation and Prlnupal activities and issued share  directly held /y held by the grOLy) by non-controllin
Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity place of operation capital  the Company (%) interests (/%
GANIEE A 3 ARFERS AEEMRERER FERERNEEE
HEAA4E i [ SERNROAE  SRORARS MW i) Bt
Hebei J|nt|an Yan Xiao Pharmaceutical ~ the PRC Wholesaling drugs and RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd. * 27 December 2005 other pharmaceutical
Limited liabilities company products
the PRC
AL EFAEEERRAA i JEEMRANEEER  ARB30000000T
’ : £RTIEL-A- T S
BRAERT
Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin Wholesaling drugs and USD92,310,000 = 100% <
Pharmaceut\cal Distribution Co,, 12 Februar 2004 other pharmaceutical
Ltd. * Limited habmtles company products
the PRC
FRTASRRLEELRERAA lE HEBNREHEEER 92,310,000% T
i i ZEEME_AtCR q: o
BREEAT
Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB1,000,000 - 100% -
Pharmaceut\cal Chain Co,, Ltd. * 23 June 2005 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company the PRC
EETReRELERERARAR il N ?%%&EME%EW ABH1,0000007T
Z%E E/ AZ+=H e
ﬁﬁﬁaf el
Jiamusi Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical the P Wholesaling drugs and RMB15,000,000 - 100% -
o, ltd.* 15Ju| 1998 other pharmaceutical
L\m\ted habwhtles company products
the PRC
ERMERE D BEERERAT il HEENRERREER  ARE150000007
i “AAVELATER - A
ERARRA
Jiamusi Jintian A\xm Pharmaceutical C Retailing drugs and other RMBS,000,000 - 100% -
ain Co,, Ltd. 14 April 2004 pharmaceutical products
Limited ligbilities company the PRC
ERMERE L ERERARAT R TERMRAMERER  ARRS000000T
Z2EIMERA A g
BREEAT

AEFEREERZRERAE

FEIRE2021/22

209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__FA=1+THLEFE

10. AR (&)
AARR-E-—FAA=+ABEAMN
TEBHBRA (&)

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries as at
30 June 2022: (continued)

Proportion of Proportion of Proportion of
Particulars of  ordinary shares  ordinary shares ordinary shares held
Place/date of incorporation and  Principal activities and issued share  directly'held by  held by the grmy) by non-controllin
Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity place of operation capital  the Company (% (%) interests (%
HRELY/ ! IEERKEE AEEMEEER FERERFEEE
KEATEE i iy (T SEABROMAE SRORARS  MLWA i) BB
Jilin Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical the PRC Wholesaling drugs and RMB1,000,000 - 100% -
Distribution Co., Ltd. * 4 December 2007 other pharmaceutical
Limited ligbilities company products
the PRC
EMEEREDBELHARAT hE M%&%%%u‘% AEH1,0000007T
_EFELE-ANA Gl
BREEAR
Daging Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB3,000,000 - 100% -
qu., Ltd. * 6 September 2007 pharmaceutical products
Limited ligbilities company the PRC
AEERELERERRRAR i TEENREBERER  ARE30000007
8 SSRLENAAR et
BREEAT
Harbin Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain e PRC Retalling drugs and other RMBS,000,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd. * 8 April 2005 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company the PRC
REBSRE L EFEHARAR Gk ?%%&E@%%Eﬁ ABH5,0000007T
ZZTRTRANR R
BREFAR
Sheeyanﬁ Wei Kang Drug Store Chain -~ the PRC Retalling drugs and other ~ RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
o, [td. * 24 October 2001 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company the PRC
BB REEEHARAT e TEEMREMEEER  ARK30000,0007T
E b raneli B
BREEAR
Shenyang Weishi Pharmaceutical Co., the PRC Wholesaling drugs and RMB5,000,000 = 100% =
L. 27 October 2013 other pharmaceutical
Limited liabilities company Products
the PRC
ERGtEEERAT TE HEEIRADBEER  ARNS50000007
"\ £ TEiA- T |
BREEAR
Suthua Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical e PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB3,800,000 = 99.04% 0.96%
Mall Chain Co,, Ltd. * 8 April 2003 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company the PRC
e REOEERHEHERAA tE__ TEENREBERER  ARE38000007
ZSIZERANA ik
BREFAR
Jiamusi Golden Sky Storage Co., Ltd * he PRC Storaﬁe RMB1,520,000 - 100% -
7 June 2016 the PRC
Limited liabilities Company
ERGEBRERRERAR hE g5 AEH1,520,0007
2 NERALA A
ERELAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries as at
30 June 2022: (continued)

There were no material transactions with non-controlling
interests during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group deregistered
certain wholly owned subsidiaries namely Jilin Jintian Aixin
Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd*, Liaoning Jintian Aixin Household
Store Chain Co., Ltd.*, Jilin Jintian Aixin Renhe Drug Store
Co., Ltd.*, Shenyang Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.*,
Anshan Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.*, Luen Fat
Dispensary Limited and Health Century (Hong Kong) Milky
City Co., Limited (2021: Neo Century Holdings Limited,
Qitaihe Jintian Aixin Health Pharmaceutical Chain Co., Ltd.*
and Jintian Pharmaceutical Company Limited). As a result, the
Group recognised a loss on deregistration of subsidiaries of
RMB2,010,000 (2021: RMB1,112,000) in the profit or loss for
the year.

In July 2021, the Group disposed of its indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary namely Tonghua Jinfeng Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.
("Tonghua Jinfeng”) to two independent third parties at
a total cash consideration of RMB2,000,000 and a gain on
disposal of a subsidiary of RMB1,794,000 was recognised in
the profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2022. Tonghua
Jinfeng was principally engaged in retailing drugs and other
pharmaceutical products in the PRC.

ca English translation for identification purposes only.

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE_ZT-_F#A=1THLFE

10. [HBAR (&)

AARIRZZTEZ—F - H=1THHEAEU
TEEWBAF (&)
HE_Z-__FR-_ZF-_—FRA=T
HIEFE  EFEERERITEEAR
5 o

BHE-T-_—_FA=1THLFE &
SEEFHEET2ENBRARI(ANEM
EeREOEFSEHEFRAR  EES
RELEEHBMEHEBRAR - HHE
SRELCAREEBRETAR
[BheREOBEEHARAT - B
SREOEEEHEERAT - BB AL
EBERARREELL(FE)NNEAE
RARNZEZ—F : Ittt LIERER
AR EEASRE O RREEEHE
RAa ke RBEERAR)) - BHitt -
RAFEE - AEBR B NRER M
BAREEARK2010,000(=ZE =
—F : AR¥1,112,0007T) °

RZZZ—F+ A AEERMEBEL
FoHHEEEEZENB AR (AR
ﬂ:%éb@ﬁi)%@fﬁﬁﬁﬁ@?(ﬁﬁ{t%
1)) - 238 KERARKM2,000,000
e H@i—g:—i/\ﬂ + B 1k
FE - HE—RHMNBRAKZARKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
(BT —FA=THILEFE

11. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 1. fERARE
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBMHF T ARETF T
At beginning of the reporting period R ¥ & Bif]) - 9,349
Share of post-tax results DIRBRTIE RS - 9
Disposals HE - (9,358)
At end of the reporting period REERR - -

In March 2021, the Group disposed of all equity interests
in its joint ventures to independent third parties at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB8,975,000 (the
“Disposals”). At the date of Disposal, the carrying amount of
investments in joint ventures was RMB9,358,000 and a loss on
disposal of RMB383,000 was recognised in the profit or loss
for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The following amounts represent the Group's share of results
of the joint ventures that are not individually material:

R—_ZE-_—F=H" $E@ﬁ%¢%
SHHEEAERARIMAMARE -
W,\m%/\ﬁﬁzs975000n(rﬂj%$
H]) - REERE  AEQRIIREMIR
ﬁﬁ%)\ﬁﬁ%%ssooofc HE=%
—FXRNA=ZTHLEEE HEBEBA
E’ﬁ%383 000TLE R IEZEFFER -

AEBDELIFFBEHEARNE E QA
ZEBESRBMOT

Period from

1 July 2020

to 28 February
2021

—E-TF+A—H
ETT - —F
— A=+ B

RMB’000

ARMTFT

Revenue & 1,542
Expenses Fx (1,533)
Profit after income tax FREFSEL & FE 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022

12. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(2 —TE S HETHIEEE

12. BE R TRE

2022 2021

—E-F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMHF T AEEFT

At beginning of the reporting period W%k 2 Bi9] 111,139 318,301
Share of post-tax results DIRRTIERE (1,625) 3,211
Impairment loss REEE (21,988) (210,373)
At end of the reporting period REBEHR 87,526 111,139

As at 30 June 2022, Jilin Jintian Universal Health Capsule
Limited (“Jilin Jintian”) is an associate of the Group, in which
the Group owns 43.78% (2021: 43.78%) of equity interest. Jilin
Jintian is a company incorporated in the PRC and its principal
businesses comprise manufacturing, sales and research and
development of hollow capsules in the PRC.

As a private company, there is no quoted market price
available for its shares.

The business performance of Jilin Jintian was not as good as
expected during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021. As
at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group carried out reviews of
the recoverable amount of investment in an associate. The
recoverable amount, being the higher of VIU and fair value
less costs of disposal, has been determined by the Group's
management with reference to a valuation report prepared by
an independent and qualified professional valuer using price-
to-earnings (P/E) multiple model. The fair value measurement
for the Group's recoverable amount of investment in an
associate was categorised into Level 3in the fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs to valuation technique used. The average
price-to-earnings multiples of comparable companies of the
corresponding industries is 27.08 (2021: 34.55) times and the
discount rate applied for lack of marketability was 20% (2021:
20%), which was estimated based on Asian Option Pricing
Model. Based on the results of the impairment assessment,
management concluded that provision for impairment loss
of RMB21,988,000 (2021: RMB210,373,000) was recognised
for the year ended 30 June 2022.

MRZZT-_—FA=1+H " TMHERK
EREEREERAR(TEHEMAEX])
AASEBENT  EPAEEES
43.78% (= F = —F :43.78% ) Mtz o
EMERB—ERPREFMAZIZA
A EXEXBRPERPERE - 8

Mz LBE

tER—MEALERR - EROLEHHR
EO

BE-_ZT-_—_FR-ZF-_—FXA=+
HIEFE  &MERNEBRETRE
B oRZEZZFRIE—FRA=
+H  AEEHEEARREN ] KE
TRHETES - e eE(AMERE
BERAABEREEXNAZESE)E
HASEEEELL2ERH LG BB
BEEHEMEATARER(TRE)EH
RAGE 2 (HERSMETE  BIBFTA
FHERMTE B A SR - AREREZE AR
AIRENTKEEE s AR BEFESD
EAAREBEEBRTOEIL - BT
ENENERABIZFEFITMBEEHA
27.08fF( =T =—4F : 34.55(%) - MHA
R = T 35 7% 3 1 T 4 AR Y 3T 3R R B20%
(ZB=—%F : 20%) ' EWREDXH
EEEERMGE c ERXREN NG
R EEEREHY  BE-_T-__F~
AR=1+THILFERAREEEREAR
#21,988,000L(ZF=—F : AR
210,373,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__F . A=1THLEFE

12. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 12. BENTRE(E)
There are no commitments and contingent liabilities relating W ARB BARSE BN E N R 2 AR
to the Group's interest in an associate, and no contingent R REE - BWEBE NG AR 23K
liabilities of the associate itself. A=
Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXEGNEMRE R EERE - WiF
Jilin Jintian, which is accounted for using equity methods. FAEREARR -
Summarised balance sheet EEEERBE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMTT
Current BP A
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 62,997 81,083
Other current assets B mEh &= 18,992 30,641
Total current assets REEEMAE 81,989 111,724
Trade and other payables B 5 R H it e 508 70,924 73,39
Total current liabilities nBEEEE 70,924 73,399
Non-current JE BN ER
Intangible assets mILAE 108,023 121,713
Other non-current assets B IERe & E 68,798 34,628
Total non-current assets FREEEARE 176,821 156,341
Non-current liabilities EREEE 11,794 14,863
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBEEE 11,794 14,863
Net assets EERE 176,092 179,803
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

12. BENRRE(E)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income REWBERBME
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Revenue Woas 37,459 63,474
Cost of sales SHE A (23,279) (34,437)
Selling and marketing expenses HHE R EHAX (17,308) (17,478)
Administrative expenses THRAX (696) (760)
Financial expenses — net WEERFE 120 212
Other income HABUA - 6
(Loss) Profit before income tax BRETEFAT (B8 ) B8 (3,704) 11,017
Income tax expenses FriS i @) (3,683)
(Loss) Profit and total comprehensive  (E8)RE R &4 (i)
(loss) income Eg i tc] (3,711) 7,334
The information above reflects the amounts presented in Lt E R R ERE S N R SRR T2

financial statements of the associate (and not the Group's share
of those amounts). The associate has adopted accounting
policies which are consistent with the Group’s significant
accounting policies. No dividends were received from the
associate during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

ZER(EXREBERDEZEEHE) °
BENmDRMEREEE RS HR

—HZEFHER - BE

— — =

=

FR=

T_—FRA=THILFE  WREHK

B N AR R,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

12. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information

12. BERRRE(E)
MBERBR 2 H iR

T2 E R 2 BE RS R E#

presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the associate < BREE 8RR
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBF T
Net assets at beginning of the RBERDZ2EEFE
reporting period 179,803 172,469
(Loss) Profit for the year FE (8B ) A (3,711) 7,334
Net assets at end of the reporting RBERRZ2EEFE
period 176,092 179,803
Share of net assets of the associate SIGEEE AR EEFE 77,093 78,718
Goodwill S 242,794 242,794
Accumulated impairment loss on B REERE
goodwill (232,361) (210,373)
Carrying amount BREE 87,526 111,139

13. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR

13. BEEREAABEFAREMERS

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE W ER TR
INCOME
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Unlisted equity instruments JE MR T A
at fair value BARBE 12,056 9,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

The balance represents 11% equity interests in Wing Ming
International Group Holding Limited (“Wing Ming”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, held by the
Group. The principal activity of Wing Ming is investment
holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacture and sales of chinese medicines and supplements
in Hong Kong.

No equity instruments designated as at FVOCI was disposed
of during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021 and no
transfers of any cumulative gain or loss arising from equity
instruments designated FVOCI within equity during the years
ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were valued
by an independent and qualified professional valuer at the
end of the reporting period and an increase in fair value of
RMB2,499,000 (2021: a decrease in fair value of RMB5,066,000)
was recognised in fair value reserve (non-recycling) for the year
ended 30 June 2022. The valuation techniques and significant
inputs used in the measurement of the fair values of the
unlisted equity investments are set out in note 3.3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount is denominated in HKD.

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

1. BEEREAIABEFARMRS

WENERTAE)

AR R AN B TR K BB R R
BRAR(XAD (—HRHABSES
FEM AL Z R E]) BV 11%AHE © KB
TREPAREER  BEMNBRRE
RERBNRSTRENHETERLMAT

-

BE-_ZE_—ER-_B-_—FXA=+
HIEFE  MELEEEAKRAAEE
FAEMAERENERTE - MEE
R CoFRZIFT—FXA=1+HL
FE  MEAEITERIETRZAR
BEFAHMGERENERTAEES
AR Rt as sk Es1E o

JEFTiEESIE 2 A BERRSHR
B REEBNEEMGEMGE - B
BT _FXNA=1THIEE AR
BEEINARE2,499,000T( - ——
F: AR EERLD ARS,066,0007T)
ERARBERE (T EE) R - A
REtEFLETREIBEAABENGE
Bl R ER A BIEH TR E G 15 H
=MIFE3.3 ©

RREELABTTATHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
B - —FNA=1+HIFE

14. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 14. £YPEE
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Wild ginsengs HEMTZ
at fair value BAREBE 98,161 97,752

On 21 June 2017, the Group acquired a forest land use
right and the wild ginsengs planted in this forest land from
an independent third party (the “Acquisition”). The forest
land is located in Tonghua City, Jilin Province in the PRC.
Upon completion of the Acquisition, the forest land use right
and wild ginsengs are accounted for as land use right and
biological assets respectively.

The wild ginsengs are measured at fair value less costs to
sell. As at 30 June 2022, the fair value of wild ginsengs is
RMB98,161,000 (2021: RMB97,752,000). During the year ended
30 June 2022, the change in fair value of RMB409,000 (2021:
RMB90,000) is credited to profit or loss. Except for the changes
in fair value less costs to sell, there are no other changes
during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

The fair values of the wild ginsengs as at 30 June 2022 and
2021 are estimated based on the valuation reports as of
respective dates issued by an independent and qualified
professional valuer using the statistical sampling method and
also taking into considerations of factors related to the wild
ginsengs as advised by ginsengs experts who are employed
by the valuer.

In determining the fair value of the wild ginsengs, significant
estimates and judgements in relation to quantities, grading
and market prices based on grading are involved in the
process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Valuation process

The Group engages a team of external experts, including
independent and qualified professional valuers and ginsengs
experts, to perform valuations of the Group's biological assets
for financial reporting purposes by using level 3 inputs. The
external experts report directly to the General Manager of
Finance ("GMF"). Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the GMF and external experts once
every six months in line with the Group's half-yearly reporting
requirements.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and
evaluated as follows:

e The quantities of the wild ginsengs are determined
based on the statistical sampling method and also taking
into considerations of other factors related to the wild
ginsengs as evaluated by the ginsengs experts. As at 30
June 2022, the Group has an estimation of approximately
189,000 (2021: 187,000) wild ginsengs in accordance with
the valuation report issued by the independent and
qualified professional valuer using statistic techniques
with an acceptable deviation estimated by the Group.

e The wild ginsengs are graded according to quality of
growth and there can be a considerable wide spectrum
of grades that may affect the prices achieved. According
to the valuation report as at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the
grading of the wild ginsengs is determined based on
the laboratory test results on the samples selected by
a certified institution in accordance with the standards
issued by China Ginsengs Products Standardization
Technical Committee.

e As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the prices of the wild
ginsengs for various grades are quoted by reference to
the quotations obtained from certain trading companies
or pharmaceutical companies that purchase wild ginsengs
in their normal business.

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

14. EMEE(E)

fHERE
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BRI KM

Year

=

14.

ended 30 June 2022
B FXNAZTHLEEE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Valuation process (continued)

Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each
reporting period during the valuation discussion between
the GMF and external experts. As part of this discussion the
external experts present a report that explains the reason for
the fair value movements.

Information about fair value measurements using significant

14. EMEE(E)

fERR (%)

EIMAR BELHIREREHRA
BT AT TR RN B E R A BT 6
BATHH - (ERARHBO—HH - 51
BERIZ2—HREMARS BEY

B -

EREANABRRGAZBBENAAEE

unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Fair value as at
30 June 2022

ATEHEBER (F3R):

Range of inputs
(probability weighted average)

Relationship of unobservable inputs

220

Description RMB’000 Unobservable Input as at 30 June 2022 to fair value
ANEE
R-BZZf AARBEE
AAZTH (B2 mAET)
R ARBTR TUBRERARE R=BZZHXA=+H FUBERABEEAAEEZRE
Ginsengs 98,161 Selling prices at various  RMB500 - RMB600 (2021: RMB500 - The higher the grade, the higher the
(2021:97,752) grades RMB&00) per unit of wild ginsengs selling price and the fair value
T2 98,161 TNREMANER BENFENRT2ARKS00TE mREs  EERAABEYS
(ZB=—%: ARBO00T(Z B -5 :
97,752) ARES00TLE AR #6007
Quantity 189,000 (2021: 187,000) wild ginsengs ~ The greater the quantity of wild
ginsengs, the higher the fair value
#E 189,000 F AM T2 HFEMT2HELS  DABEYS

(ZZ=—% : 187,0001%)

Risk management strategy related to biological assets
The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its wild

ginsengs:

(@) Regulatory and environmental risks
The Group is subject to laws and regulations in the
PRC where it operates. The Group has established
environmental policies and procedures aimed at
compliance with local environmental and other laws.

(b) Climate and other risks
The Group's wild ginsengs are exposed to the risk of
damage from climatic changes, diseases, forest fires and
other natural forces. The Group has extensive processes
in place aimed at monitoring and mitigating those risks,
including regular forest health inspections and industry
pest and disease surveys.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

15. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 15. IEEEFREH

FRELEMEREERABNEZE N
TORFF R F — B ADERE R # 45

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting

of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: fR):
Deferred
Accrual for advertising
Deferred income tax assets employee payroll expenses Total
BEMSHEE EstEEHE EAEE SR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AE#T T AE®TT
As at 1 July 2020 RZZEZTFtLH—H 4,653 550 5,203
Charged to profit or loss ~ HEz %k (4,653) (550) (5,203)
As at 30 June 2021, 1 July RZZE=—F A=+
2021 and 30 June 2022 A —Z2=-—%FtHA
—BAR=ZZB=ZZ=ZF
B=+H = - -
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from RERELEBIEEERE
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AE®FT
Deductible temporary differences AR R ERE 348,312 473,321
Tax losses TIAEE 1,679,855 1,606,964
2,028,167 2,080,285
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022

B - —FNA=1+HIFE

15.

222

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

At 30 June 2022, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of unused tax losses of RMB1,679,855,000
(2021: RMB1,606,964,000) and deductible temporary
differences of RMB348,312,000 (2021: RMB473,321,000) mainly
relating to depreciation allowance and impairment loss on
Non-current Assets and impairment loss on investment in an
associate and available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to such
deductible differences and tax losses as it is not probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses and deductible temporary difference can be utilised.
The expiry years of tax losses for which no deferred tax assets
have been recognised at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

15. IEEFREHR(E)

MR-ZT-—FA=+H KEFL XK
HEEEETBEENERERAEE
BUARBEARREREBESBAL
AR SRR FE R R E AR IBBEA
R #1,679,8550007C( ZE = —4%F : A
R #1,606,964,0007T ) K 7] 18 & Bf =
%8 A R #348,312,000T( Z B = —4 :

AR %473,321,00070 ) ERIELEFIBE
E - HRERRAEAEREARB AT
HEBRAUMBEREZREZAIEED
A AR R E IR E R R BEE
BRERELEHBEEE - RBEHR - K
HRIELER TR & &= 2 B TH 18 8 M F 2
U

2022 2021

—E-F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHF T AEEFT

Tax losses without expiry date EIEE 2 HIEER 106,143 114,920
Tax losses expiring in year 2021 R —FRHZBIAEE - 10,550
Tax losses expiring in year 2022 R ZFEE 2 FIAEE 311,646 361,984
Tax losses expiring in year 2023 RZZE-_=FFHHIEEE 274,801 276,872
Tax losses expiring in year 2024 RZZ_POE R 2 FIBEE 462,672 473,857
Tax losses expiring in year 2025 RZE_hFINE 2 HIBEE 355,362 368,781
Tax losses expiring in year 2026 RZZEZNFIH 2 BIEEE 169,231 =
1,679,855 1,606,964

Dividends derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC earned after 1 January 2008 are subject to withholding
tax at the rate of 5%.
Group reassessed its needs to make distributions out of its
subsidiaries in the PRC. As at 30 June 2022, no provision for
withholding tax has been made (2021:
earnings of those subsidiaries in the PRC are not expected to
be distributed in the foreseeable future. As at 30 June 2022,
unremitted earnings amounted to RMB234,654,000 (2021:
RMB303,038,000).

For each reporting period, the

Nil), as unremitted
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16. EMITEDE

Financial assets

Designated measured at
FVOCI amortised cost Total

EERRAAE

B AR MRS RBHERKGE
W s NEmERE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTIT ARET T ARBT T

Financial assets SRIEE
As at 30 June 2022 R-ZE-—FxA=+1+H
Trade and other receivables E 5 & HAb I IA - 101,443 101,443
Unlisted equity instruments JEEmiEmTE 12,056 - 12,056
Restricted cash SR B3R - 30,488 30,488
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED - 57,795 57,795
12,056 189,726 201,782
Financial assets BREE
As at 30 June 2021 RZZE=Z—F,A=1+H
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E bR GRIE B 91,814 91,814
Unlisted equity instruments JELTiESmT A 9,265 - 9,265
Restricted cash XRHIRE - 34,724 34,724
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY = 33,091 33,091
9,265 159,629 168,894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI KM

Year ended 30 June 2022

HE-B-—F/A=TAILFE

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

16. EBMITEDE(E)

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

ARG B SR A

RMB’000
AE#TIT
Financial liabilities SRIAE
As at 30 June 2022 N-—B=——FXA=1+H
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAM R FIE 354,101
Borrowings (B 40,000
394,101
Financial liabilities TREE
As at 30 June 2021 RZEZ—FA=+H
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,930
Trade and other payables B 5 R E At T RIE 324,098
328,028
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
 E_E_FANAZTHLEFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BE5 R E M EYRIE
2022 2021
—EB-HF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AREFT
Trade receivables 2 5 IR
— From third parties —ERE = HIA 97,838 85,794
Prepayments TEfTFRIA
— Prepayments to third parties —TBRE=5 2 5E 24,506 39,650
— Tax input credits — value added tax ~ —#IBFEE — LB 2,969 6,013
27,475 45,663
Other receivables H i fE W kIR
- Deposits — &% 832 896
— Others —HAth 2,773 5,124
3,605 6,020
128,918 137,477
Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of BEARNEBRE S K EA EKFKIAPTA S
trade and other receivables is included in note 3.1(b) to the Rz E R E RSN E 59 15w b
consolidated financial statements. £3.1(b) °
(@) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other (a) AEEMES KHAREKKIERE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: BEATEEESHE
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB AR 128,307 136,886
HKD BT 611 591
128,918 137,477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

18.

19.

20.

226

INVENTORIES 18. ®&
2022 2021
—E-—F —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Finished goods RURK i 190,973 273,916

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounting
to RMB1,065,963,000 (2021: RMB1,026,006,000) (note 27).

RESTRICTED CASH

The balance of the restricted cash was pledged to secure
notes payable. As at 30 June 2022, the amount of trade
finance facilities utilised by the Group for issuance of notes
payables to its suppliers amounting to RMB29,583,000 (2021:
RMB34,724,000) (note 24(b)).

All of the restricted cash was denominated in RMB.
As at 30 June 2022, interest rates on restricted cash, with

maturities within one year, ranging from 1.90% to 2.05% (2021:
1.82% to 2.05%) per annum.

19.

BHE T - —FA=1THILFE &
RAFZ W ABERRINTFERDN A
AR #1,065,963,000T( —F = —4 :
AR #1,026,006,0007T) (HF5E27) °

ZRERE

XBRHIH SN EREIRIERNEBROE
R-R-_BE-_—FA=1H ~&EE
mMEHERETENZEIANE SR
EEFREEAEARM29,583,0007T( =
T——F : AR¥34,724,0007T) (KizE
24(b)) °

e XBREIE S AAREE -
RZEBE-_—_FXA=+H ' —FRAZF

B BRI 3R & B F F = N T1.90% =
2.05%(ZFE=——F : 1.82%%2.05%) °

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEEEY
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARMTF T
Cash on hand EFRE 434 583
Bank balances RITHE SR 57,361 32,508
Total =t 57,795 33,091

Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the cash and bank balances
were denominated in the following currencies respectively:

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
BHE - —FXA=1+HILFE

20 RERBEEEW(E)
RZBE-_—_FR-_ZF-—F A=+
H - BERIBITEBDBIA T EE

18 :

2022 2021
—E-CHF SRR EE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT ARBETFT
RMB AR 56,463 32,866
HKD BT 1,185 181
uUsD e 147 44
Total et 57,795 33,091
SHARE CAPITAL 21. BRA&
Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
ZERHE EEREE
uspD
eSS
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of USD0.001 each RZZE-_TF+A—BEKREE
as at 1 July 2020 0.0013E TR & iR 10,000,000,000 10,000,000
Share consolidation &1n & Bf (9,000,000,000) =
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each RZBEZ—FA=+H =%
as at 30 June 2021, 1 July 2021 and = S e = Rl = ) X - Sl =
30 June 2022 AA=+BERMEE.01ET
& E AR 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022

B - —FA=1BHItFE

21. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

228

21. RA& (&

Issued and fully paid: EBRITRAR :
Equivalent
Number  Nominal value of Nominal value
of ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares Share premium
EERYA LEREE LRREEEE BREEE
UsD RMB'000 RMB'000
ET AREFTL AREFT

As at 1 July 2020 W=S-ZF+F—H 3,863,134,451 3,863,135 24,833 1,817,387

Share consolidation Rina bt (3,476,821,006) - - -

As at 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZE=—§ A=+HRK

:gi_ﬁtﬂ —H 386,313,445 3,863,135 24,833 1,817,387

Issue of subscription shares in November —~ MZZE=—F+— ATk

2021, net of expenses (note a) &ip « MR (Hita) 77,262,689 772,626 4,931 3,468
Issue of subscription shares in June 2022,  RZZZZF AEATRER
net of expenses (note b) %+ MRE (frzEb) 92,715,226 927,152 6,179 5315

As at 30 June 2022 R-ZB-—EXA=1H 556,291,360 5,562,913 35,943 1,826,170

Note: Kzt :

a. On 19 November 2021, the Company completed the issuance of the first batch a. —T-—F+—HA+NB - KQARTEK T A
of subscription shares of the year. A total of 77,262,689 subscription shares have ¢F% HRERMHIEIT XARIRRBEES
been issued to four independent third parties at the subscription price of HKD0.135 RERH0.135B TMUBBILE=HA £
per subscription share, for a cash consideration of HKD10,430,000 (equivalent 1777 262,689 0% RIEARD + FBRARDBE1TF 2 Al
to approximately RMB8,577,000), before share issue expenses. The proceeds % K (8510,430,0005 7T (HHERDARS
of approximately HKD5,997,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,931,000) 8,577,0007T) © Fﬁ%?ﬂlﬁi’js 997,000/ (HHE

representing the par value have been credited to the Company’s share capital
and the remaining proceeds (net of share issue expenses of HKD215,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB178,000) of HKD4,218,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,468,000) have been credited to the share premium.

On 7 June 2022, the Company completed the issuance of the second batch of
subscription shares of the year. A total of 92,715,226 subscription shares have
been issued to four independent third parties at the subscription price of HKDO0.15
per subscription share, for a cash consideration of HKD13,907,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB11,682,000), before share issue expenses. The proceeds
of approximately HKD7,274,000 (equivalent to approximately RMBé,179,000)
representing the par value have been credited to the Company’s share capital
and the remaining proceeds (net of share issue expenses of HKD220,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB188,000) of HKD6,413,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMBS5,315,000) have been credited to the share premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. RESERVES

(a)

(c)

Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds
from issuance of the Company’s shares over its nominal
value. Under the law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Articles of Association, it is distributable to
the Company’s shareholders provided that the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business after the distribution.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves includes reserves arising from (i)
deemed capital contribution from (distribution to) the
then controlling shareholder pursuant to the Group’s
reorganisation for listing; and (ii) transactions with non-
controlling shareholders in connection with changes in
the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries which do
not result in loss of control.

Statutory reserves
PRC
companies are required to appropriate 10% of their

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations,

respective net profits to statutory reserve until such
reserve reached 50% of the companies’ registered capital.
The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval by
the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or
to increase registered capital of the companies, providing
that such reserve is maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the companies’ registered capital.

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, all profitable companies
have already had their statutory reserve reached 50%
of their respective registered capital. According to the
relevant PRC laws and regulations, there is no statutory
requirement for these companies to further appropriate
their net profits to statutory reserve.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)
The reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of Designated FVOCI at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted.

(a)

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE_ZT-_F#A=1THLFE

22. f##

R ADRE

B B AR R BT NAE
RIEFRBLEEER S - RIZHE
EREEREARAABERA
A MARR AR K& ENER
—REBBIETERZ2ER - Bl
DK T ARRARR e

= ENG
BENRERERIOIREASE LHE
R AEE B2 HxHx%T’EHjZ1 /Ty\
(PIK) + Re(i) LA K ERHIE R
Zﬁﬁﬁ%@éﬁnzm (EZ'%:@UT\M
B AL ) BIFERRR 2
x%%iﬁ’ﬂfaﬁﬁ

EERE
BEEEPENEERBRM - FEA
AIZARKE R BN 2 10%BE %
ERBEEEXFHREERZ AR EM
BARZ50% - EAERBREAER
&R AT AR IE 2T EESIE N
RAZAMER - EZRBERRIE
RN Z A ARk & AR 2 25%7K

R_B__FR_F_—F/\A=
TH - 2FABNRREERE
BEERFEBEMEARRNS0%
REEBTBUEELAN - X
ERTEBRKZEFRBGREF 2 AR
E—TRERTERE -

\

N ABERBE(TITER)
ZHRERERRSHREEREA
AREEFARMEE RSN ARE
BERFTEENFEE - WRBRFTERA
BETBRERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O AR

Year ended 30 June 2022

BE-=

BT _FRA=THILFE

22. RESERVES (continued)

(e) Share-based compensation reserves

(f)

Share-based compensation reserves mainly comprise
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments.

Other reserves

Other reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(@) Share Option Scheme

230

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved for adoption on 18 November
2013 and as amended on 20 December 2018 for the
purpose to attract skilled and experienced personnel,
to incentivize them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to contribute for the future development
and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company,
as well as for such other purposes as the Board of
Directors may approve from time to time. The Share
Option Scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years
until 17 November 2023.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Board of Directors may, at their absolute discretion, grant
or invite any person belonging to any of the following
classes to take up options to subscribe for shares: the
Directors (including executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), the directors of subsidiaries
of the Group, the employees, advisers and consultants
of the Group, providers of goods and/or services to
the Group and persons who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(@) Share Option Scheme (continued)

In 2020 annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM"), the
resolutions for refreshment of Share Option Scheme
mandate limit (“2020 Scheme Mandate Limit") and the
share consolidation were passed. The refreshed maximum
number of shares that can be allotted and issued upon
the exercise of share options which may be granted by
the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
under the 2020 Scheme Mandate Limit is 38,631,344,
being 10% of the total number of issued shares after the
Share Consolidation as at the date of the 2020 AGM.
Together with the total of 22,470,000 outstanding share
options granted in September 2017 and in March 2019,
the Company will be allowed to allot and issue a maximum
of 61,101,344 Shares (representing approximately 15.82%
of the issued shares as at 30 June 2021).

Besides, the resolutions for approving the shortening and
extension of exercise period for the share options granted
on 12 September 2017 and 4 March 2019 respectively
were also passed in the 2020 AGM.

As at 30 June 2022, unless the 2020 Scheme Mandate Limit
is refreshed, the Company may only grant share options
to subscribe for up to 38,631,344 shares, representing
approximately 7% of the number of shares in issue of
the Company, pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE_ZT-_F#A=1THLFE

23. R NER(E)

(a)

ﬁ%ﬂﬁffg*iﬂ(é‘?")
R-TE_TFERRAFA(=
BoEERRBEXE]) BH
BREAEERBE( 2%
FIEIRERE ) LD E A

ARBRESBB ARFREE
IREF B R H B EREITE
% Al PECERBITHRMEBE L
EHEN RN F 8K
REBRZEIE |~ /338,631,3440% - BIR
TECEFRFAFASABEE
TR EENI10% - EBRIR -T—
+tFENARZZE-NF= AAFEE
AR H A H22,470,00000 R 1TEEE
REHE - ADRASE A PR KT

%61,101,344 Rt ((ERZF
——EXNAZTHEBEITRMHNY
15.82%) °

BESN - BEEMRERE RERD AN =F
—+tFAA+ AR -_T—NF=
A B HEBEREITE R AZ
RPN _ZE_TFRFBEFASE
i o

RIB-_FRA=1H  REE
PRt 8l - NRARERRERZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M
Year ended 30 June 2022

 E_ T —F A A=THLEEE

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

232

23. R NER(E)

Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) MBIRAETTEI(E)
Details of share options granted by the Company R EIRIEE AR ST 8% T eV BB AR
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the share BEERR_E_—FR_T=_—FN
option outstanding as at 30 June 2022 and 2021 are as A=+ B rEARITEHBREFIS
follows: I
Number of share options
BREHE
Number of  Outstanding Outstanding
share options as at asat  Exercise
Grant date granted  1July 2021  Forfeited  Exercised 30 June 2022 price  Exercisable period
R=2=- R=2==
EREBRE tA—H A~A=TH
Riti B B 1o RAT 6 2RK B i RAT G EE  TEHE
HKD
BT
12 September 2017 20,000,000 * 20,000,000 - - 20000000  1648* 12 October 2017 to
11 September 2027
“E+ENRTH T tFHATZHE
“E-+ENATH
4 March 2019 30,000,000 2,470,000 - - 2470000  0740* 4 April 2021 to
3 March 2029
T NF=HAIA R -ENANAE
“2-NE=A=H
50,000,000 * 22,470,000 - - 22,470,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (continued)
Number of share options

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

23. R NER(E)
(a) BRMESB(E)

BREHA
Number of ~ Outstanding  Adjustment Outstanding
share options as at for share asat  Exercise
Grant date granted 1 July 2020 consolidation  Exercised 30 June 2021 price  Exercisable period
R-B-%F R-B--%
ERHBRE tA—-H R 43 & b AA=ZTH
REAH 8B I R AT A i BT Ief R AT TEE TERE
HKD
BT

12 September 2017 200,000,000 200,000,000  (180,000,000)

- 20,000,000 1.648 * 12 October 2017 to
11 September 2027

“T—tF e S =
NA+ZH ZBHFAAT—R
4 March 2019 300,000,000 24,700,000 (22,230,000) - 2,470,000 0.740* 4 April 2021 to
3 March 2029
“E-NF=AWA “ZC-FMANRE
“Z-NF=R=H
500,000,000 224,700,000  (202,230,000) - 22,470,000
* The weighted average exercise price of the share options and the number & R=-T-_TF+_A+BRGBAHE B
of share option granted were adjusted following the share consolidation on B R B R B ARAES B T TEE

10 December 2020.

As at 30 June 2022, the total number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted to its employees and
directors was 50,000,000 (2021: 50,000,000), representing
12.94% (2021:12.94%) of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of the 2020 AGM.

EEEE -

R-ZE-_—FXA=+H''EET
ﬁﬁa&é%ﬂ%ﬂxﬁéﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂx
19 42 21 /350,000,0000% ( — & — —
4 : 50,000,0008% ) * HHERAR
AR-ZZ_TFRRAFAEH
HE BTN E12.94% (T = —
F:12.94%) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE—_ZT-—F#,A=1+BIFE

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

234

Share Option Scheme (continued)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s

23. R NER(E)

(a) BRMESBI(E)
TREBEARRBAER A S

share options under the Share Option Scheme: PRAEIT -
2022 2021
—E-=F —T-F
Average Number Average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
per share outstanding per share outstanding
fE RATBE WARITEE
BRYITEE BREZE SkTHTEE BlEHE
HKD HKD
B AT
At the beginning of year RERD 1.548 22,470,000 0.1548 224,700,000
Share consolidation Rt & bF - - N/ATE (202,230,000)
At the end of the reporting RIREHK
period 1.548 22,470,000 1.548 22,470,000

No share options were exercised during the year (2021:
Nil). All options are vested as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

The options outstanding at 30 June 2022 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 5.37 years (2021:
6.37 years). At the end of the reporting period, the
number of exercisable options was 22,470,000 (2021:
22,470,000) with a weighted average exercise price of
HKD1.548 (2021: HKD1.548).
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RZE-—FXA=+H " "MK
B2 BEAIREFRIRINE T ELFH
BSIVTEFE(Z B —5 : 6.37F) -
REmER AT EBRESE
#22,470,0000( = & = — F -
22,470,000 ) + MEEFHITEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Award Plan

The Company adopted the share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan”) on 23 April 2014. The purposes of the
Share Award Plan are to recognise the contributions by
eligible persons to the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for continual operation
and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The
Share Award Plan, unless early terminated, will remain
in force for 10 years until 22 April 2024.

Under the plan, the Company has appointed a trust
in Hong Kong for administration of the Share Award
Plan. The principal activity of the trust is administrating
and holding the Company's shares for the Share Award
Plan for the benefit of the Company’s eligible persons.
Pursuant to the Share Award Plan, the Company’s shares
will be purchased by the trust in the market out of cash
contributed by the Company and held in the trust for the
Company until such shares are awarded and vested in the
relevant beneficiary in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Plan.

As the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the trust and can derive
benefits from the contributions of the employees who
have been awarded the shares of the Company through
their continued employment with the Group, the Group
controls and thus consolidates the trust.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, no shares
were awarded under the Share Award Plan. As at 30 June
2022 and 2021, no shares were held by the trust for the
purpose of the Share Award Plan.
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Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

23. R NER(E)

(b)

%15 22 @t 2l
ARRR_ZE—WNFEMA=-+=H
BB AT 21 R4 B
B -BRHOHRBFEEEXRES
ERATHASBELN TR
THE) UBRBHREEERAEE
MIFEEERBERMA ST - W3
BEABNMANEBSANERE —F
R o BRIERATARLE - BRIRRMD IR
Bt EE_—_T_mMEmA =
+ZHLE+TFR—EERK -

RIEETE > ARFERE—RER
EREE ) REET & - %ISR
TEXBREAARAEEBALHN
M) B2 Et Bl E B R A A
R o RIBRAD BREFHE] - %
ERRUARBHENRENTS
FREARRRD - XR/ARRR
ZIEFERFHE - EERERD 2R
At BRSO SR IR T I 5 B
RIERAX A °

R R A AR B =M 5
FAEERR - WAEBEES RN
AEBEMERARRRDEESE
BRiR Xa - MAKEESZER
WK EERE AR

RBE_T-__FR-ZT-_—FX
A=1THIEFE  WERERD
BiErEIREERRS - RZTZZ
FRZFZ—FAA=TAH %=
SESLEAR R AR (0 SRR AT BT B M

Bty -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI KM

Year ended 30 June 2022

(2T __FRA=THILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. B RHEMENSRE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBMHF T AEEFT
Trade payables (a) B Z N IA ()

- To third parties —ENE=RHIE 313,928 269,666
Notes payables (b) & R 1% (b) 29,583 34,724
Other payables (c) E b & FRIE(c) 46,855 73,604

76,438 108,328

390,366 377,994

(a) Details of ageing analysis based on recognition date of (a) EHNE 5 ENZIBREDANER

trade payables are as follows: AN :

2022 2021

—g=-= T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR F T AE#TIT

Up to 3 months 3ME A AR 288,388 231,277

4 to 6 months 4Z6f8 A 20,148 30,771

7 to 12 months EVAED:! 5,392 6,550

1 year to 2 years 1EE2EF - 558

Over 2 years fAiE 2 - 510

313,928 269,666

(b) As at 30 June 2022, the entire balance of notes payable
was secured by restricted cash of RMB30,488,000 (2021:

by RZEZ_FA=+8" EH

SERN2E

A l\\Dﬁ%D/\§BE%|JIE$A

RMB34,724,000) (note 19). As at 30 June 2022 and 2021,
the notes payables is expected to be settled within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(c)

Details of other payables are as follows:

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
BHE - —FXA=1+HILFE

24. B RHMBNREAGE)

() EAbFENFIAFFBLT :

2022 2021

—E-CHF Sedls =

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AEBTT

Salaries and welfare payable et & KAz A 36,265 50,838

Construction payable FEt TA2FRIA - 16,013
Sales commissions and marketing HERE REHMAX

expenses 562 779

Interest payables FERTAILE 898 =

Other taxes EbFia 1,304 3,058

Others A 7,826 2,916

Total #st 46,855 73,604

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other

payables are denominated in the following currencies:

(d) AEEWEZNEAMEWRFIRRE
BEATIERE

2022 2021

s el s

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT AREFIT

RMB AR # 388,572 376,251
HKD B TT 1,794 1,743
Total st 390,366 377,994

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FEHRE2021/22 237



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

25. BORROWINGS

It represented loan advanced from an associate. The amount

25. &
HIgME N BN ER o B 5IE
AEER . ERNEAURER_E=
mENA=+HBEEE o

due is unsecured, carried an interest rate of 3% per annum
and wholly repayable on 30 September 2024.

26. OTHER INCOME, GAINS (LOSSES) - NET 26. HtW A ~ Wk (8518) — 38
2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEBTIT
Other income HAA
Consultancy service income s IR WA 5,976 =
Dividend income from equity BERBRAREEFARMGS
instruments designated as at FVOCI I as )i s T ARAR S UA 807 =
Others Efth 487 2
Total #ET 7,270 2
Other gains (losses) — net Hih Wz (B518) — B5E
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — MR 2 Al e 1,794 =
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries 85I B A REE (2,010 (1,112)
Loss on disposals of joint venture HESEARIEE - (383)
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEWE - BB REHEKE
and equipment 2,004 -
Total FEe 1,788 (1,495)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

27. EXPENSES BY NATURE 27. BHEEE WX
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHF T AEEF T
Costs of inventories sold (note 18) SEEFEERAN(HZZ18) 1,065,963 1,026,006
Employee benefit expenses (note 28) 1B BRAFEZ (Ha£28) 245,533 316,511
Advertising and other marketing expenses &% R EM & HFH 2,661 47,378
Impairment loss on goodwill and other (S Sk S-S
intangible assets (note 9) EEE (ML) - Jil%
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - R RFREREEE
equipment (note 7) (Htet7) - 3,972
Impairment loss on rights-of-use assets FEREEEREREE
(note 8) (Kraz8) - 3,893
Impairment loss on investment in an B N el BRI EEE
associate (note 12) (Kiz£12) 21,988 210,373
Lease payments on short-term leases (note 8) HATA & v & KIH
(Kraz8) 65,237 76,383
Lease payments on low-value assets (note 8) KEBEEEZHERE
(Kret8) - 88
Transportation and related charges B RAEEE R 29,931 33,543
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB KR EITE
equipment (note 7) (Htet7) 18,540 97,141
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 8) {EFEEENE (H7:£8) 7,515 11,504
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) EmBEEE (2 - 275
Other tax expenses E A FR AR 5,620 3,866
Office and communication expenses NS 3,108 8,011
Auditor's remuneration 1% 21 B 27 B 2,138 2,104
Electricity and other utility fees BERHEMARREE 1,839 1,950
Professional fees HEXEBH 1,270 597
Travelling and meeting expenses ERkERAX 280 901
Donations =k - 780
Other expenses HafAx 126 1,585
1,471,749 1,847,174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

28. EERABX

2022 2021

—E-F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBMHF T ARETF T

Salaries and wages HehkIE& 177,245 246,468
Contributions to pension plans RIREFT IR 63,469 62,712
Other benefits E g Al 4,819 7,331
245,533 316,511

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the PRC government
has introduced a series of relief policies on social welfare
contribution. The comparatively higher ratio of contributions
to pension plans for the year ended 30 June 2022 was mainly
attributed to the absence of relief policies on social welfare
contribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2021: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 36. The emoluments payable to the

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

28. EERABIX (&)

(a) ERBEHAL
FEAEEALESHFALTEEN
BTG ZR)EE HF
B ¥ 155 80 A Y 5236 51) 2 55 4
FREENBT—B(ZF=—F:

remaining one (2021: two) individual(s) during the year WE) AR EBNNT ¢
are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-CHF =R —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Salaries and wages e KoER 425 855
Contributions to pension plans RSB 5 22
430 877

The emoluments were paid to the one (2021: two) highest

XNF—R(ZF_—F WA)X

paid individual(s) as follows: S ATHFHBAT
2022 2021
s SE= -
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AZ
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T, 1 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022, neither the directors nor
the five highest paid individuals received any emolument
from the Group as an inducement to join, upon joining

or leaving the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office (2021: Nil).

BHE-_ZT-_—_FXA=1THLHF
B BMEEEIRERRTALTE
N BWEER B S 1ERBINARS
B - MAXEEEXBERAASE
BB SIERBEBEE( 2T = —
F |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

29. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS — NET 29. BB AR KA — F5E

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Fr AREFIT

Finance income R A
Exchange gains — net b i 2 — FRE 1,578 =
Interest income FEHA 2,064 1,253
3,642 1,253

Finance costs [20/pi:95%:
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE (276) (1,065)
Interest on borrowings BEFE (898) =
Exchange losses — net PE 5 E518 — F =8 - (10,681)
Other charges Hith &R (146) (122)
(1,320) (11,868)
Finance income (costs) — net BAFEUR A (RS ) — /558 2,322 (10,615)

30. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 30. FIEHAX

2022 2021
—E-F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARMT T
Deferred income tax (note 15) EEFTIST(H1aE15) - 5,203
Total income tax expenses Fisiim 4z - 5,203
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 30.

The difference between the actual taxation charge in profit or
loss and the amounts which would result from applying the
enacted tax rate to loss before income tax can be reconciled

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

FreHip (&)
BEANERTIAE MR RASHATE
BRAEAEREMSFRENZR RN
T

as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBEFIT
Loss before income tax BrETIS LA E 18 (188,013) (670,804)
Tax calculated at PRC statutory tax rate & BUKTE iR 25% =1 H BT IR
of 25% (2021: 25%) (ZZF——%F : 25%) (47,003) (167,700)
Tax effects of: AR EIERNMBZE
— Expenses not deductible for tax — NAHIHF X
purpose 1,170 3,499
— Income not subject to tax —HEMTIERA (905) (340)
— Tax losses for which no deferred — ARERIBELEFMSHEENT
income tax asset was recognised TE &5 18 42,315 93,085
— Utilisation of tax losses previously —MALRIARERNTIEEE
not recognised (920) =
— Effect of different applicable tax — & THB AR R EATE
rates for certain subsidiaries 2 241 1,624
— Results of joint ventures and an —aEnE RiEE A RIRESA
associate 406 (805)
— Unrecognised temporary — KRR TR ERE
differences 4,696 70,637
— Reversal of deferred tax — IR TE B B - 5,203
- 5,203

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as there were
no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021. The subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax at
a rate of 25% (2021: 25%) on its taxable income or deemed
profit method as determined in accordance with the relevant
PRC income tax rules and regulations.

BEZ-_—_FR-F-_—F A=+
B IEFEY EAMANEENGFH 2 ER
BN - B b I R ET R BB NAS B B
# o RIBARAPEAENRAER -
$EIE’7EPIWJ§ //\Exﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁf&“
D%RHSZ)\&ZS% B —F : 25%)H)
MRS AR E BT EBREEEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R M

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE—_ZT-—F#,A=1+BIFE

31. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

31. BREE
(a) EZR
FRREAREIE TR AR RHEA AR
IHEEEBRAFED BT RK
EFHEETE -

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Loss attributable to owners of the NAREEE AFEMLEE
Company (in RMB’000) (AR®Fr) (187,647) (675,396)
Weighted average number of ordinary B #77& A% hnE AR 2K
shares in issue (in thousands) (FHZ) 439,825 386,313
Basic loss per share (RMB cents) FREREEARES) (42.66) (174.83)

The number of shares for the purpose of calculating basic
loss per share for the Year has been adjusted to reflect
the subscription shares issued during the year.

Details of which has been set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Diluted
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

As the effect of the assumed conversion of the potential
ordinary shares from exercising the Company’s share
options is anti-dilutive, the basic loss per share are equal
to diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June
2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

32. DIVIDENDS 32. BE
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend §$@i$@%5ﬁ17$¢§21£ﬂ%5
in respect of the Year (2021: Nil). (ZE=—F &) o
33. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 33. HinB & REE R
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash used in (a) BrRFISHiAIEIEREEmARe 2
operations: HER -
2022 2021
Sl 3ok
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR NEETFT
Loss for the year FEER (188,013) (676,007)
Adjustments for: a4
- Income tax expenses (note 30) ~FERER (HE0) - 5203
- Dividend income from equity instruments designated as at FVOCI —REARAL BEN AL WELE
(note 26 sTRNRENA ) (807) -
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 7) -0% - BRREETEWZ) 18,540 91,14
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 8) -FREAENEWZ) 7515 11,504
- Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) ~BRAEEHN:L) - 25
- Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment (note 26) -HENE - BRI RRE N 25) (2,004) -
- Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries (note 26) ~HENBARBE Hit) 2,010 1112
- Loss on disposal of joint ventures (note 2¢) ~-HERENABRHE2) - 383
- Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 26) -t E-RNEA TR (HH2s) (1,794) 5
- Impairment loss on other intangible assets (note 9) -EEYEERNEER H2Y9) - 33
- Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (note 7) -0%  BRREEREERWZ) - 3972
- Impairment loss on right-of-use assets (note 8) -RRBAEFEERW:) - 3893
- Impairment loss on investment in an associate (note 12) -BENORERERE(WH12) 21,988 210373
- Change in fair value of biological assets (note 14) ~EWBERLERED(HiHN) (409) (90)
- Finance (income) cost - net (note 29) ~BBURA AR - B8 (i) (2322) 10,615
- Share of post-tax results of joint ventures (note 11) ~DERERARBEEEWZ) - 9
- Share of post-tax results of an associate (note 12) -HEBERTRBEREEWH12) 1,625 B2
- Effect on foreign exchange rate changes EEXEH H2 4 258
(143,667) (334,279)
Changes in working capital: EEASRY:
- Inventories -5 72,620 36,942
- Trade and other receivables ~BHREMEYTE 5,346 40,884
- Trade and other payables -BHREMENTE 817 143137
Cash used in operations BEMARE (42,584) (113312)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
(BT —FA=THILEFE

22

246

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

33. HBREREER (E)

(b)

MERDEENBBEHE
TRFAJIAEERERDELED
BER2Y BERSNERSE
B METHELENRBERERH
RAEBEHRAERERSBAR
BERPEARERELHENEN
AERERENEIE °

Lease liabilities Borrowings Total
HEAE & K BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#HF T ARBFT ARBF T
(note 8) (note 25)
(Ftat8) (K1z%25)
As at 1 July 2020 RZZE_TF+HA—H 14,141 - 14,141
Cash flows: REME -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEAE (10,211) = (10,211)
As at 30 June 2021 and RZZEZ—FXA
1 July 2021 *+H&_7_ F
+tH—H 3,930 - 3,930
Cash flows: REmE -
Repayment of lease liabilities BREEAE (3,930) - (3,930)
Inception of borrowings TG HER - 40,000 40,000
(3,930) 40,000 36,070
As at 30 June 2022 N-EBE-__—&F
~NB=+H - 40,000 40,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O R AR

Year ended 30 June 2022
(E—E-—F A A=ZTRHLEFE

34. COMMITMENTS 34. AR
Capital expenditure commitments BB ESE
The Group had no significant capital commitment as at 30 AEBR_ZE_—FR_T=_—F<AH
June 2022 and 2021. =T HYBRTAEREANFIE -

35.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35. BB ARS

The transactions with related parties are carried out on BARsE 5 32 5 T — MR E T B AE iz B
pricing and settlement terms agreed with counterparties in FAMENE B RAEFIRKAEST ©

the ordinary course of business.

(a) Transactions with related parties

(a) BABEARZ

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMHF T AEEFT
Joint ventures of the Company: Kpalgann
- Sale of goods —HESm - 2,533
Companies controlled by a director of ZAARZEZLHEAF
the Company:
— Lease payments on short-term —REHHE 2 MERIAE
leases - 3,000
Director of the Company: RARES :
— Lease payments on short-term —RHEE 2 HERIE
leases 500 500
An associate of the Company: AN/ )k /NI I
— Interest expenses —FERAX 898 =
None of these related party transactions constitutes PSR S R 7 22 B W Pk R 3B <P RS A P
a connected transaction or continuing connected BE EMRAE14AZRTEMERKE
transaction which are required to be disclosed in this RABEBENEER S RIFERERS -

annual report in compliance with the requirements

under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-—FA=1+HIFE

35.

248

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management compensation
Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive), members of the Executive Committee, the
Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below:

35. BB AR S (&)

(b)

TEEEASHMH
TZEEABBREZ(MITES
MIEBRITTESE) BITREEMN
& - RRAIMERABEAEL - 5L
BERBDNIENEBEEEAS
FaT

2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT

Salaries and other short-term employee #r& K E b2 #i{E B EF
benefits 3,480 3,326
Post-employment benefits B2 13 A 30 32
3,510 3,358
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

36. EEREAN R ESE

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive

is set out below:

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Emoluments paid or payable to a person in respect of

services as a director, whether of the Company or its

(@) EEK
BEER

T :

E=E

B

— =

=y — e

RETHAEZH M
RaTRABZF s

FNA=THIEFE

IEREF(EBRAR B HENE
REDZRB I RENTFEAL

subsidiary undertaking: 2
Employer's
contribution
Salaries and ~ Discretionary ~ Share-based  to retirement
Name Fees  allowances bonuses payments  benefit scheme Total
E351%
i3 e HERIE BEEL  REXHER HELE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARBTL  AREFT  AREFZ ARKTL ARRFR
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Note (a) SREREMH) 9% 658 - - 5 759
Mr. Jin Dongkun SRESRE 9% an - - 5 512
Mr. CHU Chuanfu (Note (3) MNELEKite) 9 3 - - - 470
Mr. Zhao Zehua BRERE m 47 - - - 470
Mr. Sun Libo (Note (b)) BUREE W) 8 - - - - 8
Independent non-executive directors BUkUnES
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie eV o 152 - - - - 152
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing geFrt 152 - - - - 152
Mr. Zou Haiyan Jaftt 152 - - - - 152
972 1,693 - - 10 2,615
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI R M
Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__FA=1+THLEFE

36. BENEFITS AND

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

36. EEEA R ER(E

(continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments (continued) (a) EBERESITTHAEZHME)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE_FT_—FNHA=1THIFE
Emoluments paid or payable to a person in respect of Eﬁf@ﬁi%( B AR A A
services as a director, whether of the Company or its NEZRBZ T HER TZALT
subsidiary undertaking: 2 F B

Employer's
contribution
Salariesand  Discretionary ~ Share-based  to retirement
Name Fees allowances bonuses payments  benefit scheme Total
EXEHRE
4 e HERIZ MERAL  ROZNER ABIER 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  AREFT  AREFT ARETn  ARETT ARETR
Executive Directors HnEs
Mr. Jin Dongtao eRRLE 100 617 - - 5 722
Mr. Jin Dongkun SREAE 9 36 - - 5 490
Mr. Zhao Zehua HELLE 20 3 - - - 462
Mr. Sun Libo FuRcE 105 21 - - - 33
Independent non-executive directors BukuTEs
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie &Rt 157 = = - - 157
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing HERst 157 - - - - 157
Mr. Zou Haiyan et 157 - - - - 157
1,005 1466 - - 10 2881
Note: HizE
(a) Mr. Jin Dongtao (“Mr. Jin") resigned as the chief executive officer (“CEO") of (a) SHREBBELE(EKEE]) RZTE=—F)\
the Company on 1 August 2021. Mr. Jin will continue acting as the chairman A—HEEARABEENTE( HEHIT
of the Board of Directors and as executive director of the Company. Mr. Chu Bl @AEBEEETARRAEESE
Chuanfu was appointed as the CEO of the Company on 1 August 2021. ERHITES - 9| %%Em:z:fi
NA—HEZERRRAIEREHITE °
(b) Mr. Sun Libo resigned as an executive director of the Company on 1 August (b) B EER—_ZE-—FEN\A—BEEX
2021. NEITES -
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36. BENEFITS AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as a compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years
ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

Directors’ material interestsintransactions, arrangements
or contracts

Saved as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2021: Nil).

ABREEBREEZERERLAT FERE2021/22

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

36. EEEA R ER(E)

(a)

EERESTHRAEZEFM(ZE)

BE_ZT-_—_FR-F=-—F,H
=T HIEFE - NEEIW A E(A
BEEXNEMMESERAMALRER
FINAREE A ZR) - HIEARE
B -

REBEE—E-_—FR-_F-—F<
A=+HI-FE  MiBEEEWEN
B B E A EH R 2k -

EERNRG  ZHIAAHUNEKX
HEx

Bast MR EISMMES
S - AR B RT S B AN SR B R A
BREARAEERETHEE
Az (M im B & KEE) MR F
REFRAEABFEDFENEKR
RH BHRRAEHN(ZFT_—F:
&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
BE_ZT-__FA=1+THLEFE

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37. KA REEEBRNLEEEEIE

252

THE COMPANY o
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@) AXRBEEREBR
Note 2022 2021
it b =F=—4
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR AREFTL
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBAR RE 3,533 3,533
Loans to subsidiaries ERTHEAR 58,859 84,292
Equity instruments designated as at fair value EERRAABEFAL LSS
through other comprehensive income WamERTIA 13 12,056 9,265
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 74,448 97,090
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables HthElkHE 332,039 503,618
Cash and cash equivalents RERALEE 1,157 156
Total current assets hHEELR 333,196 503,774
Total assets BEAHE 407,644 600,864
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRAE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARHEEAELER
Share capital B 21 35,943 24,833
Reserves @ 37(b) 1,192,007 1,180,725
Accumulated losses 25EE 37(b) (833,079) (631,549)
Total equity ERAE 394,871 574,009
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities RBaE
Other payables E bR 12,773 26,855
Total liabilities SE4E 12,773 26,855
Total equity and liabilities ExZREEEE 407,644 600,864
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a) Balance sheet of the Company (continued)
These balance sheet of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
September 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Jin Dongtao
ERE
Director

EE

ORI R KM

Year ended 30 June 2022
HE-_ - A=1+HIFE

V. KRR EEEBRRZAEEHE

(&)

(a) RXAREEEBRE)
ARBIZHEEEABRAEZESE
RZEZ—FHRAZTHEH#ER
BRETIEVHAUATEERAERE

Zhao Zehua
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022
(BT —FA=THILEFE

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37. KA REEEBRNLEEEEIE

254

THE COMPANY (continued) w(E
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARQEREEZBER
Reserves
i
Share-based
Share  compensation Falr value reserve Other Accumulated
premium reserves  (non-recycing)  reserves  Sub-totel losses Tota
MEERE
BitAE  RbEHER (FT88)  HfRE Nt EithE &3t
RMBO00 RABO00 RMBOI0  AMBUO0  RMBOM0 RMBOO0  RMBOOO0
Ne#TE ARETT NeETE AREFT ARETT ARETL ABETR
(note)
\‘//f/ﬂ?j
Balence at 1 July 2020 SoRELA-ANER 181737 13513 (0869 (632 1185791 (378 920
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - ) e
Fair value changes in equity insruments desinated as fairvalie BT AR BEIAZMERURNERI A 00E
through other comprehensive income @?@ﬁ - - (5,060) - (5,060) - (5,060)
Total comprehensive loss CAEREE - - (5,066) - (506) @778) 2y
Balance at 3 Jung 2021 i Ty 1817307 13513 (14931) (635244 1180725 (631549 4176
Balance at 1 July 2021 HoEZ-EA-Rlks 1817387 13513 (14931) (63544 1180725 (631549) 549176
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - I )
Fairvalue changes in equity instuments designated o finvelue S ARAA BES AR HAHERTEZ AAE
{hrough other comprehensive ncome E29 - - 249 - 149 - 149
Total comprefensve income oss FRbH(BE)AE - - 249 - 29 050 (19903
Transaction with owners inthelr capaciy & owners ﬂfﬁ)\ HEkREEA 23025
lsue of subscription shares n November 2021, net of expenses =5 =—F+—RE{IERG  MBRR 1)
[note 21(a) 3468 - - - 3468 - 3468
lsue of subscripion shares n Jung 2022, net of expenses RIBCCERAEATERG - MRER i)
[note 21(o) 5315 - - - 5315 - 5315
Total transaction ith owners in their capacity as owners BREAEEREEA 250 %588 8,783 - - - 8,783 - 8783
Balance at 30 June 2022 HCEZZERACTRNER 1826170 13513 (12432) (635,240 1192007 (833079) 358928

Note: Other reserves represent the deemed distribution upon the Group's

reorganisation for listing.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHEER R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- TX&EHIIAEENBEAFEGTBREERFEE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, IREE - BERIFERESHE - THHEE
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is B B T & BXABERE -

set out below.

RESULTS £
For the
eighteen
months
ended
30 June
For the year ended 30 June 2018
BEAA=TALEE HE
2022 2021 2020 w9 ZFAE
~NA=THIE
—g-c-E —E--& —EC-FE ZZ-NF +/\EA
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETTT AEETT ARETT AEETTT

Revenue Wiz 1,273,572 1,185,168 1,510,126 2,424 416 3,968,907
Gross profit EHE 204,162 156,904 188,500 326,807 652,091
Loss before income tax BEERAEE (188,013) (670,804) (492,226) (263,866) (963,878)
Income tax (expenses) credit FisH (A% E% - (5,203) (1,245) (3.237) 39,087
Loss for the year/period EE/BhER (188,013) (676,007) (493,471) (267,103) (924,791)
Loss attributable to: T & FEMAER :
— Owners of the Company —ARTHBA (187,647) (675,39) (491,405) (265,629) (917,007)
- Non-controlling interests — AR R (366) 611) (2,066) (1,474) (7,784)
(188,013) (676,007) (493,471) (267,103) (924,791)
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~ FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEERHE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥E - - 8ERIFEZERESR

INTERESTS
As at 30 June
WAB=tH
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“BoCF LRI “ROFF “FNhE “3)N\F
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT AEEFTL ANRETFT ARETFT NREFT
Total assets BEGE 839,076 957,841 1,495,102 2,003,340 2,229,330
Total liabilities BEEE (430,366) (381,924) (249,748) (269,547) (291,959)
Non-controlling interests SRS (579) (945) (1,556) (3,622) (20419)
Equity attributable to RARER AR
owners of the Company 408,131 574,972 1,243,798 1,730,171 1,916,956
256 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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